Public Document Pack

CYNGOR .
Gareth Owens LL.B Barrister/Bargyfreithiwr Sir y Fﬂlnt
Head of Legal and Democratic Services Ay . .
Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd FllﬁtShII‘E

COUNTY COUNCIL

To: ALL MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL
CSING

13 February 2014

Nicola Gittins on 01352 702345
nicola.gittins@flintshire.gov.uk

Dear Sir / Madam

A meeting of the FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL will be held in the COUNCIL
CHAMBER, COUNTY HALL, MOLD CH7 6NA on TUESDAY, 18TH FEBRUARY,
2014 at 2.00 PM to consider the following items.

Yours faithfully

e

[ P—

Democracy & Governance Manager

AGENDA

NOTICE OF MOTION
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
PUBLIC QUESTION TIME
COUNCIL MINUTES (Pages 1 - 10)

To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 28"
January 2014.

5 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
To receive any declarations of interests from Members.
6 CHAIR'S COMMUNICATIONS

A O DN -

County Hall, Mold. CH7 6NA

Tel. 01352 702400 DX 708591 Mold 4
www.flintshire.gov.uk

Neuadd y Sir, Yr Wyddgrug. CH7 6NR
Ffén 01352 702400 DX 708591 Mold 4
www.siryfflint.gov.uk

The Council welcomes correspondence in Welsh or English
Mae'r Cyngor yn croesawau gohebiaeth yn y Cymraeg neu'r Saesneg



10

11

12

13

14

15

PETITIONS
QUESTIONS

To note the answers to any questions submitted in accordance with County
Council Standing Order No. 9.4(A).

COUNCIL FUND REVENUE BUDGET 2014/15 (Pages 11 - 82)
Report of Head of Finance enclosed.

COUNCIL FUND CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2014/15 AND INDICATIVE
FUNDING TO 2017/18 (Pages 83 - 108)

Report of Head of Finance enclosed.

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT 2014/15 & CAPITAL PROGRAMME
2014/15 (Pages 109 - 134)

Report of Head of Finance, Director of Community Services, Head of Housing
enclosed.

PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2014/15 - 2016/17 (Pages 135 - 144)
Report of Head of Finance enclosed.

MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION 2014/15 (Pages 145 - 152)
Report of Head of Finance enclosed.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2014/15 (Pages 153 - 180)
Report of Head of Finance enclosed.

COUNCIL TAX SETTING 2014-15 (Pages 181 - 194)

Report of Head of Finance enclosed.




73.

74.

Agenda ltem 4

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
28 JANUARY 2014

Minutes of the meeting of the Flintshire County Council of Flintshire County
Council held in the Council Chamber, County Hall, Mold CH7 6NA on Tuesday,
28 January 2014

PRESENT: Councillor Carolyn Thomas (Chair)

Councillors:  Alex Aldridge, Bernie Attridge, Glyn Banks, Haydn Bateman,
Marion Bateman, Chris Bithell, Amanda Bragg, Derek Butler, Clive Carver,
David Cox, Peter Curtis, Adele Davies-Cooke, Chris Dolphin, Rosetta Dolphin,
lan Dunbar, Andy Dunbobbin, Brian Dunn, Carol Ellis, Jim Falshaw,
Veronica Gay, Robin Guest, Alison Halford, Ron Hampson, George Hardcastle,
Ray Hughes, Dennis Hutchinson, Hilary Isherwood, Joe Johnson,
Christine Jones, Kevin Jones, Richard Jones, Brian Lloyd, Richard Lloyd,
Mike Lowe, Dave Mackie, Nancy Matthews, Hilary McGuill,  Billy Mullin,
Tim Newhouse, Mike Peers, Neuville Phillips, Mike Reece, Gareth Roberts,
Tony Sharps, Aaron Shotton, Paul Shotton, lan Smith, Nigel Steele-Mortimer,
Owen Thomas, Sharon Williams,  David Wisinger, = Arnold Woolley and
Matt Wright

APOLOGIES:
Councillors: Helen Brown, Ron Davies, Glenys Diskin, Stella Jones, Colin Legg,
Phil Lightfoot, Ann Minshull, lan Roberts and David Williams

IN ATTENDANCE:

Chief Executive, Director of Environment, Director of Lifelong Learning, Head of
Finance and Head of Legal and Democratic Services

Director of Community Services and Older People’s Strategy Co-ordinator for
minute number 75

PRESENTATION

The Chair welcomed members of the Property and Design Consultancy
Team who had been awarded the Consortium of Local Authorities Wales (CLAW)
2013 Commendation Award, in recognition of work at Ysgol Cae’r Nant,
Connah’s Quay. She detailed some of the works that had been undertaken and
welcomed the impressive and excellent learning environment for the children.

As Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Environment, Councillor
Bernie Attridge congratulated the team on the award and said that he had been
privileged to attend the ceremony when the award was presented. He
commented on the quality of the new school and its learning environment, and
added his thanks to the team.

SIGNING OF THE DUBLIN DECLARATION ON AGE FRIENDLY CITIES AND
COMMUNITIES IN EUROPE 2013

The Director of Community Services introduced Eileen Spence, the Older
People’s Strategy Co-ordinator, to Members.

Page 1



75.

He explained that every Council in Wales had been invited by the Welsh
Local Government Association to make a public declaration by becoming
signatories on the Dublin Declaration.

The Dublin Declaration reaffirmed commitment to adopt best practice, to
collaborate with regional and international stakeholders, to communicate with
regional and international stakeholders, and to communicate through local and
regional channels to stimulate and promote equal rights and opportunities for
older people living within communities. The Dublin Declaration did not constitute
a legally binding contract, however by becoming a signatory the Council would be
pledging a commitment to the aspirations and principles referred to in the
Declaration.

The Chief Executive advised that Declaration would be signed by the
Chair, the Leader of the Council, Cabinet Member for Social Services and Chief
Executive following this meeting.

RESOLVED:
That the signing of the Declaration be noted.

COMMEMORATION AND TRIBUTES TO THE LATE COUNCILLOR TED
EVANS

The Leader of the Council paid tribute to Councillor Ted Evans and said
that he was a great ambassador for Flint and the whole county. He spoke of
Councillor Evans’ loyalty, dedication, commitment and selfishness and the fact
that he had become known as ‘Supersub’ for the Labour Group due to him
always volunteering to substitute on Committees to ensure the Group had its full
attendance at meetings. He had put a significant amount of time and dedication
into representing the Council and had taken a great deal of pride in serving on
the Clwyd Pension Fund and on the Deeside College Board. The Leader felt that
many Members would remember Councillor Evans for his keen eye for detail,
particularly when highlighting grammatical errors or corrections to figures in
reports and said that the Council had lost a good friend. He spoke of Councillor
Evans’ dedication to his family, faith and the way he always put the community
first. He was certain that his family would take great strength in the high regard
that Councillor Evans was held in and concluded that he was proud to have
known him.

Councillor Alex Aldridge spoke on behalf of Flint Members and thanked
the Chief Executive, officers and the many Members who had attended the
funeral, which had been a celebration of Councillor Evans’ life. . Councillor
Aldridge said that Councillor Evans’ standards were high and he never had a bad
word to say about anyone. He felt that Mrs. Evans would have found immense
solace in the numbers that had attended the funeral.

Councillor Hilary Isherwood added to the tributes and referred to the work
Councillor Evans had undertaken for the Community and also his religious
beliefs. She said that he was a wonderful and generous man and she had been
privileged to know him.

Page 2



76.

77.

78.

79.

Councillor Mike Peers spoke of the well thought of and respected man
who came across as a gentleman. He referred to his persistence and said that
his lasting image would be of Councillor Evans leaving County Hall and walking
across to the bus stop, despite his iliness,which showed his commitment.

Councillor Tony Sharps agreed with all that had been said and stated that
they had served together on Delyn Borough Council. He referred to the death of
Councillor Evans’ son and said that he felt that he never got over his loss. He
said that Councillor Evans was a wonderful man who would be greatly missed
and that he should be seen as a role model to all.

Councillor Robin Guest echoed the comments made and said that
Councillor Evans had been a man that nobody could fall out with. He spoke of
the admiration felt by many for Councillor Evans following the loss of his son and
said that he was a delightful man who would be missed and that he would
remember him for his musical ties and his cheerful grin.

The Chair concurred that he had been a great role model and added that
he had been kind to her when she first became a Councillor.

NOTICE OF MOTION

The Head of Legal and Democratic Services confirmed that none had
been received.

PUBLIC QUESTION TIME

The Head of Legal and Democratic Services confirmed that none had
been received.

COUNCIL MINUTES

The minutes of the meetings held on 29 October, 12 November and 10
December 2013 were submitted.

RESOLVED:
That the minutes be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

In response to a query from Councillor Neville Phillips about the need to
declare an interest in agenda item 15 — Update on Single Status, the Head of
Legal and Democratic Services advised that those who had declared an interest
on Single Status previously would be noted as declaring an interest at this
meeting. However, he asked that those Councillors also complete a Declaration
of Interest form.

The following Councillors had previously declared an interest in Single Status:-

Councillors: Alex Aldridge, Bernie Attridge, Amanda Bragg, Adele Davies-Cooke,
Chris Dolphin, Rosetta Dolphin, Hilary Isherwood, Kevin Jones, Hilary McGuill,

Page 3



80.

81.

82.

83.

Billy Mullin, Neville Phillips, Aaron Shotton, Paul Shotton, lan Smith and Carolyn
Thomas.

Councillor Mike Lowe declared a personal interest in Item 14 — Council
Tax Reduction Scheme and had disclosed the nature of that interest to the
Monitoring Officer.

CHAIR'S COMMUNICATIONS

A copy of the Chair's communications had been circulated to all Members
before the meeting.

The Chair highlighted some of the events that she had attended and
provided further details of forthcoming events.

PETITIONS
None were received.

QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS ON COMMITTEE MINUTES

The Head of Legal and Democratic Services confirmed that none had
been received.

Councillor Chris Dolphin queried whether the Minute Book could be sent to
Members electronically instead of by paper copy. The Chair asked that Members
inform the Democratic Services Team if they would prefer to receive it
electronically.

Following a comment from Councillor Peter Curtis about having to receive
all agendas by paper copy, the Head of Legal and Democratic Services advised
that a review of the Member requirements for agendas could be undertaken.

Councillor Richard Jones queried why a Minute Book had to be produced
at all. The Head of Legal and Democratic Services advised that it was because
all Committees undertook work on behalf of the County Council and this was the

forum in which the Council could hold the committees to account by asking
questions on the minutes.

RESOLVED:

That a review be undertaken on whether Members want to receive their agendas
and Minute Book electronically or by paper copy.

QUESTIONS
The following questions had been submitted by Councillor Tony Sharps:

Are any of the following actions being pursued to unlock the full financial
potential of the Enterprise Zone:-

(a) Simplified planning arrangements

Page 4



84.

(b) Improving the road infrastructure
(c) Improving the power supply

(d) Making representations to the Welsh Government to alter the grant
status from tier two to tier one, so that Flintshire will not be
disadvantaged in seeking job creation and investment in
comparison with Anglesey, Conwy, Gwynedd, Denbighshire and
other significant parts of South Wales which have tier one status.

A copy of the response to the questions, provided by the Cabinet Member
for Economic Development is attached at Appendix 1 to the minutes.

Councillor Sharps thanked the Cabinet Member for Economic
Development for his reply but detailed his concern about paragraph 3 of the
response and the section about the Deeside Enterprise Zone.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT MID YEAR REPORT 2013/14

The Head of Finance introduced the report to present to Council the
Treasury Management Mid Year Report for 2013/14 for approval.

The report reviewed the activity and performance of the treasury
management operations during the period 1% April to 30" September 2013 and
compared them with the Treasury Management Strategy. The Audit Committee
and Cabinet had considered the report and the key points of the report were
detailed. The Head of Finance advised that work on developing the Treasury
Management Strategy for 2014/15 was well advanced and the draft strategy was
to be considered at the meeting of Audit Committee the following day.

Councillor Mike Peers referred to the treasury management training that
had been provided recently where the Council’s long term borrowing of £172.1m
had been described as significant. It accrued interest payments of £9.306m per
year with an average interest rate of 5.41%. Councillor Peers queried whether
restructuring of some of the loans could be considered to reduce the interest
payments to reduce the cost to the Council in view of the financial challenges
facing the Council and asked if the Chair of Audit could raise the issue In Audit’s
consideration of Treasury Management. The Head of Finance recognised that
£172.1m was a significant sum but it was important to balance this with the value
of the Council’'s asset portfolio and be mindful that it was there because of
previous policy decisions. The Head of Finance went on to explain that
restructuring of debt was considered where appropriate but reminded Members
that repaying loans through restructuring would result in fees for early repayment
of the debt which could overall increase the short term burden on the revenue
account. She added that the borrowing had been undertaken to invest in
infrastructure as part of Flintshire and predecessor Council’s Capital Programme
decisions and that the payments for the majority of loans were supported through
the revenue support grant by funding from Welsh Government.

Page 5



85.

As Chair of the Audit Committee, Councillor Alison Halford thanked
officers for the treasury management training and confirmed that she would
speak to Councillor Peers about the points he had raised.

In response to a query from Councillor Nancy Matthews on the
investments with the Icelandic banks, the Head of Finance said that the current
expectation was that the principle borrowing of £3.7m made by the Council would
be returned. Councillor Matthews also asked whether the debt maturity profile
shown in the report showed each column as a separate loan. The Head of
Finance explained that loans would have been for a number of projects in the
capital programme and the profile showed when the loans were due to mature.

Councillor Richard Jones referred to the breach of the investment criteria
as a result of an investment of £7m and asked what was in place to ensure that
this did not happen again. The Head of Finance referred to paragraph 7.03
where the breach was reported and explained that more stringent procedures
and training had been put in place to ensure that this did not reoccur.

In response to a query from Councillor Clive Carver about maturing loans,
the Head of Finance advised that she would ask the Finance Manager to provide
a response following the meeting.

RESOLVED:
That the Treasury Management Mid Year Report 2013/14 be approved.

COUNCIL TAX REDUCTION SCHEME

The Head of Finance introduced a report to explain the requirement for the
Council to adopt the Council Tax Reduction Scheme for 2014/15 by 31 January
2014.

The report had been considered at Corporate Resources Overview &
Scrutiny Committee and Cabinet where the proposals as set out in the report
were supported. The scheme was no different to the scheme in place for
2013/14 which also included the discretionary elements as reported in appendix
1. The Head of Finance detailed the estimated additional cost of the scheme for
the Council of £0.633m which had been built into the budget proposals for
2014/15.

Councillor Richard Jones asked if the proposals could be agreed in
principle subject to the approval of the 2014/15 budget. The Chief Executive
explained that the Council had a legal requirement to adopt the scheme by 31
January 2014 and that this decision was not reversible and therefore this part of
the budget would be committed at this meeting if Members agreed to adopt the
scheme. The Head of Finance explained that if the scheme was adopted then it
would revert to the ‘fall back’ scheme which did not include any discretionary
elements.

In response to a query from Councillor Clive Carver about the consultees
detailed in the report, the Head of Finance said that the consultation process

Page 6



86.

87.

allowed Councils to decide who it consulted and those listed, which included
strategic partners, had been asked for their comments.

RESOLVED:

(@)  That the making of the Council Tax Reduction Scheme and Prescribed
Requirements (Wales) Regulations (“the Prescribed Requirements
Regulations”) by Wales Government on 26" November 2013, as amended
by the Council Tax Reduction Schemes (prescribed Requirements and
Default Scheme) (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2014 be noted; and

(b)  That the Council Tax Reduction Scheme discretionary elements as
outlined in Appendix 1 be adopted.

UPDATE ON SINGLE STATUS

The Chief Executive provided a verbal update on Single Status. He
thanked Members, the workforce and the Unions for the way that the Single
Status outcome had been handled following the October 2013 County Council
meeting. Implementation was still on track for 1 April 2014 and officers were
confident of a ‘yes’ vote in the Union ballot expected in February 2014Subject to
the timely conclusion of the Equal Pay negotiations which were running.

RESOLVED:
That the update be received.

MEMBERS OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC IN ATTENDANCE

There was one member of the press and no members of the public in
attendance.

(The meeting started at 2.00 pm and ended at 3.03 pm)

Page 7



APPENDIX 1

QUESTION TO COUNCILLOR DEREK BUTLER
AT COUNTY COUNCIL ON 28™ JANUARY 2014

Question by Councillor Tony Sharps

Are any of the following actions being pursued to unlock the full financial potential
of the Enterprize Zone:-

a)
b)
c)

d)

Answer

b)

Simplified planning arrangements
Improving the road infrastructure
Improving the power supply

Making representations to the Welsh Government to alter the grant
status from tier two to tier one, so that Flintshire will not be
disadvantaged in seeking job creation and investment in
comparison with Anglesey, Conwy, Gwynedd, Denbighshire and
other significant parts of South Wales which have tier one status.

The Council has been successful in securing funding through Welsh
Government's Planning Improvement Fund to consider developing
a Local Development Order (LDO) for the Enterprise Zone area. An
LDO can identify types of development that would not require
planning permission within the specified area, thereby making it
more attractive to any potential developer.

The DEZ Board has supported and facilitated discussions between
Welsh Government and the land owners of Northern Gateway to
provide infrastructure to open up the combined sites owned by two
neighbouring land owners/developers. Discussions are advanced
and Welsh Government are about to procure a contract for major
coastal/fluvial flood prevention and alleviation works to protect the
sites in readiness for their combined industrial and residential
development. Reserved matters planning applications for
infrastructure for the Northern Gateway development should be
received later in 2014.

The Board has supported the upgrading of traffic management
systems to better improve traffic flows in the immediate area and a
bid for funding to achieve this forms part of the Business Plan. The
Board has also supported a package of major transport
improvements in the area, including improving facilities at
Hawarden Bridge station, electrification of the North Wales Coast
line, improvement of the Wrexham-Liverpool service, together with
implementation of the Shotton Curve (providing direct access to
Liverpool) and the Halton Chord (providing a direct link to Liverpool
Airport) and upgrading of Aston Hill.

Page 8



d)

This is a key part of the DEZ infrastructure plan and an upgrade of
power infrastructure including additional electricity sub-station
provisions is part of the Business Plan for the DEZ submitted by the
Board which is subject to full Welsh Government approval

Tier 1 designation in Wales applies only to the Convergence Area.
Such designation is intended to address areas of severe economic
need and/or where standards of living are abnormally low.
Currently, income levels in Convergence Areas must be at or below
75% of the EU average, way below that of this County. Tier 2
designation (which currently applies in parts of Flintshire) is
intended to address areas of acute labour market need. .

Flintshire cannot make a case for Tier 1 designation under these
rules. However, the County's manufacturing strength makes this
area one of national and European significance for Tier 2
designation.

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Agenda Item 9

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

DATE: TUESDAY, 18 FEBRUARY 2014

REPORT BY: HEAD OF FINANCE

SUBJECT: COUNCIL FUND REVENUE BUDGET 2014/15

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To provide Members with the recommendations of the Cabinet for the
Council Fund Revenue Budget 2014/15.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 A report was considered by Cabinet on 21 January 2014 which
presented a first draft of the Council Fund Revenue Budget for
2014/15 for initial approval.

2.02 The Cabinet's initial budget proposals for 2014/15, which at that stage
identified a budget gap of £0.915m, were also referred to Overview
and Scrutiny for consideration.

2.03 The Overview and Scrutiny meetings were held between 28 January
and 3 February 2014 where Members offered comments and asked a
number of questions to clarify issues. A summary of these, together
with Officer responses is included in Appendix 8 of the Cabinet report
attached.

2.04 The final budget proposals for 2014/15, which show a balanced
position, were considered by Cabinet this morning and a verbal
update will be provided at the meeting. A copy of this report is
attached as Appendix A.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01  The recommendations of the Cabinet to County Council are set out in
Section 9 of the attached report.

3.02 Section 3 of the report provides an update from the Overview and
Scrutiny process and details on the proposals for closing the budget
gap reported in the January report. The process undertaken for
assessing any potential equality impact is also detailed in Section 3.

Page 11



3.03

3.04

3.05

3.06

3.07

4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

Details of the final proposed budget and its funding are set out in
Section 4 of the report.

Section 5 of the report sets out details of earmarked balances and
unearmarked reserves.

Section 6 of the attached report details the Investment Strategy in
relation to the budget.

Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 includes a specific duty
on the Chief Finance Officer to report to the Authority when it is
considering its Budget and Council Tax on the robustness of the
estimates and adequacy of reserves. Section 7 of the report provides
this statement in detail.

Section 8 of the report provides a report from the Chief Executive in
relation to the budget strategy and Organisational Change
Programme.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That the Council approves the recommendations of the Cabinet as set
out in Section 9 of the attached report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

As set out in the report.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

As set out in the report.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

As set out in the report.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

As set out in the report.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

As set out in the report.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

As set out in the report.

Page 12



11.00 CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

11.01 As set out in the report.

12.00 APPENDICES

12.01 As set out in the report

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer: Gary Ferguson
Telephone: 01352 702271
Email: gary_ferguson@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 18 FEBRUARY 2014

REPORT BY: HEAD OF FINANCE

SUBJECT: COUNCIL FUND REVENUE BUDGET 2014/15

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01 To present the final 2014/15 revenue budget proposals for the Council Fund

2.00

2.01

2.02

2.03

for recommendation to County Council.

BACKGROUND

Detailed revenue budget proposals for 2014/15 were presented to Cabinet on
21%' January 2014 for draft approval. The budget proposals were also
referred to Overview and Scrutiny Committees for consideration and feedback
to Cabinet.

The following Overview and Scrutiny meetings were held as planned:-

28" January — Joint Housing (CF only) and Social & Health Care

28™ January — Environment

28™ January — Corporate Resources

30" January — Lifelong Learning

3" February — Corporate Resources (open to all members to review feedback
on the Council Fund and consider the Capital Programme).

The budget strategy and the development of the Organisational Change and
Redesign Programme has been reported to members (together with quantum
targets) in previous updates to the Medium Term Financial Plan (as at May
and October) and in the January Cabinet report. This has been done in the
context of the following expectations as commissioned by Cabinet:

¢ the protection of local services as a first priority
o the more challenging reduction of operating costs and overheads

¢ the reorganisation of the Council with a marked reduction in management
costs

¢ the reduction of overall workforce costs
e the remodelling of some functions
e building a longer-term financial plan based on optimal efficiency

Page 15



2.04

2.05

3.00

3.01

3.02

3.03

3.04

3.05

The budget strategy and proposals and their implications for school budgets
were discussed with the School Budget Forum on 23rd January 2014. The
budget strategy and pro(PosaIs were also shared with Flintshire Joint Trades
Union Committee on 23" January 2014.

The formal Council Fund budget setting for 2014/15 and setting of the Council
Tax for the year will take place at County Council this afternoon.

CONSIDERATIONS

The report to Cabinet on 21% January 2014 advised of a remaining shortfall of
£0.915m to be identified to establish a balanced budget for 2014/15. The
report formed the basis for the presentations to the Overview and Scrutiny
Meetings held on 28" and 30" January 2014.

Each of the meetings began with the Head of Finance providing a corporate
overview of the budget and a reminder of the national and local strategic
context within which the budget was being set. The Chief Executive then
provided an update on the latest position with regard to the four sub-
programmes of the Organisational Change and Redesign Programme:-

Organisational Design: Structure & Operating Model
Organisational Design: Workforce
Corporate Value for Money (VFM)
Functional Value for Money (VFM)

This was followed by a portfolio specific presentation of the detailed service
proposals by the respective Director incorporating:

Inflationary impact

Transfers into the settiement
Pressures and investments
Efficiency proposals

Impact of prior year decisions

A further Corporate Resources meeting, open to all members, was held on 3™
February 2014. The purpose of this meeting was to:-

Provide feedback from the individual scrutiny committees
Respond to the information requests from the meetings
Identify the latest position on balancing the budget

Set out the issues still under discussion

At the meetings, a number of specific comments and issues were raised and
responses provided. Appendix 8 provides a summary of all of the comments
and responses for each individual committee, and also incorporates any
outstanding responses supplied after the meetings. At the meeting on 3™
February 2014, supplementary information was provided to all members
attending in relation to the questions raised at the previous scrutiny meetings.

Page 16



3.06

3.07

3.08

3.09

3.10

3.1

Closing the Budget Gap

At the final Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny meeting on 3™
February 2014, members were advised that the budget shortfall had reduced
from the £0.915m to £0.540m as a result of the net effect of the following
items identified as part of the emerging Month 8 budget monitoring position.
These amounts are now confirmed following completion of the Month 8
monitoring report which is also on this agenda.

Corporate Services — Housing Benefit Subsidy and Discretionary Housing
Payments

An efficiency of £0.380m has been identified following a review of the Housing
Benefit Subsidy profile and the level of funding required to meet Discretionary
Housing Payment demand.

MATRIX — Agency Rebates

The Council receives budgeted income (rebates) in relation to efficiencies
made due to the utilisation of a centralised system for procuring agency
appointments. Now that the Council is successfully reducing the number of
agency appointments, the level of income (rebates) will also reduce
proportionately. Therefore, it is anticipated that there will be an ongoing
pressure of £0.115m from the loss of income and this has been reflected in
the budget.

Flintshire Futures Programme — Assets Review

An efficiency target of £0.060m was previously included in the budget in
relation to soft facilities management as part of the Assets Programme. This
efficiency has now been reported as unachievable in 2013/14 and has
therefore been removed from the 2014/15 budget.

Specific Grants Adjustment

A review of specific grants has enabled a positive adjustment of £0.170m to
be made on the net movement in the overall level of specific grants for
2014/15 over 2013/14.

Members were also advised at the meeting on 3™ February that the following
items were still under consideration in an attempt to achieve a balanced
budget:-

Further corporate efficiencies (procurement and back to basics)
Workforce — costs of employment

Council tax level

Ongoing review of budget assumptions and intelligence

Page 17



3.12

3.13

3.14

3.15

3.16

3.17

3.18

Following detailed consideration of the above the budget proposals for
2014/15 are now balanced as a result of the inclusion of the items in the table
below:

£m £m

Shortfall as per draft budget report 21 January 0.915
Add:
MATRIX - Agency Rebates 0.115
Flintshire Futures Programme - Assets Review 0.060

0.175
Less:
Housing Benefit Subsidy/Discretionary Housing Payments -0.380
Specific Grants Adjustment -0.170

-0.550

Shortfall as shown at CROSC 3rd February 0.540
Corporate Efficiencies
Procurement 0.060
Back to Basics 0.064

0.124
Functional Efficiencies
Central Loans and Investment Account - based on in-year underspend 0.145
Library Book Fund - reduction based on previous year underspends 0.050
Youth Service - further reduction in management costs 0.049
Inclusion Service - further reduction in management costs 0.012

0.256
Workforce: costs of employment (See appendix 6c) 0.160
Shortfalt 0.000

The Procurement and Back to Basics efficiencies are additions to the
amounts identified in the draft budget proposals and are now included in the
summary shown in Appendix 6a.

The Central Loans and Investment Account amount of £0.145m reflects an
efficiency in 2013/14 which is recurring and is now included in Appendix 6b.

The Library Book Fund reduction reflects spending levels in previous years
and is now included in Appendix 6b.

The Youth Service and Inclusion Service efficiencies are additional
management cost reductions to those included in the draft proposals.

The cost of employment efficiency of £0.160m relates to a reduction in costs
in a number of areas as detailed in Appendix 6c¢.

The level of Council Tax increase remains unchanged at 3%.

Page 18



3.19

3.20

3.21

Risk Assessment and Assurance

In line with the financial strategy, a risk based approach has been taken to the
potential items of additional cost as to the likelihood and level required and
assessments made of the provision to be included for 2014/15, taking a
balance between the challenge of the overall budget position and the potential
for variations in demand.

The budget has been set based on the very latest information available at this
time, whether it be via national intelligence or local activity as reflected in the
latest monitoring report. Despite this fact however, there will inevitably be
other risks associated with the budget that will need to be managed should
they occur, as it is not possible, particularly in the current financial climate, to
provide for every risk and eventuality.

Some of the risks that will need to be monitored closely in 2014/15 include:-

e Pay Inflation — the pay award is subject to national negotiations and is not
confirmed at this time. The budget proposals currently assume a 1% uplift
for non-schools staff.

e Single Status — the budget assumes an implementation date of 1% April
2014. However, it is now anticipated that this will change to 15! May 2014
which will result in some efficiencies not being able to be achieved in the
first month. The shortfall arising from this will be met from the Single
Status/Equal Pay Reserve which is consistent with the way this has been
dealt with for some of the 2013/14 efficiency proposals that are dependent
upon the implementation of Single Status.

e Out of County Placements — this highly volatile area has the potential for
significant movement in costs (up and down) due to the impact of client
demand.

e Care Fees — the annual uplift in care fees payable to providers is subject
to negotiation and consultation and will not be known at the time of setting
the budget.

e Insurance premiums — these are due for renewal during 2014/15 which are
subject to volatility, and will not be known until after the budget is set.

e Member Allowances — the annual increase in these allowance will not be
confirmed until after the budget is set.

e Euticals Site — the ongoing issue around the decommissioning of this site
is being reported through the current year's monitoring report. If the
conclusion of this issue was to be delayed there would be a financial
impact in 2014/15 that would need to be dealt with.

Page 19



3.22

3.23

3.24

3.25

3.26

3.27

All of the above will be closely monitored throughout the year and any
variations from the approved budget reported to members through the
monthly budget monitoring report.

Schools Budget

The budget report to Cabinet on 21% January 2014 provided details on the
impact of the proposed budget on schools. There have been no further
changes made to the schools budget and the budget has been set at an
overall increase of 0.9% in line with national expectations of protecting
investment in schools. Welsh Government have been notified of the schools
budget for 2014/15 in line with the statutory deadline of 14" February 2014.

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT (EIA)

The Council has an obligation to assess the potential equalities impacts of its
budget proposals and it is important that all aspects of the Organisational
Redesign and Change Programme are subject to an appropriate Equalities
Impact Assessment to ensure that there is no potential for discrimination or
disadvantaging of either service users or employees. An update on this work
is detailed below.

Corporate and Functional Efficiencies (VFM)

As previously reported, the initial efficiency proposals were equality impact
assessed as part of a high level filtering exercise undertaken by Directorate
Management Teams and supported by both Policy and Finance team
members. Each proposal was identified as having a high, medium or low
impact on individuals with protected characteristics and whether the impact
may increase poverty for vulnerable groups.

The outcome of this work was that 62 were screened as low impact, 8 as
medium impact and 1 as high impact. For the medium and high assessed
impacts more detailed impact assessments are being undertaken to identify
any potential negative impacts and to ensure that robust arrangements are in
place to mitigate them.

The proposal with an initial high impact assessment relates to the closure of
some youth clubs and a full equality impact assessment is currently being
undertaken. This will involve wider consultation with employees and service
users to look at ways of reducing the impact and exploring opportunities to
facilitate a wider range of service provision which is not dependent upon
traditional youth clubs.

Page 20



3.28

3.29

4.00

4.01

Workforce Efficiencies

For the workforce programme, the Council has commissioned some
independent support from Northgate, similar to that commissioned for the
Single Status EIA work. This is to ensure that the proposals, including any
entitlement policies that might apply, do not have any adverse consequences
for any groups of employees.

This work will cover the Council's approach to a voluntary redundancy
scheme including the criteria for the consideration of applications received
and changes to discretionary compensation provisions. Although this work is
still in progress, the potential impacts have been discussed verbally with
Northgate and no significant issues are anticipated. This work will also
incorporate the workforce impacts contained within the VFM reviews.

FINAL BUDGET PROPOSALS

Proposed Budget

As a result of the changes outlined above, total expenditure and funding now
equates to £296.945m and the total budget build up is outlined below. Details
of the figures making up the total budget are attached as Appendices 1-7.

It is recommended that the 2014/15 Council Fund Revenue Budget

Requirement be set at £253,718,291 (which is £1,423,025 below the
calculated Standard Spending Assessment).

Page 21



4.02

4.03

Funding £m

Aggregate External Funding (RSG & NDRY) 192.942
Council Tax 60.776
Budget Requirement 253.718
Outcome Agreement Grant 1.458
Use of Reserves - Investment Strategy 6.250
Specific Grants (Estimated) 35.519
Total Funding 296.945
nditur

Total Budget 2013/14 293.346
Previous Year's Growth / Items Dropping Out Appendx 1 1.138
Pay & Price Inflation Appendix 2 2.425
New Responsibilities and Transfers into the Setiement  Appendx 3 0.092
Pressures and Investments - Ongoing Appendix 4 4872
Pressures and Investments - One-Off and Time Limited Appendix § 4.800
Efficiencies Appendices6a-c (11.950)
Less Specific Grants 2013/14 Appendix 7 (33.297)
Plus Specific Grants 2014/15 (Estimated) Appendix 7 35.519
Total Expenditure 296.945
Shortfall 0
Income

The budget proposals in this report set a budget requirement of £253.718m.
At this level of spend, the increase on the Band D Council Tax Rate
(excluding Police and Town/Community Councils' precepts) is 3%. This
equates to an increase of £28.78 on 2013/14 and a Band D rate of £988.21.

The Council Tax system in Wales contains nine property bands ranging from
Band A to Band |. In order to ensure consistency between councils when
reporting Council Tax information it is agreed practice that all related
information is expressed in terms of Band D equivalents.

Members are requested to confirm that there is a 3% increase in Council
Tax at Band D and an assumed 99% collection rate.

The amount of Outcome Agreement Grant available for 2014/15 has been
advised by Welsh Government. As always the achievement of this is subject
to assessment against agreed performance. The Council has been
successful in achieving 100% of its grant in previous years and the same
assumption has been made for 2014/15.

Members are requested to confirm the inclusion of the Outcome
Agreement Grant of £1,458,151 in the budget.

Page 22



4.04

4.05

4.06

4.07

4.08

4.09

Expenditure

Inflation

Pay and Price Inflation of £2.425m is included in the budget proposals as
detailed in Appendix 2. The proposals include pay inflation of £1.316m which
assumes a 1% increase for non-schools staff from April 2014.

Price inflation of £0.590m has been included which represents a targeted 1%
to 3% increase for all services as required. In addition to the standard level of
price inflation outlined above, non-standard inflation of £0.670m has been
included, as detailed in Appendix 2, to reflect the increasing costs of energy,
fuel, business rates and food for which inflation is anticipated to be at higher
levels based on national intelligence. This sum will be held centrally until it is
demonstrated that there is a requirement for the funding to be released. This
will be reported in budget monitoring reports during the year.

It is recommended that items of non-standard inflation are only
allocated out to services when the actual increase in cost is known.

Inflation on income amounting to £0.151m has been assumed on the yield
from existing fees and charges which has generally been applied at 3%.

Members are requested to confirm the levels of inflation assumed in the
budget.

The final settlement included one transfer into the settlement in respect of
administration subsidy for the Council Tax Reduction Scheme which was
previously received through a specific grant and it is proposed that £0.092m is
‘passported’ to the relevant service area.

Members are requested to confirm that the amount of £0.092m be
‘passported’ to the Revenues and Benefits service to administer the
Council Tax Reduction Scheme.

Appendix 4 sets out recurring pressures totalling £4.872m recommended for
inclusion in the budget. These pressures are proposed to be funded from the
base budget.

Members are requested to confirm the inclusion of £4.872m of pressures
in the budget for the purposes set out, and that any proposals to vary
the use of the sums allocated are to be the subject of a further report to
Cabinet for consideration.

Appendix 5 details estimated one-off costs of £4.800m which will be funded
by way of the Investment Strategy detailed in section 6.

Members are requested to confirm the inclusion of estimated one-off
costs totalling £4.800m in the budget.

Page 23



4.10

5.00

5.01

5.02

5.03

5.04

5.056

5.06

5.07

Appendix 6 a-c sets out the efficiencies, totalling £11.950m, recommended for
inclusion in the budget.

Members are requested to confirm the inclusion of efficiencies of
£11.950m in the budget. It is recommended that the achievement of all
efficiencies be monitored monthly and reported through the budget
monitoring report with any corrective action taken in-year as has been
the case in previous years.

UNEARMARKED BALANCES AND EARMARKED RESERVES

Base Level of Unearmarked Reserves

The Council's Medium Term Financial Strategy confirms the Councils
commitment to maintaining a base level of reserves of 2% of turnover. The
current base level of reserves is £5.834m as reported in the monthly budget
monitoring reports. Despite the fact that funding has reduced in 2014/15 over
2013/14, it is proposed that unearmarked reserves are maintained at the
same level for 2014/15 which will provide an additional safeguard in the
current uncertain financial climate.

Contingency Reserve

When the 2013/14 budget was set, the Contingency Reserve was estimated
to be £0.200m at 31 March 2013. As a result of the net underspend reported
in the final outturn for 2012/13 the actual amount in the Contingency Reserve
at the year end was £3.159m after taking into account commitments in
2013/14.

Cabinet approved in the final outturn report, that the amount held in the
contingency reserve of £3.159m be held and considered within the context of
the Medium Term Financial Plan and 2014/15 budget strategy.

The 2013/14 Month 8 Budget Monitoring report which is also on this agenda,
shows an estimated balance of £3.709m in the Contingency Reserve as at 31
March 2014.

Whilst the base level of reserves is a known sum which is set aside, the level
of Contingency Reserve is based on the current estimate and is subject to the
final outturn for the financial year.

Council Fund Earmarked Reserves

Council Fund Earmarked Reserves include service balances, corporate
balances and schools balances.

Service balances are made up of those balances held by departments which

Cabinet has agreed can be carried forward. Corporate Balances are held to
meet commitments which fall in future years on specific items of expenditure.

Page 24



5.08

5.09

6.00
6.01

6.02

6.03

6.04

6.05

The Council also holds Specific Reserves which are set aside for a specific
future purpose.

Appendix 9 details the estimated closing balances for 2013/14 and 2014/15 in
respect of all reserves and balances. The Head of Finance is satisfied that the
level of these reserves is appropriate (see also section 7).

INVESTMENT STRATEGY

As reported to Cabinet in January the scale and ambition of the
Organisational Change and Redesign Programme will require significant initial
investment to make the changes happen. Therefore it is critical that the
Council has a robust investment strategy in place to provide the level of one-
off monies required to achieve:-

e Up front investment costs e.g. cost of reducing workforce numbers,
investment in technology.

e Transitional Funding for change which recognises the timing of
implementation in the first year.

The base budget is utilised to support the recurring costs of the Council and
the investment strategy is utilised to support the one —off costs to deliver the
budget proposals. Although these are two distinct elements of the budget,
they need to go hand in hand to both enable change and provide a robust
sustainable budget.

The total estimated one-off funding required to support the 2014/15 budget is
£6.250m and includes £4.800m (as detailed in appendix 5) to support the ‘up
front’ invest to save costs and £1.450m to provide the transitional funding to
take account of the timing of the implementation of some of the efficiency
proposals.

Review of Reserves and Balances

In order to maximise the resources available to the Council for future
investment costs, a review of all reserves and balances held has been
undertaken. The outcome of this review has identified additional potential
resources of £3.1m which are a mixture of items that have previously been set
aside that are no longer required and items whereby historical grant income
has not been entirely drawn down to match the eligible expenditure incurred.

Affordability

It can be seen from the table below that a combination of the utilisation of the
Single Status/Equal Pay Reserve and the Contingency Reserve will provide
total funding of £7.450m which is more than is required to fund the estimated
one-off funding requirement of £6.250m for 2014/15 as detailed in para 6.03.
In addition the council also holds the £3.1m identified through the review of
reserves and balances which will be a first call to mitigate the risks associated
with the contingency reserve and Single Status and Equal Pay Reserve.

Page 25



7.00

7.01

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

£m

Funding

Contingency Resetve (MB) 3.700

Use of Single Status/Equal Pay Reserve 3.760
7.450

Investment Costs

Workforce and VFM 4.800

Transitional Funding 1.450
6.250

Balance 1.200

Review of Reserves & Balances 3.100

CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER REPORT ON ESTIMATES AND RESERVES

Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 includes a specific duty on the
Chief Finance Officer to report to the Authority when it is considering its
Budget and Council Tax on the robustness of the estimates and the adequacy
of reserves. The Act requires the Council to have regard to this report in
making its decisions (the reference to the first person which follows is to the
Head of Finance in this role).

The 2014/15 budget has been set within the context of the Medium Term
Financial Plan which recognises a significant reduction in the funding
available to the Council from Welsh Government and the continuing effects of
the economic downturn on the local economy and citizens. The year on year
reduction of 4% in funding, is a real terms cut of some 6% or greater. The
Council's Organisational Redesign and Change Plan in response to the
financial pressures has been set out in detail for Members in successive
reports over the budget period.

The financial strategy for 2014/15 has been to robustly challenge need and
the cost of new pressures, target inflation and optimise all efficiency options.
This has been done through a risk based approach taking account of a
balance of risk and certainty. Central to the overall financial strategy has
been establishing an investment strategy to provide resource to deliver
change and recognise the timing of its implementation.

| confirm the reasonableness of the estimates contained in the proposed
budget, having regard to the Council's spending needs in 2014/15 and the
financial context within which the budget is being set. | also confirm that the
investment strategy is reasonable and affordable and supports the Council's
ability to deliver an ongoing programme of change which will deliver
efficiencies in the base budget.

Inevitably in managing a budget of this scale across a large and diverse
organisation variances will occur, but | believe that the budget assumptions
represent a measured and acceptable level of risk. A robust programme for
the delivery of the £11.950m of efficiencies within the budget and to the
timescales anticipated is essential. In addition, effective and disciplined in-

Page 26



7.06

8.00
8.01

8.02

8.03

8.04

8.05

year financial management will be key to ensuring that budgets are managed
effectively and prompt action taken to mitigate the impacts should variances
occur.

Within the context described above, | recommend that the Council should
maintain the level of general balances of £5.834m to safeguard its position
and be in a strong position to plan ahead to meet the financial challenges in
future years as set out in the Medium Term Financial Plan and to underpin its
ongoing programme of change. The level of reserves and balances is set out
in Section 5.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE REPORT

The budget strategy for 2014/15 is very different to that in previous years
given the unprecedented efficiency return which is required. The budget relies
in significant part on the implementation of major organisational change
programmes on time and to financial target.

The Council needs to be satisfied that these levels of financial efficiency are
achievable in proportion to the overall budget, and that the programmes of
organisational change are sufficiently advanced to achieve a financial return
by the second quarter of the new financial year.

The programmes of organisational change are not without risk and will require
decisive organisational action and careful management to be guided through
to fruition. The twin programmes of (1) the review of the corporate operating
model and senior management structure, followed by wider senior
management review, in two phases and (2) workforce review, are proceeding
on time and are being planned to achieve their respective financial targets.
The consultation on the first phase of (1) is underway for a final decision in
March.

There is a sufficient level of confidence that the efficiency targets are
achievable subject to the organisation meeting the deadlines set, and being
decisive at each step.

The budget strategy is based on the significant ‘front-loading’ of internalised
organisational efficiencies within 2014/15. For the medium-term strategy to be
achievable a broader base of service reform and prioritisation will be required
for 2015/16 onwards.

Page 27



9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

RECOMMENDATIONS

That the Cabinet makes the following recommendations to County Council on
18 February 2014:-

1.

9.

That the 2014/15 Council Fund Revenue Budget Requirement be set at
£253.718m (which is £1.423m below the calculated Standard Spending
Assessment) (4.01).

That there be a 3.0% increase in Council Tax at Band D and an assumed
99% collection rate (4.02).

The inclusion of the Outcome Agreement Grant of £1.458m in the budget
(4.03).

The levels of inflation assumed in the budget (4.04-4.06).

That items of non-standard inflation are only allocated out to services
when the actual increase in cost is known (4.05).

The amount of £0.092m included in the budget relating to a transfer into
the settiement (4.07).

The inclusion of £4.872m of recurring pressures in the budget (Appendix
4) and that any proposals to vary the use of the sums allocated are to be
the subject of a further report to Cabinet for consideration (4.08).

The inclusion of estimated one-off costs totalling £4.800m in the budget
(Appendix 5), to be funded in line with the Investment Strategy (section 6).

The inclusion of efficiencies of £11.950m in the budget (4.10).

10.The inclusion of efficiencies of £11.950m and that the achievement of all

efficiencies be monitored monthly and reported through the budget
monitoring report with any corrective action taken in-year as has been the
case in previous years. (4.10).

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

As set out throughout the report.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

Individual growth and efficiency items may have specific anti-poverty impacts.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

Individual growth and efficiency items may have specific environmental
impacts.

Page 28



13.00

13.01

14.00

14.01

14.02

14.03

14.04

14.05

14.06

15.00

156.01

16.00

16.01

EQUALITIES IMPACT

As set out in 3.18 — 3.23 of the report.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

There will be significant people implications arising from the workforce
elements of the Organisational Change Programme.

The Discretionary Compensation provisions have been reviewed to ensure
that redundancy entitlements offered are fair, are likely to incentivise
employees to express an interest in Voluntary Redundancy or Early Voluntary
Retirement, and are affordable for the Council.

Employees who are either displaced, or who leave the Council voluntarily, will
receive outplacement advice to support their transition into alternative
employment or a new career, or into retirement, which may include
opportunities to up-skill or retrain, business 'start up' advice, career
counselling and retirement planning guidance, depending on the
circumstances.

The Council will ensure that appropriate consultation arrangements are in
place, in conjunction with the Joint Trade Unions, for all affected employees in
line with statutory requirements and the Council's Organisational Change and
Redundancy Policy.

As detailed in section 6 there is a robust Investment Strategy in place to
ensure that the one-off costs associated with the workforce programme are
affordable within the context of the overall budget.

As detailed in section 3.18 — 3.23 work is also ongoing in relation to assessing
any equality impacts in relation to the workforce programme.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

Overview and Scrutiny, Business Ratepayers, School Budget Forum,
Flintshire Joint Trades Union Committee.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

Member Workshop (open to all members) held on the afternoon of 28t
January to consider the budget overview followed by Overview and Scrutiny
Committees held as follows:

28" January - Joint Housing (CF only) and Social & Healthcare

28" January - Environment

28" January - Corporate Resources (for Corporate Departments)

30" January - Lifelong Learning

3¢ February - Corporate Resources - Open to all members (to receive
feedback from other scrutiny meetings).

Page 29



16.02

16.03

16.04

16.05

17.00

17.01

Formal consultation held with the School Budget Forum on 23+ January.

Statutory consultation with Business Ratepayers undertaken in writing after
the Cabinet meeting with the largest businesses within Flintshire.

The budget proposals were discussed at a meeting with the Flintshire Joint
Trades Unions on 23rd January, as part of ongoing dialogue and information
sharing.

Formal consultation on review of corporate operating model underway and
consultation on other workforce proposals will be in accordance with the
detailed plans and timescales of the workforce programme taking account of
statutory requirements and local policy.

APPENDICES

As set out in the report.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer: Gary Ferguson
Telephone: (01352) 702271
Email: gary_ferguson@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 30



Appendix 1

Budget 2014/15
Council Fund - Revenue

Previous Years' Growth / ltems Dropping Out
2014/15 2014/15 2015/16

£m £m £m

APPROVED 2012/13 BUDGET
Community Services
Homecare - Increased complexity of care 0.100
Transition to Adulthood 0.975
Housing Renewal Agency - income 0.104
Management Efficiencies Through Collaborative Working (0.025)

1.154
Environment
Rental Income Shortfalls and NNDR charges for vacant properties 0.050
Environmental Waste Management - reduction in grant funding 0.047
Revenue Lost due to phased disposal of Agricultural Estates 0.026
Ground Water monitoring at former Castle Landfill site (0.005)
Continuation of 2011/12 Landfill Tax efficiency 0.000
Food Waste - increased diversion from landfill 0.004

0.122
Lifelong Learning
Transport Policy Review - rationalisation of non statutory entitiement 0.000
Saltney Library - Lease (0.010)

(0.010)

Corporate Services
Business Systems - Software Maintenance Costs 0.021
Prudential Borrowing Requirement for Capital Investment 0.169
Procurement Review 0.000
HR Management Information System (Phase 2) (0.003)

0.187

0.000

1.453

APPROVED 2013/14 BUDGET
Community Services
Mental Health - Additional Social Work support 0.010 0.000
Transition to Adulthood 0.129 1.239
Disabled Facillity Grants / Aids and Adaptations 0.016 0.000
Homelessness - timing of presentations 0.106 0.000
Children's Services - Removal of one team manager post (0.013) 0.000
Development and Resources - Rationalisation of Management Team (0.050) 0.000

0.198
Environment
Loss of Car Park Income 0.068 (0.002)
Highways Asset Management Plan (HAMP) -rephasing of full implementation 0.000 0.225
Review Management Recharge to the Communities First Programme 0.000 0.000
Agricultural Estates - balance not required 0.025 0.000
Licensing / Health & Safety - balance not required 0.025 0.000

0.118
Lifelong Learning
Staffing Budget Shortfall following restructure (0.017) 0.000
Free School Meals - increased demand 0.003 0.003
Review of post 16 distance limit 0.000 0.000
Review of Denominational transport provision (0.070) (0.030)
Youth Service - Building rationalisation (0.005) 0.000
Reduction of Postage within the Library Service (0.001) 0.000

Page 31



Appendix 1

Budget 2014/15
Council Fund - Revenue

Previous Years' Growth / ltems Dropping Out
2014/15 2014/15 2015/16

£m £m £m

School Transport Service - Operational efficiencies (0.040) 0.000

(0.130)
Council Wide
Revised Effect of Prudential Borrowing costs for agreed Capital Projects (change due
to revised interest rates and receipt of grant funding) 0.017 0.916

0.017

Corporate Services
Emergency Planning - collaborative working (0.025) 0.000
Information & Business services - use of LLPG (0.014) 0.000
Supplies and Services 0.010 0.000
Joint Working - costs reduction 0.002 0.000
Alterations / Improvements reductions - future agile working 0.002 0.000
Employee Safety Measures - reduced demand on budget (0.005) 0.000
Community Strategy / LSB partnership - reduction in planned requirements (0.005) 0.000

(0.035)
Elintshire Futures Programme
E-Procurement and Improved Processes (0.109) (0.056)
Assets Workstream - Office Rationalisation (0.077) 0.000
Customer Workstream - Channel Shift 0.000 (0.050)

(0.186)
Council-Wide
Income reduction - Vacation of former Council Offices , Ewloe 0.000 0.500

0.000
(0.018)

ONE OFF AND TIME-LIMITED PRESSURES
Lifelong Learning
School Modernisation Programme (0.025)
Schools Service Level Agreements (SLA's) (0.172)
Play Areas - Match Funding (0.035)

(0.232)
Corporate Services
Base Level of Reserves - 2% of Turnover (0.065)

{0.065)

{0.297)

Total Previous years items 1.138 2.745

Page 32



Appendix 2

Budget 2014/15
Council Fund - Revenue
Inflation
£m £m
Pay
Pay Inflation from April 2014 (1%) 1.316
1.316
Price
Targeted General Price Inflation (1.5% - 3%) 0.590
0.590
Non Standard
Energy - Street Lighting (8%) 0.093
Energy - Other (8%) 0.173
Fuel - (11.2%) 0.179
Food (5.8%) 0.188
Non Domestic Rates (2%) 0.037
0.670
Income (0.151)
Total Inflation 2.425

Page 33



Page 34



Budget 2014/15
Council Fund - Revenue

Transfers Into the Settlement

Transfers In to the Settlement

Council Tax Reduction Scheme (CTRS) Administration Subsidy

Transfers Into the Settlement

Page 35

Appendix 3

£m £m
0.092
0.092
0.092



Page 36



Appendix 4
Budget 2014/15
Council Fund - Revenue

Pressures & Investments - Summary
Recurring Items

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

£m £m £m
Total Welsh Government Policy / Legislative /
Regulatory (Appendix 4a) 2.844 5.094 6.651
Total Demand / Local Policy Decisions
(Appendix 4b) 2.028 3.633 10.159
Total 4.872 8.727 16.810

Page 37



Page 38



Appendix 4a

Budget 2014/15
Council Fund - Revenue

Pressures & Investments - Welsh Government Policy / Legislative / Regulatory

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

£m £m £m
Community Services
Independent Living Fund (ILF) estimate of
impact of transfer into RSG 0.000 0.450 0.450
Total Community Services 0.000 0.450 0.450

Environment

Reduction of Sustainable Waste Management Grant 0.308 0.308 0.308
Landfill Tax - increase cost per tonnage 0.256 0.309 0.362
Total Environment 0.564 0.617 0.670

Lifelong Learning
Free Swimming Initiative replacing reduction in grant 0.036 0.036 0.036

Total Lifelong Learning 0.036 0.036 0.036
Central & Corporate

Council Tax Reduction Scheme 0.633 0.633 0.633
Impact of Actuarial Valuation 0.991 2.738 4.242
Carbon Reduction Scheme 0.120 0.120 0.120
Fire Levy increase in contribution 0.063 0.063 0.063
Local Government Pension Scheme Reform 0.245 0.245 0.245
Highways Agency Programme (Year 3) 0.192 0.192 0.192
Total Central & Corporate 2.244 3.991 5.495
Total 2.844 5.094 6.651

Page 39



Page 40



Appendix 4b

Budget 2014/15
Council Fund - Revenue

Pressures & Investments - Demand / Local Policy Decisions

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

£m £m £m
Community Services
Increase in Direct Payments for Social Services for
Children 0.060 0.060 0.060
Increase in Foster Care Placements 0.250 0.250 0.250
Children's Out of County Placements 0.250 0.250 0.250
Well Check Increased contribution to service 0.040 0.040 0.040
Transition to Adulthood 0.000 0.000 0.700
Total Community Services 0.600 0.600 1.300
Lifelong Learning
Investment in Youth Service Provision 0.046 0.046 0.046
Remission Payments for School meals, trips &
uniforms 0.000 0.025 0.050
Leisure Centres 0.962 0.962 0.962
Total Lifelong Learning 1.008 1.033 1.058
Corporate Services
Additional cost of Child Protection cases 0.044 0.044 0.044
Total Corporate Services 0.044 0.044 0.044
Central & Corporate
Pensioners Grant 0.201 0.201 0.201
Matrix reduction of previous efficiency 0.115 0.115 0.1156
Flintshire Futures Asset Programme reduction of
previous efficiency 0.060 0.060 0.060
Single Status Agreement 0.000 0.000 5.801
Investment in Organisational Change 0.000 1.580 1.580
Total Central & Corporate 0.376 1.956 7.757
Total 2.028 3.633 10.159

Page 41



Page 42



Budget 2014/15
Council Fund - Revenue

One off Investment Costs
Summary
Senior Management

Phase 1 - Tier1 & 2
Phase 2 - Grades M1-M9

Workforce Scale Review
Grades Sc1-S0O2

VEM related
Community Services
Environment
Lifelong Learning
Corporate Services

Total one off costs

2014/15
£m

0.440
1.294

1.734

1.211

1.211

0.202
0.273
0.511

0.869

1.855

4.800

Page 43

Appendix 5



Page 44



APPENDIX 6a

Budget 2014/15
Council Fund - Revenue

Organisational Change Corporate Value for Money Programme

Procurement

. 2014/15 | 2015/16 | 2016/17
Directorate

£m £m £m

Community Services 0.107 0.107 0.107
Environment 0.456 0.456 0.456
Lifelong Learning 0.297 0.295 0.295
Total Corporate Services 0.237 0.237 0.237
Total Procurement 1.097 1.095 1.095
Back to Basics
Community Services 0.043 0.043 0.043
Environment 0.052 0.052 0.052
Lifelong Learning 0.068 0.068 0.068
Corporate Services 0.041 0.041 0.041
Total Back to Basics 0.204 0.204 0.204
Total Efficiencies 1.301 1.299 1.299

Page 45



Page 46



“sjualjo diysesjulodde Jo} Juswabeuew BWOooUI - S82IN0SAY
090°0 090°0 0£0°0 [eloueuly Joy Buibieyo jo [enquajod ay) alojdx] pue juawdojaraq sa01M8g Alunwwo)d| L
awooUl - SB0IN0SaY
¥¥0°0 ¥¥0°0 ¥¥0°0 ssao04d uoneoylienb 40D ay) jo ped se buibiey) pue juawdojansq s82IM8g AJlunwwiod| 04
sanunpoddQ AeQ
€L00 €100 €100 sojpualyl|  —sanigesig bululeaT s@oIMRS Ajunwwo) | 6
juswubijeal jeinjonss —
¥90°0 900 200 s)sod juswabeuew Ul UORONPaY [SHNPY JOJ SBJIAIBS |BID0S saoIneg AJunwwio)| 8
saolnas Ajjigesip
pue ajdoad 19p|0 ‘|SAd 10} S92IAISS [BUOHIPEL} UBY) sjuswAed 1081 —
9600 2.00 8v0'0 Jayjes s801M8s JuswAed Joaup Jo sjepdn sy} 8sealou|(S)Npy Joj SB2IAI8S [BID0S saoIneg Alunwwo)| 2
"S90IAIaS MalAaL pue Buipuny juelb 90IM9G d2NSN[* YINOA
0S0°0 0500 0500 asIWIXelwl 0) 90IAISS 1SN YINOA 89U} JO MBIABI Y - S9OIABS SuaIp|Iyd saoIneg Alunwiwo)| 9
SaI10UdI1Y ]
S9I10UBIDIYD UOIEPOWWOIDY
/€00 /€00 6100 Buiyers — saouO Aenp syeuuoD Jo UoneoBA - S92IAI8S SUaIpIYD s20IM9g AJunwwo)| ¢
‘JobeuewW 92IAISS B JO JUdWallal juswubijeal ainjonus
€500 €500 £60'0 8y} BuIMo||0} HOYOD 1321440 181} pIE ay) aunbyuooay — S$90IMBS Sualpiyd $90IM9S AlUunwwiod| ¢
S80I [BIIUBPISOY
‘Allewa)xa papiroid Ajunwwo?) paoueyuy
/€00 1€0°0 LE0'0 sasnoy Buial papoddns y jo Japus)-as Jo Buizisiybiy — sanjigesiq buiuiea $82IM9S AJlunwwo)d| €
‘fAyioeded pue pasu 8o1AI9S aleD ua] Hoys
€200 €200 €200 uo paseq s|aAa| Buiyess Joxiom joafoud Buizisiybry|  — semipgesig buiuies $20IM9S AJlunwwod| Z
“}S00 [BUOIJIPPE OU }B UOISIA0Id 90IAI9S MBU 8Y) UIYIM
pagJosge aq ued S)so9 ||eD uo jey) uondwnsse ay}
UNA IS0 JaBpnq |10} JO %6 Jo Aousiolye pajewns3
*2u0 0} 924y} WwoJ} s)sod Jabeue swoH aonpal
‘synpy ul Apealje Ayjioe} ||ed uo Buiall papoddns sy} a1eD wis] Hoys
0,00 /500 SH0'0 Buisinn siebeuely SWOH wWoyy s}sod [[ed uo sjeuiwn|3|  — sapiiqesiq buluies saoIneg AJunwwo)| |
w3 w3 w3 Alewwng jesodoad L VET ajelo}oalig peal|sed
21/9102 9L/51L02 Sliyloe ) )

q9 xipuaddy

awweiboud Aauoy 10} anjep [euonoung abueyd jeuonesiuebio

3ANUAAAY - pund |1IoUuno)
SL/vL0Z ¥96png

Page 47



000'C 000'C £88°L juswiuodiaug |ejo |
awuweiboid }s114 SaUNWWo) }sd14 SaIUNWWOoD)
0200 0200 0200 10} 99} Juswabeuel "JeaA JUALINI JO uoleNURUOD - uonelsusbay juswuoliaug| Gz
*S90IAIBS }0q
ssouoe sjuswabuese Buiyels pue juswabeuew pue Buiuue|d
0St'0 oS0 80%°0 lenuajod awoou ‘sassasoid Buneiado ay) Jo MalAaL Y pue uo1}99)01d 21iqnd juswuoliaug| vz
$)S00 20onpal pue AjjiqIxal 921MSs|  sjoenuo)) JuswAoldws
0Sy'0 0St'0 0St'0 9sBalou| 0] S}oRJUOD JuswAo|dwa [euoneiado Malnay — Buss)eaANS juswuoliaul| gz
0£0°0 0£0'0 0£0'0 sabJeyoal UoI08||00 8)SEM [EDIUIID JO M3IADY 2)SEe\\ - BUBIS)eaANS jawuolnaul| zz
llejjoo} yolew o} sinoy Bujusdo Buimaiaal
pue ayis Josohpues mau ay) Bulusdo 1a)e Asu)es
08L°0 0810 08L°0 Buisolo ybnoiy) uoisiaoid a)is DYH asljeuoney 9)SEM\ - BUIS)SBNS jswuolaug| L2
0€0°0 0£0°0 0£0°0 Hodsuel) a)sem 10} spoyiaw Juawaindod asiwndo QSe\\ - USSR juswuoliaul| oz
060°0 0600 060'0 Iwe)||V Je uonesijes)usd pue jodsq uAyjeH o ainso|) S}assy - 9ud0s)aaS juswuoliaug| 61
‘lepow Bunesado
pasiwndo ay) pue sjaas] buiyels pasinbai ‘saibiouls
UO SUOIIBPUBWIWOD3] S)BW ||IM SBaIE 90IAI8S S9OINIBS
om) 9y} Jo ansoubelp Bulobuo ay) - uonepodsues ) paje|ay sAemybiH
2 S]9SSY pue auaos}asallg uIyum Apuaund — uoneyodsuel |
00€°0 00€°0 6zZZ'0 saoInes paje|al sAemybiH Jo malaal Buidoos ao1neg SESSVA TR EET I juswuoliaug| gL
0S€'0 0S€0 0S€'0 (GL-7L0T) MaIABI 1984 WOl S8IoUdIDIYS JO ddueleg 193|4 - 8UdTs}I_IS juswuoliaug) L1
AIBAIIBp 821MBS peOY Yuni]
ay) jo Aouaiolyye ay) asealoul pue Juswalinbail jels
3y} 9onpal [|IM AIDAI[SP 821AI8S JO MaIABL Bulobuo sy
‘qnH Py YundL
0500 0G0°0 0S0°0 S9IEA 3N 8} UM JUSWSA|OAUI WOJ) Jyauaq |eldueul]|  VHLMN - SUSdS)9ais juswuodiaug) 91
$)S00 @onpal pue AjjIqIxal 90IAM8s|  sjoenuo?) JuswAodwg
0S0°0 0S0°0 0S0°0 9SBaIoU| 0} S}ORJUOD JuswAojdwa Je)s Malnay — 8Ud0S)83NS Juawuoliaug| G|
€590 919°0 €5¥°0 sa91A13g AJUnwwo?) |eyo
$80IM8S Joddng
LE0°0 /€00 6L0°0 amnnnsay|  Aunwwo) — Buisnoy s80IM8S AJlUnWWwo)| 1
¢c0'0 ¢c0'0 ¢c0'0 MBIASY 30IAIBG| uohelsiulwpy - buisnoH s9oIMeg Ajunwwod| ¢
sjassy —
%00 L¥0°0 ¥20°0 Ppi0j4 L] 0} syesd Auen)s3 Jo UOHEDO|aY [S)NPY 10} SBOIAIBS [BIO0S s@oIM8g Ajunwwio)| zZ1L
w3 3 3 Arewwng jesodoud LTV ETS ajelo)oaaiq pea|jay
L1/9102 91/510¢ SLivi02 ) )

qg xipuaddy

Page 48



ssao0.d oneloowsap pue Bupum podai ‘s10|(1ouUnod
0} uonewuoju pue poddns ‘Auniog ‘Juswabeue|y S92IAIDS JljelIoowa(

LyL0 L0 LEO0 Jojuag pue diysiapear 0} poddns Jo UoISINn0Id MBIADY pue aA)Ndaxy J9Iyo saoIneg ajelodio)| o
ov0°0 ov0'0 oy0'0 [1oUN0D JNOA AjluNWwwo) JNOA JO uoonpold paonpay aAIN03X 3 JaIyD 90198 8)es0dio)| 6E
‘uonesiuebio ay} ssoioe soljiAoe
$£0°0 v£0°0 ¥€0°0 SUONEOIUNLWIWOD pue BunayJew/sjuaad JO MaIAaY 9AIIN22X3 JAIYD saoineg djeiodio)| 8¢

sleysibal -
01070 0L0°0 0L00 sjuswabuelie Bupom Jo maiInay [seo1neS Jawoisn) @ 1| saoIneg sjelodio)| /€
Lyl Liv'L 86¢’| Buiuiea] Buojaji |eyoL
G200 G200 G200 S9I0UBI0IYS SaljlusWIE pue spunolb |euonealosy ainsian Buiuses buody| 9¢
$92IN0S9Y
0L0°0 0L0°0 0L0°0 poddns ssauisng pue juswdojaraq Buiwes Buody| g€
S92IN0S9Y
SL0°0 SL0°0 S10°0 811e3y} YINOA pue yuswdojareg Bujusea Buojay| ve
$90IN0SaY
€000 €00°0 €00°0 saloualolye poddns jidnd pue juswdojaaaq Buiuwiea Buoldy| €€
$82IN0SaYy
¥00°0 $00°0 000 $210UaI01Y)d Hodsuel) |ooyos pue Juswdojara( Buiuwiea Buojdy| 2¢€
0420 0420 0.2°0 sjuswabuelle J8A0D pue sejos 0} sebueyd ainsioT Buiuiea buody| Le
0500 0G0°0 0500 pun 3oog AJeigiT ul uojoNpay 9oIMag Aeiqi Bujusea Buoey| og
a2IMBg Adeiq]
0eL’0 0€L’0 l€L0 |00YIS S8|BM }SB3 YUON O} UOHNgUIUOD JO M3IASY aoIMeg Aeiqi Buiuiea buojay| 62
‘Awouoine |00yos pue Buppom Ajleoo| buisealoul
ybnouyy ajdoad BunoA pue uaip|iyo s|gelaujna
LL9°0 LL9°0 €60 10} UONUBAIB)UI BAI}OBYS pue |BoO| ‘AJee Buunosg S92IAI8S UOISN|OU| Bujuses buojay| 8z
UspIeMBH pUB JUBUOIS)
‘uojelue|) AI9AII9P dul| JUOL) SSIWIXBW O} SPEaYISA0
yuswabeuew pue Buiping Buionpai ‘Buyom s|ibe S90IAIBS
€LL0 €LL'0 190°0 ybnouy) Aaaljap ao1nas YinoA aulf uoly Buiseasou| Alunww o) pue YinoA Buiuwies Buojay| 22
"SWIO0ISSE[D 3[IqO[\ puUB d2uelnsu|
‘LDl ‘eo1nag 2ISni ‘Juswiapiua Alue3 “sawooino
wapn)s aAlisod Joj Ajjigejunodde o) yoeoidde
}snqod }nq pauljwead)s e ulypm Awouojne |00Yyos pue
ovzZ0 ovz0 0620 Buniom Ayjeoo| Buiseaoul ‘Asuoly 1oy anjep buunosg S|00YOS 0} S8JIAIDS Buiusea buojay| 9z
‘3 w3 w3 Aiewwng jesodoud CLITVETS ajel0)0aliq pea |y
21/9102 91/5102 SLivi0oC ) )

q9 xipuaddy

Page 49



[4:14:] Sv'8 6€S°L W4dA leuoljoung |ejol
S6L°¢ S6lL°C 268’ €1/210¢ 10} LIN}-INO |Bulj JO MIIASY $80IM9g Ajunwiwio | 0g
€91°¢ €91°¢C £60°C SadlAl8g djelodio) |ejo L
SyL0 ShL0 SyL'0 V|1D Ul WODUI JUSW)SOAUI JO MBIADY adueul4 s201M9g 9je10di0))| 61
‘sjuswiAed Buisnop A1euonalosiq JO |9A3)
08€°0 08€°0 08€°0 paJsinbai }9aw 0} Aouaioiya Apisqng Jauag bBuisnoy aoueul4 sa0In9g djelodio)| gy
1200 1200 1200 $910U8101}}2 JUBWdO[OABP B2I0IOAA ao % duH saoIMeg sjelodio)| v
0L0°0 0L00 0L00 ssauIsng YjjeaH [euonednad) wol) dwooul 9sealou| ao % 4H s90IM9S ajelodio)| 9y
CERINELS
090°0 0900 090°0 90In8s BulpueAaauoo paseyg|  onesoowaq pue [eba $921M9G 9je10di0)| G
SS0°0 SS0°0 SS0°0 uononpal Apisgns nJWAD seay) pAmiD BAIINOAXT JBIYD S90IMRG djelodio]| vi
suonenobsaual 19eU0D puB UOBUILLD)
Z61L°0 2610 2610 aseg| Juswdinba 0} paje|al saIouBIdYT 9IS |S0IAIBS JBWOISND @ 1 DI $901M9g djei0dio)| €
[1ouno0) ay) ssosoe ABojouyosy panosdw jo ynsal| uonesiueblo sy} ssoloe
0004 000°L 000°L e se s9ss8001d / $8|0J UONBIISIUIWPY |[B JO MBIASY|  uoddns uonessiuiwpy s$90IM9S ajelodio)| gy
90UBUWLOHOH
"HIOM ,80UBWIOND, Buiuoddns uj paAjoAUl S82JN0Sal pue sdiysisuped
G200 G100 G100 pue UoIJeUIPIO-00 ‘ssa001d Ul S3IoUBIDIE MBIAY | ‘Adlj0d — 8AIINDaX T JBIYD sa901M9G dje10dio)| Ly
3 ‘3 w3 Arewwng jesodoud ERTTVET ajesojoaliq pea|oy
L1/9102 9L/S5102 SLivioe ) )

qg9 xipuaddy

Page 50



Budget 2014/15
Council Fund - Revenue

Workforce Efficiencies
Organisational Design

Structure and Operating Model
Phase 1 - Tier1 & 2
Phase 2 - Grades M1-M9

Workforce Scale Review
Total Organisational Design
Cost of Employment
Professional Subscriptions

Disturbance Travel
Subsistance Allowance

Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS)

Overtime
Total cost of Employment

Total Workforce Efficiencies

Appendix 6¢

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
£m £m £m
0.460 0.600 0.600
0.990 1.400 1.400
1.500 1.500 1.500
2.950 3.500 3.500
0.024 0.024 0.024
0.005 0.005 0.005
0.054 0.054 0.054
0.030 0.030 0.030
0.047 0.047 0.047
0.160 0.160 0.160
3.110 3.660 3.660

Page 51



Page 52



Budget 2014/15

Council Fund - Revenue

Specific Grants

Lifelong
Learning
Non Delegated

Delegated

Community

Environment

Corporate
Services

Total

Basic Skills

Community Learning

Community Focussed Schools

Welsh Baccalureate

Families First

Education of Travellers

Foundation Phase

Free School Milk

Free Swimming

Funding for Youth Work Training in Wales
Learning Pathways 14-19

Minority Ethnic Achievement

National Exercise Referral

NE Wales Play Forum

School Effectiveness Grant

Pupil Deprivation Grant

Active Young People

School Uniform Financial Assistance Scheme
Unlocking the Potential of Special Schools
Youth Service Revenue Grant

Welsh Language (Athrowen Bro & WEG)
Welsh Medium Bilingual Grant

Welsh in Education

Welsh Network of Healthy School Schemes
Flying Start

National Literacy Tests

DCELLS (Post 16 provision in schools)

Social Care Workforce Development Programme

Supporting People

Well Being Activity

Flying Start

Implementation of Mental Health Act 2007
Youth Service Community Service Grants
YOT / Youth Justice Board

Communities First

Concessionary Travel

Crime Reduction and Anti Social Behaviour
Domestic Abuse Co-ordinator Funding
Local Transport Services

Planning - Delivering for Wales

Safer Communities Fund

Food Hygiene Rating

Animal Health & Welfare Enforcement
Substance Misuse

Tidy Towns

Sustainable Waste Management

LSB Development Support Grant

Budget Revised Budget Projection Variance to
2013-14 2013-14 2014-15 2013-14
£ £ £ £
316,000 137,526 137,526 0
3,311 3,311 3,311 0
0 97,877 97,877 0
0 61,740 61,740 0
1,735,118 1,735,285 1,735,285 0
89,687 70,673 70,673 0
5,060,777 5,019,976 4,949,746 (70,230)
179,773 179,773 179,773 0
164,807 164,807 156,567 (8,240)
22,000 22,000 22,000 0
664,080 636,937 360,000 (276,937)
106,913 134,434 128,032 (6,402)
125,000 125,000 118,750 {6,250)
61,660 340,086 340,086 0
1,078,580 1,403,508 1,403,508 0
0 1,251,450 2,295,918 1,044,468
0 463,018 439,867 (23,151)
30,080 30,080 30,487 407
45,572 45,572 0 (45,572)
90,330 114,877 126,756 11,879
226,611 0 0 0
46,940 0 0 0
0 224,638 215,374 (9.264)
87,320 87,320 87,320 0
1,652,623 1,652,623 0 (1,652,623)
0 35,450 35,450 0
11,787,182 14,037,961 12,996,046 (1,041,915)
6,025,131 6,085,382 5,935,481 (149,901)
6,025,131 6,085,382 5,935,481 (149,901)
346,969 346,969 356,833 9,864
6,824,935 6,824,935 6,483,688 (341,247)
25,000 10,000 10,000 0
0 0 2,722,790 2,722,790
12,770 12,770 0 (12,770)
60,851 60,851 0 (60,851)
327,280 327,280 327,280 0
7,597,805 7,582,805 9,900,591 2,317,786
708,911 708,911 708,911 0
1,970,427 1,970,427 1,991,843 21,416
144,461 144,461 121,203 (23.258)
27,500 27,500 27,500 0
399,062 399,062 399,062 0
70,000 70,000 20,000 (50,000)
221,882 221,882 76,868 (145,014)
0 0 5,969 5,969
0 0 15,646 15,646
926,141 926,141 293,353 (632,788)
81,742 81,742 0 (81,742)
3,287,189 3,287,189 2,976,172 (311,017)
7,837,315 7,837,315 6,636,527 (1,200,788)
50,000 50,000 50,000 0
50,000 50,000 50,000 0
33,297,433 35,593,463 35,518,645 (74,818)

Page 53

Appendix 7

Confirmed (C)
or Estimated (E)

mommooooomommmoOmMmmMmMmMmMOMmMMmMMmMmMmMmMmMmm

m

mooomoo

momoommmoOmmm



Page 54



]JO BUO J98W 0] JUSLWISOAUI JO [9AS]| B)enbape ue aAey am
alns ayew 0] SaAlasal ||e Jo Aemuapun maiaas ybnoioy

B OS|e S| 919y 'S}SOD d2JOPUOM [e)0} 0} yoeoidde
9A1}09]|00 & Jo Jed se uones)eyded Aed jenba ayy asi|in
0} S| ABajel)s JuswysaAul 8y "S}s09 JIxa Buipn|oul s}s00
JJO BUO 198W 0} S| pUB SBAISSDI JO |9A8] dseq palinbal sy}

"SIy} uo Jybnos uoeae)
i1o} pasn aq 0} )l Joy asodind oyioads e aiay) s| ‘Aed |enbs

9AOQe puE JBAO Junowe ay} s 9AI9sal Aouabunuod ay| W/ e3 pue Aousbunuod Wy €3 JO SOAIOSaY WOlj JUBWISaAU] | ]
‘pJemuoy Buiob uonelapisuod $1e6pnq
SJaqUIB\ 10§ SUOISIOBP BU} JO BUO 3] ||IM SIU} ‘S8DIAISS 8y} ul jey; Jo jiejap ou aidy} si AYpy  cuoisinoid [eulsxe
uoISSILIWOD pue apiaold am moy o} uonejal uj -os Bulop A 1S02 8snoy ul Jo apew sem uosuedwod e alsym a8)ioD
ale pue suoijdo ||e Je 00| 0} SNUUOD [|IM dM aininy 8y} U| snoinald B je passnosip uaaq oAeY SIS00 YjeaH [BJUSN | €L
"90IAI9S 88099 8y} SI SIU} Jo djdwexd ¢£,8S8Y} 0} S}hO )W Jouued am uesw Sy} S90p pue
UB M3IASJ Japun AJJUBJSUOD a1B SaINJUSA aAl}eloqe||oo |V Aym — 196pnQ SIY} UIY}IM SBINJUSA SANJEIOGE([0D JO UOJUBW ON | Z'L
‘gslie Aay] se sanss| ssalppe 0} sn sajqeus
yolym aoe|d ul swalsAs aney am ‘Jeak ay} Inoybnoiy) ;ybnous 1snqoi sysu asay} Buuojuow oy soeid
pue peaye JeaA ay) ul 1oedwi Aew Jey) sysl 8y} ul Wa)sAs 8y} S| S8dIMBS sualpjiy) punose Auenoiped
Wbybiy am ‘ssaooud Buipas 196pnq ay) Jo 800 a8y} Iy Sysu Jojuow 0} aoejd ul swajsAs ay) Jnoge Jybnos soueinssy | ||
SONSS| / SjusWiWo) [eJauads) | 'L
Sonss| / SjuawWio) Yj[eaH g |BI20S '@ bUISNOH JUiof | 0°L
:sasuodsay :suosany pue sjuawwo) ‘ON

S1/¥10Z S|esodoid 1obpng [ERIU] - (REoH @ [e190S® BUISNOH Julof

ANILNYIS '®@ MIIAYIAO

g xipuaddy

Page 55



-nodal 186pnq |euly 10} pasLiobaled aq jIIm asay |

-gonjoeud yuswsainooud
paAocidwl Wol} S}SOO Ul SSEalosp B JO Jnsal B se
pasijeal sem JEeG3 Jo Aousioiys ue ‘sjuswadeld Ajuno)d
Jo QO sualpjiyD uiyupn sdiysuelpsent  jeioeds pue
S9OUBpISal 10} SISPIO UNOD JO }SOO pasealoul pue aie)d
19)S04 JO S)S0O pasealoul ay} jesw 0} wes) juswade|d
Aiwe4 sy} Joj panoidde sem yQL L3 jeuolippe ue y1/gL U

"S9IINISS
8say] Jo ainjeu pa| puewap ay} usAlb ainbly sjuswade|d
Auno) JO INO 8y} pue Siy} JO [9A8] 8y} Uo udye} aq 0]
pey sey yoeoidde paseq }suU ¥ ‘92IAI9S BY} UO puewap
Jua1ind uo paseq sI ainby sjuswaoeld aie) 19)S04 8yl

£Siyy sI Aym — podail 1o6pnq siesA snoinaid
Jad se sauobaieo ojul ids Jou S| SJUBWISBAU| pue sainssald

¥ L/SL Ul @sealoul 8y} Sem Jeyp

‘puewap ay} }oaw 0} ybnous
sjunowe ay)} ale ‘sjuswade|d Ajuno) Jo IO s.uaipiyd
pue oaje) 19)s04 Jo} sainssaid 8y} O} Suaidjel UNM

seinssaid

€¢c

[AYA

L¢

0¢C

"S]S0D

:sasuodsay

:suoljsanp pue sjuswwo)

‘ON

S1/¥10Z Sjesodoid jobpng [EnIU[ - (pJeoH @ [e100S BUISNOH Julof

ANLLNYDS ? MIINHIAO

g Xipuaddy

Page 56



ON =

papinoid 8q 0} uoljewIojul Jayuny

‘pauoddns aq ||Im siasn 92IAI8S pue
Jouiw aq Ajuo jim asay} Jng s)sod podsued) uo joedw ue
aq Aew alay] "UolED0] 00 By} 0} Bnp S)sO2 Juswabeuew
Ul uoloNpal B JO JNSal B Se S| }pZF 9yl °Slosh 80iAI8S
Jo} juswuoiiaue ajeudoidde aiow pue Jopaq e sapinoid
aAOW B8Yy] "9dIAIBS Byl uiyum Buipuny wouy papiroid
usaq sey bBuipjing a8y} ysiginjol 0} juswisaaul jepded

‘slasn 9oIA9s
10J SaW021N0 aAoidwi O} pUe JusldlYd aiow aq 0} ‘a|qissod
aJoym ‘anoidwi 0} Osje Jng S9oIAISS 109)0id O} S| Wik 9y =

"M3IASI
196pnq 8y} woly dwexs aq ued Buyjou pue joedwl
ue JNOYIM Jow aq ued ADUSIoIYd JO |9AS| 8yl "9dIAIBS
20NsNf YInoA ay} uiyyum Buipuny 0} uoinquiuod juedyiubis
e Buipinoid i3S ale aiysjul4 9dIss 8y} ol Asuow
aJow nd 0] pajuem Ady] JI SpIOBP 0} padU PINOM SISQUIBIN =

S| juswabeueyy ui UoONpPal Yim 8jeds pajuspadaidun ue Jo
selous|olye ale alay) ‘eoias Ajigesiq BuluiesT syl UIyHM

£,SUO0I10BUUO0Y) B[}SeD 0} Jeau Jul|4 Ul 8)IS Jou pue ppiojd U]
Aym Inq ‘paAow aq 0} spaau syeln Aienis3 jey) juswaaiby

£,Uo1eo0| MU
e 0} 06 0] paau MOU |jIM OUYM SI9SN dIIAISS 10} S}S02 podsuel)
ay) pue ‘Buipjing ay} Buibueyos jo 1s0d sy} Jnoge jeym Inq
ArZ3 jJo Aousiolys jlews e si Siyl ‘pplojd UL Yim pajedo| 0d
aq 0} syeln Auenys3 Buinow wouy Aousiolyse ay) 0} uoiejdl uj

£, S92IAI9S UO Ajosianpe
1oedwi JoU |IM SBIOoUBIOIYS JO |9A8] ddjuelenb am ue)d

éxoeq
nd 8q 0} 9|ge 8q JI ||IM ‘SDIAISS BY) UO JOdje 9SI9Ape Ue sey
J § "OOIIBS SOUSN YINOA BU) UIYIM 40G3 Jo Aousioe INAA

sepuaIdIlg

G'¢

e

€e

[A>

L€

:sasuodsay

:SUOISaNY pue SjUaWWO)

‘ON

G1/v10Z s|esodoid jobpng [ERIU[ - (BIEoH @ [e190S® BUISNOH Juiof:

ANILNYOS ® M3IAYIAO

g xipuaddy

Page 57



8y} JoJ eouapuadapul Bunsua usam}aq aouejeq yy ‘siasn
80IAJ9S 10} SBWO0DINO0 JO MaIAB] YBNoJoy) & SBAJ0AUl SIYL

‘a|qissod se Jualoiye se Bulag aie am ainsud 0} "] °| Jo d8sn
Jayaq pue |oJjuod Jo sueds ay} je }0oj| 0} pasu e s| alay|
"S)lJauaq 99IAI8s SS0IO awos uleb o) sn ajqeus Aouaiolye
ay} g Ayoedes sjenbepe ainsus 0} pssu e s| aiay]l

*A|uo s)s09 Buiyels

"aJed Jo aseyoind sy} ybnouyy saointas BulaAljap Uo si
ainjpuadxa ulew ay} aie) [e1oos U] ‘qny Bujuoissiwwos
saleM\ YWON 8y} ybnouyy sayoeoidde  yjesH
|EJUB)N pue enuswa( pue sadlAueS Apjigesiq BuluiesT
6o Buluoissiuwos uo sbuines ayew saop ale) |elooS

suolosfoid
sieak 9aly] IXau 8y} Ojul }INg ale SJusld uolIsuel}
Jo} s)seoalo) sJeaA ainingd  CApualtayip sbuiyy Buiop
AQ ¥1/€£102 Ul panalyoe uaaq Apealje sey Aouasiolje ayl

‘pebeuew s| 92JAI8S BY)
Aem 8y pue sejol 0} sabueyo noge s| Aousiolys ay} ‘oN

- Buizisyybu, Jo uoneue|dxa ue pasN

£,9SBD 9y] 8 1By} UBD MOH ‘82IAI8s Ul uondnisip
ou S| aioy} suesw sIy} jeyy uondwnsse auplg Byl yum
s)n9o Juswabeuew o) a)ejal Jey) salousloIyd Auew ale alay]

¢S1s02 Buipjing
Jo Buyjess Joj sao14o Aenp syeuuoD 0] paxyull Aouaiole ay} S|

iaien
[B190S Japun pajsi| salousiolye Juswalnoold ou a1ayy si AYM

¢$,S8OIAIBS NPy 0} S,uaIp|IyD wolj Buinow sjenpiAlpul
uo 1oedwl Ou SABY [M SOJIAISS [BUOIlISURI) 0} pajejal
SI YoIum ZzZg3F Jo Aousioiye 8y} Jey) painsse ag am ued

¢,80IAI8s 8y) Buiaieoal s1asn 821AI8S JO Jaquinu a8y uo 1oedw)
ue aABY 92IAI9S 8l WIS | MOYS By} Ul Sa10uaione ayl NIIM

ialen wia]
HOYS yum op o} osje Juswabeueyy jeinjonis, Aousioiye ay)

[ >

oL'e

6'¢

8¢

L€

9¢

:sasuodsay

:SUOI}SaNT) pue SjUBWIWOY)

‘N

S1/¥10¢ s|esodold jobpng [ERIU[ - (pJeoH @ [e100SR BUISNOoH julof

ANILNYIS ® MIIAYIAO

g Xipuaddy

Page 58



"90IAI9S ¢,019y pajsabbns Buiaq si jeym Jesjo
ay) Joj Yoam Jad g3 jo Buibieyo Apjeam o) sejejal sIyl JoN ‘sdiysAindeq — awooul sedinosay pue juswdojaasq | ZL'€
'ss9001d sy} Jo Led se uaye) ale Ajojes
Jisy) uleluiew o} 24e29|9) se yons saliunuoddo Buisiin
pue sasinu jsijernads pue S1a)JIoM [e1o0s BulajoAul uosiad
:sasuodsay :SUOIISaNY pue sjuU3WWo) -ON

S1/¥10Z Siesodoid 1obpng [ERIU| - (pIeoH @ [e100S BUISNOH Julof

ANILNYIS B MIIAHGIAO

8 xijpuaddy

Page 59



Page 60



‘souewiopad Bulphoal
uo AjpAnebau joedwi pinod sy — Apublupo) ino nd
8Q 0] 8ABY pjnOM SWOS Jey} ueaw pinom uonssbbns siyy
sealaym ‘Apjoem palos||0o Ajjuaiind ale saje|ohdal jje se
olignd auj Jo} anss| AJlIe|D B 8)eald OS|e pjnoM )| “juswow
8y} 1e Aep ay} JO pua 8y} Je ||n} aJe spunoJ jeu} usAlb ‘uo
s9[oIyaA eljxa Buijnd uesw pjnom ) se ‘sanss| Aousiole
ajealo pinom sonseld 109jj00 am Aem sy} sbueyo o]

Bunssw ayy Jo apisjno Buimouloq
0} Bunejey anssi oyoads ay) pesiel oym Jaquisi\ 8y}
YlIiM SNsSS| U0 UOIBOLEBID 893S |IIMm 103081i0 3yl Ssiu} 0}
uone|as ul syebie) ay} aie os ng Buiseaioul si Buljohoay
‘s|oA8| BuljoAoal pue |aAs| mau ay) Je abeuuo} uoneoldde
Buiuueld ay; usamieq uoOyeBIIOD OU S| 8i8y} ON

WVETNIEToR=RIIVEETS
paAoidwil ul }nsal pjnoys Yolym swies} om] JOo Uoleulpio
-00 Japeq ybnouyy sseouejsul yons sbeuew 0} JoIsed
Jl 9)ew p|noys Ssiy} pue usasaloy) Jou ale swalqosd yong

¢Anybrupo} o} uonos||0d
a)sem onseld Jo Aousnbaly sy} abueyd 0} dlWOUoIs dIow
aq U pinom ‘saoud BupAoas onseld jJo Ayjnejoa syl 0} ang

0093 O sjuswsaiinbai Bumo.ioq |enuaprud
snoinaid 0]} spew sem adualaey ¢ Buldhoal Jo S|aAl)
pajoadxa ay} Buios||00 Jou aie 9m 8snedaq Jeyl S| "Sauuo}
3¢ JoJ sI uopeoidde mau 8y} JNg SBUUO] YG'G 10} SeM 6002
ul Aisnoinaid Buluueld Joy uoneoyddy — yoioApues a)S OHH

ésojoyjod Buleday
‘6@ sjueploul 0} sasuodsas ul sAejap 0} pes| S8JIAISS
dn Buiuiol pjnom ‘layjeam juswouUl SB Yons saoueisul
UM "S80IAISS Udamlaq uoijeloqeljod a9s 0} Buisesid si )

SoNnssS| / SjUaWILLO)) JUSWUOIIAUT

€l

Al

Ll

0L

:sasuodsay

:suoIsany) pue suAWWOH

‘ON

S1/710Z S|esodoid jebpng [enIU] - JUSWUOIIAUT

ANILNYOS ? M3IAY3AO

8 Xipuaddy

Page 61



anp si as|)iwwo) mc_ccm_n_ 0] uoieoldde ue ng 194 J0N ¢,80IA18S 10} Apeal siy} S| — 9)IS YoIOApUBS OHH | '€
"UMOUY S| UOIJBULIOUI BY} UBYM 10j|1ouno) ay)
wJiojul 0} J0joaIIQ "JUSWOW By} Je umouy jou saiuedwod £UI01) 311y pInom oM OUyM paijijuapl om aAey ng aapsod
allH ",8JIH 10} Yiomauwel ssjep\ |1, Sy} BIA 3Q |Iim SIY] AaA sI swnumop %0¢ @y} Buionpal woly sapusole 19914 | €'¢
"Su JO
Bunjew jyoud eale ue se pasiubooal aq 0} SpasN ‘jojuod }sad 0} Buielel
-Uou 8q pue 32IAI8S By} JO ]SO0 8y} 109|)8] 0} poau so94 swajqoid yum Bulesp uaym sjuapisal 0} sabieyd pasealoul
"%G uey} Jajealb aq jou jjm 8say} Jnq asealdul |[IM s894 ul }ynsal Aew siYy} }Jey} pasiel uiaduod — uolsjold aignd Z2'¢
"SIY} UO JOjj1ounoy) 8y} 0} |iejap Jayuny apiaoid
0] J0)08lI(] 'B|qIXd}} alow swes] Bupjew pue adiAIes ay} ‘Ajanjoays pabeuew aq 0} Spesu — 92IAI9S
uiyum yels Aouabe jo Jaquinu ay) Buionpas uo paijusd si 8y} uo joedwi aaljebau e ueaw jou ||IMm } Jey) pue pasodoud
} "92IAISS B} U0 Joeduwll 8SIBAPE UB JNOYYM palaAlap aq Aousiole Jo |9A8] Byl jnoge ybnos si aoueinssy  ‘dn
ued )i Jey) 90UspIU0D S| a1ay) Ing Aouaioiye Aay e si SIy| Buiuiol jJo }oe| e Sem alay} paonpoljul SBm Budds}ealS UBYM | L'E
sappuay3 | 0°¢
‘¥1/2/€ bunesw
Auljniog pue malnBAQ 0} oeqgpas) Jo ped se pepinold ‘Jeak
sem osuodsal Yy ‘pepinoid 8gq 0} uonewlojul Jayundg 1se| uey} ssa] Aym 0} se pausanb junowe uonepur Abisugz | zZ2
£ Pasealoul sey auuo)
Jad 1s00 ay} ybnoyj usAe a)sem |enpisal Jo abeuuo} ay)
SOA Ul uoionpal B Jo9jal SIY} S0P — aINSSald OISBA\ |enpisoy 12
sainssald | 02
:sasuodsay :suolsanNY pue sjuUaWWo) ‘ON

GL/v10Z slesodold }abpng [eniu] - Jusiiuoliaug

ANILNYIS B MIIAYIAO

g Xipuaddy

Page 62



uieljuiew s pue ([esodoud 8y} jedw o0} Apjige
8y}l ul 9ouapyuoo s| a1ay) ‘panocidwi sey souewsoped
pue pabeuew Ajaso|o s 9oIM8s 8y “Aj|eduolsiy 82IAI8s
ay} uiypm ainssaid usaq sey aiay) jeyy pasiubooal si }

"S9I0UBIOIYD
ul Aisaljep Buneiyoe jo piodas oely poob e aAey
JuswuoliAug pue sabueyo noge bBuuq o) ueld uoljoe
ue padojoasp sey 929G 9yl -ojesado am jey) Aem
8y}l Ulyum palaAlap aq ued Aay} moy o} ui Ind ussq sey
ybnoy) pue awi Jano padojaasp usaq aAey sjesodoid

MBIAB] BY] UIYIM papnjoul aJe S}osse ||y

Buiuiesy ooads
siy} @oeiqwa 0} saniunuoddo dn Buissed jJo piodal ON

‘$994 Buluueld JO MaInal B 0}
papIWwWoD aAey A ‘liig Buluueld ay} jo ped sy [1ouno)
8} JO |0Jju0D 8y} Japun Jou Os Ajjeuoijeu }as aie S99

pJeog yjeaH ayj buibieyoas Apease
ale DgoH weyxaip) ‘Aed 0} Juswoalbe S| aiay) pue S

‘uado S| BUO SIY} IIUN B8SOJD JOU ||IM SBJIS JBYIO "YdJB ul

£.s9buByD 89S0} JOAIDP UBD SM JUSPLUOD

om aly -aunssaid Jepun usaq Ajeouolsly sey Buluueld

£ajqeuleisns aq jou Aew siy} ‘pabueyo jou aie sassaoold
JI @sneoaq us)euspun udaq sey Buussulbus-ai ssauisng
uo yJom yonw moH -abueyd pides si pesodoid Buiaq si Jeym

¢ awwelbold uonesijeuoney ayj Jo ped se palspisuod
aq Buiuiea Buody] ulypm Aue |ipA ‘SIesSy Aunwiwo)d

‘sJuswalinbal Bujuiel) jsijeroads— s}so9 199)4

¢dn Buiob aq asay) |Im — soa) uoleoldde Buuueld Jo 150D

¢ pabieyo aq oy bulob
ale Aay} Jey) aieme pieog UjesH 9y} aly — SISBAA [eoIuljD

ol'e

6'¢

8¢

L€

o¢

Ge

:sasuodsay

:SUOI}SaNY pue SUaWWOoY)

GLI¥ 102 slesodold }abpng [eniu] - Juswiuoliaug

ANILNYIS '®@ MIIAYIAO

g xipuaddy

Page 63



"0} $JS00 Buiuuni jeisuab ¢ Aouaiolye ayy o} ppe Aay) op moy — sjodep bBuisol) | ZL'e
‘SN ‘92IOPHOM B|gIXd|} JO UOBUIqWOD B S| 81y
"Hoday jaulqe) €1.0g JoquSAON

ay} ul papnpoul sjesodoid ay} jJo ¢ aseyd jJo ped se ¢Annoe) doys)Jom Jo pos awos ag a1ayl Im —189(4 | LL'E
yolepy ul jauiqe)d o} doeq ybnoiq aq [jIm yolym suoldo
‘aouewlouad

:sasuodsay :suosanY pue sjusawWWo?) -ON

GL/Y1L0Z Sjesodold 19bpng jeniuj - JuswuoJdiAug

ANILNYOS ® MIIAYIAO

g Xipuaddy

Page 64



‘puoAaq pue g/G10g 10} suoljesspisuod
90IAI8s alnjny Jo Led se Malnal 0] 193[gns aq ||Im 8dIAIeS
ay} pue uonisod a|qeuleisns B jou S| SIU} INq  ‘wWis)
HOUS 8y} ul 891A18s a8y} Hoddns 0} w3 jsowle Bunssaul
S| Iouno) 8yl pajosfoid se usaqg jou pey souepusje
2INSI9T puE BWOJUl OS puB UINJUMOP B palayns sey
Awouods ay) ‘uolyisod ains|a ||eJdA0 8y} 0} asuodsal u|

‘Alerelo0dioo Jaw Bulag mou ale s)sod ayj ‘18bpng

e |IM "Hodal 1auige) 8y} 4O /L'g eied SBJIAISS aINs|aT] e

illem se sieak ainjny ul apew aq juswdAed |eyded ped

S82IAI2S 2INsiaT] 8y} Jnoge Suladuod snolnald Jo esnedaqg vl
‘sieak ainjny Jo suoleiapisuod Bujobuo
ino jo ped se pamalnal aq M SIY} Ing sieaA aininy o}
ul uwrewas syunowe ay] - ‘deb }2b6png sy} pasealou] aney
p|NOM SIY} SEB UoIINQUIUOD JBYUNy B Joj paau 8y} Inoyum
s|jesodoud 196pnq G /7102 98U} 9A8IYDdE 0} SIS0D pajewl}isa
Josw 0} $92Jn0sal jualolyns sapiaoid YoIym GL/yLog Ul {AUM — 21/910Z PUe 91/GL02 Ul 39eq Inq GL/¥71L02
S]S00 JuawisaAul o) Buipinoid si ABajel}S JUsWIISaAu| ay ) Ul JNO S}S09 Juawsanul moys jno Buiddoip swia)l SnoNald e el
‘uodai 106pnq |eul ay) 10} pabueys aq |[IM Jewio} Slueib pajessyjodAyun,
uonejuasaid ay) pue pauiuapl ussq Apealie sey syl Buipeay Japun aq JOU pP|NOYS SBAISS3Y pajlewley e | z°|
‘WZy6'2c6l 3
JO Junowe [ejo} a8y} sapnjoul AjUo JUBWUIBA0S USIapA "Jsed ay} ul apew usaq sAemje sey ysiym dn spew
WOJ} PAAISdal JUBWIBS |euld JUBWUIBA0S) |B20T 8yl s| Buipun jewa)x3 ajebalbby moy Jo umoys J|ds ON e L'l
sanss| / sjuawiwio) 3je1odio) | 0°L
S$99IA18g 9)es0dio0) - INO 1¥Vd
:sasuodsay :suolIsany pue susawWIWo) ‘ON

' SL/VL0Z S|esodoig jobpng [ERiU] - S83IAI9S ojeiodio)

ANILNYHIS B MIIAYIAO

g Xjpuaddy

Page 65



‘palojiuow 8q 0} Pasu [|IM Ydiym
aunf ul uopoys w Buiuels Jpal) |esIBAIUN MBU By}
Jo j051d B S| ai8y) pue palojuow aq 0} pasau |is sjoedw
WIOjoy BJelap)  "JuswWaAsIyoe aAlsod e se pasiubooal
8g p|noys ajel uonosjjod 8y eouewlopad sieak juauno
U} UlIm BUI| Ul SI YDIUM %66 Je 19S 94 Ajuspljuod Ueo ajel
uoI}99||00 8y} OS pue umouy sI Buipuny Jo |9Ad] 8y} pue
awBayos ay) ‘GL/pL0Z 104 (SYL1D) dwayog uononpay
Xe] [I5uno) 8y} JO UONJeWIUOD OU Udaq pey aiay} ‘}18s
SEM 9]l UOND9J[0d Xe | [IDUNoD #L/EL0Z dU} Wi 8y} Iy

196png ajejoA e se pasiubooal usaq shkemie
sey SIy| °9Sealoul Ue uddsS Se JI uaym Apusdal un
puewap paonpal e usaq osje pey aidy| "sieah ayj Jeno
Aeoyiubis panoidwi sey sjuswaoed Jo juswaind0ld

‘GL/¥10¢ 10} dWBYIS
8y} Jo uonenunuod ay} Joj apinoid sjesodoud 186png 8yl
‘siseq pajedayjodAy B uo Jou Ing ©SY 8y} ul papnjoul
MOU 210J8J8Y} SI SIY] "dWaYdS JUels) Jauoisuad snolraid
ay} jJo unowe ay} Agq (9SY) jueis poddng snusnaay
JNno JO junowe 8y} ul aseasoul ue se paieadde ) ng Ul
Iajsuel}, e Se JUBWINSS JUBWIUIBAOL) |20 By} Ul UMOYs
JOU SBM SIY| ‘JUSWISS JUSWUIBAOL) [B207 8y} UIyIm
umoys sem JI Aem ay jo Ayjeosiuyos) e o} anp Sl SIyl

¢ pajedionue Ajsnoinaid se jealb se

u2a( JOU SBY WI0oay dielda) Jo Joedw) ay) Jey) uoljos|ial
e siy} s| 196pnq {1/€10Z 84} Ul }8S Junowe ayj uo

9%,G’| JO 9SBaIOUl UB S| %66 JO el UOIj08||00 Xe] |Iouno)

£101Ju09
$S9| aABY MOU am 0] "sJeaA snoinaid ul puadsiapun
ue uaaq sey aJdy] ‘sjuswase|d AlJuno) Jo IO

¢Xipuadde juaswapas |euly
0] Jajsuel} Ul Jou Siy} sl Aym — swayosg Juels) sisuoisuad

L'l

o'l

Gl

:sasuodsay

1SuUOolSaNY) pue sjusWWo)

‘ON

GL/V10Z S|esodold }8bpng |el}iu] - S8JIAI9S 3jelodlo)

ANILNYUIS B MIIAYIAO

g Xipuaddy

Page 66



Ul 1eyl SMOUS UdIym uoljen|eA |euenidy 8y} sios|jal siyl Bunsixa WoJj SIY} JOA0D dM UeD — S}S0D suolsuad asealou| e | z'Z
¢, sieah snoinaud Jad
‘Wodal 196pnqg jeuls Jo ped se auop aq ||Im Sy se saluobajes ay) ojul Jjds uaaq jou uoloas siy} sey AYp, e A
sainssaid
S9NsSS| / Sjusliwio) SaJIAIRS djesodio) | 02
$1ebpnq ay) asuejeq
SalUOW JJO 8UO Jou pue sBUIABS JualINdal WOl 0] pasn aq Japuiewsal 3y} ||IM ‘S}S0D JJO 8UO 10} pasijiin
papun} aq o} }abpnq aseq ay} saiinbai yoiym Absjens aq 0} Junowe ay} ueyy Jajeaib si sy} sy "uoljesijeydes
|eoueul 8y jo sajdipuud syl o} Alesjuod 8q pinom snje)s ajbuig/Aed |enbg wouy wy ¢3 pue Aouabunuod
sy} se Aem siy} ul pasueleq ad jou pjnom 1a6png ayl "oN w/ €3 Jo abueyo [euonesiueblo 10} SBAISSAI JO IS @ | |||
‘Ajuo sped| Joj abesn pajwi ‘juswaaibe
}yomawel4 10j08S olgqnd e jo Hed se paseyoind alemyjos ,pooo), Jo asn — Buisusdl] alemyos e | g1-y
"S30IAI9S |BI0}09|] 10} S}S09 [ejsod
paseaioul 1o} XL 3F Jo aseaioul Aleuolje|jul ue o} paliajal S90INBS
aAey pjnoys pue pooj se paiyisse|d Albuoim sem siyl oljesoowa @ j[eba] uiyum uonepjul pooj uo pasies Ailenp o | gy
"Jeal |ejoueuly ayy
JO pua 8y} a10jaq Juads aq 0} papasu jey) swns 1o} }oam
snoinaid ay} paAladal usaq Ajuo pey AN WOl Uoisiosp i sjuelb punj uoljeioqe|od
[euly 8yl ‘yl/z/e uo Bunesw HSOYD dui Je papinoid 8q Aue 1o} A|dde am pip ‘JuswiuIdsAo9) ys|om je AeH
0} s|iele@ ‘Ajlenplaipul pig 0} payse uaaq pey saljoyiny paqoy 0} Japea ay) wouy 1ayd| snolnaid e o) Buluaey e | g°|
:sasuodsay :suolsany pue sjusawiwio) ‘ON

G1/710¢ S|esodoid jabpng [eniu] - SeJIAIag ajelodio)

ANLLNYDS ® MIIAYIAO

g Xijpuaddy

Page 67



‘1senbal
uo papincid 8 ued Saul| |enplAlpul Uo |iejap Jayun4

‘91/510¢ PUE GL/1710C
‘sieak om} 1o} |1Ighed ay} 1o} 1S00 pasealsul Buuayng 1o}
a|qe|ieAe sl 8A19sal 8y “s|aAa] Buiyels Bulisixa uo paseq
s1 196png aoioppom sy} uo jpedwn snieys abuls 8yl

uoljenjea
[eden}oy 1xau ay} ybnoliy} mainal o} 1oalgns aq |Iim Ing
‘os|e /1/91 02 Jaye asu 0} anuijuod |jIMm Jey} }Sod juaiinoal
B S| SIyl ‘wz'v3 jeuoippe ue AQ awsyos uoisuad sy
Jo Buipuny uno dn dajs 0} pasu [IM am ‘aul) sieak sauy}

irLieloe
WwoJy Sjunowe a8y} Jo uosuedwod B aq 818y} pjnod

¢sieak g 1o}
Buuayng o} a|qe|ileAe dAIaSal S| ¢S|oAs] Bulyels juannd
uo paseq jeyj si ‘/1/90Z wolj joedwi snjels o|bulg

¢ SaAnIasal

ve

€cC

:sasuodsay

:SUOI}SaND) pue SHUBWWOo)

‘ON

G1/710Z S|esodolid jobpng [eniu] - SadIAIaS 9jeiodio)

ANILNYIS B MIIAYIAO

g xXipuaddy

Page 68



‘suoljesiuebio Jo abuel Japim e 0} 80IAI8S
ay} Buuayo Ag siy} uo pjing o} bBupeas aie ap\ siesh
oMm] Apesu Joj DgD Weyxalpy 0} ddmes diysisuped
e popinoid sey juswpedaq yjesH [euonednadsQ 8yl

"}Jom jo aoald
ajelodiod se uayeuapun Buiaq malnal jeuoljesiuebio
SS0J0 Jueoyiubls B S| MaIASY uoljessiuiwpy 8yl

“Junowe
fouaoiye 8y ul pesiubooal usag sey yoiym Y03
Jo uoibas ay) ul aq o) Ajay s! Ing pasiieuy Bulag si sy

"S312UBIoIY8 JaYj0 AQ paoe|dal aq 1snw %G| Jay}o 3y} jey}
sas|ubooal ng ‘saIouslole 8U} JO %G8 ISED| Je dAaIyde
0} Sl 9,GQ O} 8duaiajal ay] °||In} Ul paAalyoe aq ued Aay)
jey} uondwnsse ayj uo pisemio) Ind ale saOUBRIYS ||V

¢SIU} puIyaq [1ejep
sy} SI J1eym ‘yyesH jeuonednoaos WoJ) SWOOU| pasealdu|

¢ sojelojalng
uiyum o) paesoddo se aiay umoys siyl s Aym ‘sBuines
aAleJisiulpe wol) sapuayg abuey) jeuonesiuebiQ

¢Allendip siyy buonpoud
JO 1S00 8y} S| Jeym Iouno) JnoA Ajunwiwo)d JNoA,

%G8 196 0}
109dxa AJUo M Bm ‘sBIouBIoIe A JO WL 8F Y} JO Jey)
ueaw Jeyl seoq "/10Z AQ SaI0usIdIYa ||BISAO INO JO %G8
JO JuUBsWaA3Iyoe ue 0} Jajas am ‘ueld Juswaroidwi ay) uj

EIEEIRIITE]

SONsS| / SjUsWIWIO) SadINosay ajeiodio)

Ve

€€

A

(X

:sasuodsay

:suolsany pue sjUsWWo)

‘ON

GL/710¢ Sjesodold jebpng [eniu] - sadiAlag a)eiodio)

ANILLNYOS B M3IIAYIAO

g Xipuaddy

Page 69



Page 70



0} @sueusjulew pue siiedal Joy ajgejieae Buipuny ay} Jo N0

0] anunuod [IM pue wa|qoid e usaq sey Sjooyos Jo}
196png aoueuajulel\ pue sileday sy} 1y} uIsouU0) e

asn 1saq ay} 196 am Moy e oo| 0} paau am jey} paalby 9'L
"S9I}IUNWILWOD
Buiuies; aneyy ul papoddns ©q 0} pasu  sisules’] "9|0J JISY} WOy
‘sjidnd 1o} sswoono )saq ay) uieb jey} sebueyd ayew pajod|ap 8q Jou pjnoys siayoes) pesy se s|ooyos
pINoYs am jey) aje uhjsg/siayoesjpeay wolj suoljejoadxy ojul Ind jou S| YIOM |euolippe Jey} paulaouo] e G'L
‘9|qissod
se AjaAnjoays 1s00 se os Bulop si pue asuapuadapul 1o} £SIUBJNSU0D uesW SIYy} s80(Q "0} paliajal 3dIApe
y¥se} siy) ayepapun o) pajuiodde usaq sey Buynsuod AeH juspuadapu] padx3 — ubisepay [euojesiuebiQ e vl
"186pnq pajebajap s|00yds ayj 0} sasealoul ybnoayl 1sw
aq |Im %G 0 Bululewal ay] ‘jueis) uoneaudsq idnd 8y} Juel uoneaudaq idnd ay}
ul 8seaJoul ayy ybnoly) 1w 8q ||IM Sjooyds 0} Jualijwod 0] asealoul 8y} ybnouyy pasijeas Buisq Juswiwiwod
Buipuny ay} JO %G1 0 ey} pajedipul sey JuswuIBA0LS) US| Buipuny  9%Gy'0 8yl uo ybnos uonedyle|)y e el
[I9Mm |ie}ap
ay) pajuasaid aney siaolO jey) pue AjgAnisuss
pajpuey uaaq sey }1abpng ay} jey} apew uoneis)sy e Z'l
"S|O0YDS 0} Spew NI ||eJ9A0 Ue usag Jou sey alay)
1ey) apnyjelf piooal 0) pajuem SIOUIBAOS) |OOYOS e L'L
SaNSS|/SjusawWIo) [eldudn
S9NsS| / SjuswIio) bujuiea] buojaji 0L
:sasuodsay :suonsanP pue suawWwWo) ON

G1/v10Z Slesodoid jobpng [eniu] - bujuies| buojeji

ANILNYIS B MIIAYIAO

g Xipuaddy

Page 71



‘¥ 1/2/c Buiisaw
Auniog pue MalABAQ 0} Moeqpas) jo ued se papiaold

AEF
JO Junowe uoisap Jesah Joud e AUm INg GL/¥L0Z

sem osuodses Yy ‘popinoid aq O} osuodses USHUAA ul uolssiwal Joj paiinbai j3abpng ou jeu} pajoN e ez
clie
1e 186png ou uesw Jou S80P Gl/i7L0Z Ul palinbai
GL/¥1L0Z Ul 8seaiou] ou 3q ||IM alay} ey} sueaw SIy} ON 0192 ey} Jybnos uonesyle|d — aiNssald UOISSIWLDY e 2
‘Aous|oiye |lews
"SI9YIOM UINoA aiow jnq Juswsbeuew uj uononpal B Os|e pajou jng ainssald e se pasiubooal SI yoiym
B S9A|0AUL Yolym AbBsjelis 821AI18s mau 0} sajeal siu L uoisinold 99IAI8S UINOA JNOge pasiel UIaduoD) e ‘e
sainssaid
SaNSS| / Sjluswiwio) buiuieaT] buojaji] 02
"S|O0YIS ||e JO JBuaq 8y} 0} pash ag ued ydiym
saoinosal Buises|al ainjn) ay} ui 196pnq asueusjulely pue
Jieday ay) uo puewsap ay} aonpal |jm swweliboid sjooyos "*S|O0YIS MaU
Anue)y 1z 8y ybnoiyy Juswysigingeijuawaoe|dal J0 1502 ybiy ayy pue sjooydss Anjuad |z 1o} 16png
s|ooyos ay} 1ey; JlIM Jeuaq auQ ay} ul Junowe jeydes ay) Jnoge paybijybiy uiaouo) e 'l
‘ainssaud sy} o} ppe
abueyo oiydesbowap 0} anp juswysiginjal se yons
"S|O0YOS 0} S)Ijouaq ay} asiwixew sabueys J8yl0Q ¢le payoo| 8g SIy} ue) ‘suo aq
:sasuodsay 1SUOIISaNY) pue SHU3WWOY) -ON

G1/¥10Z sjesodold }2bpng |eniu] - buiuieaT buojsji

ANILNYOS ' MIIAY3AO

g Xipuaddy

Page 72



0] Juem Aew oym saljLIoYINY JBYJ0 0} SNP SAJIAISS
8y} JaAo uolisanb Japun si aouaijisal wud) Buoj ay} Janemoy

paliajsued) Buiaq si SIy} §| "90IAISS 8y} WO} MBIPYIM
0} Buiob sem D7) aiaysybiquaq usym pajjeossal wsjqoid
‘WLEL 03 UOIINGLIUOD JO MIINSY — SAOIAISG Aleuqi e

‘pasijeal aq ued Aouaiolye Siy} Jeyl aouspyuod S| alsy | v'e
£1nsal B Se a2IAI8S JO |9A9)]
awles ayj Ulejujew o} ajge 8g aMm ||Im pue siyj axew
‘JuswAojdap Buiyels pue mainal Juswabeuew 0} anp S| pue 0} woJ} Buiwoo sjsod ay} ase aloypy ainssaud e osje
MBIASY SBDIAIBS BINSIaT 8y} Jo Ynsal e se sl WLz 03 8ul Ng WO8Z 03 Jo Aouaioys ue AUm — Sa2IAISS aIns|a e e'e
‘alejjam uoIsn|ou| pue poddng
Jnoineyag ‘woddng Buiuiea ‘yun jelsjay jidnd ayy
0} Juswisnipe sapnjoul osje siyl ‘102 Jequaydag woly
pajuswajdwi aq o} ale sjesodold “Ajjuanns uey} Aipsads
alow poddns pajedo|e 0} way} J0j Buipun) einwIo)
eIA pajebajeq “Jaylabo} 1asojo Bu oM BIJOSUOD |[O0YDS
pue Speaytano aAlesisiuiwpe Bupnpad Jo uoleuIquiod "92IAl8s 8y} Buioaye JNoYIM paAaiyoe aq ued
e ybnouy) panaiyoe aq |im yoiym Aouaidiya siyj Moy 89S 0} piey sI JI Yoiym ease ajesliap e bulag siyy
noge Jauige) 0} }ybnoiq aq o} pauue|d ase spodal Jayund 0] anp pasiel S| UI3dUOD pue S|ooYyds Ojul Ajjiqisuodsal
Buulajsuel) Jnoge S SIY] ‘W8S 03 SO2AISS uoIsn[oul e z'c
"y1/2/€ Bunsaw Auiniog pue malAaaQ
0] )oeqgpaaj) jo ued se papinoid sem Aouaioiys siy} ‘Bunesw s Aepuojy oy Joud
Jo umopyeaiq yy - pajuswaldwi Apealje salbsies)s o} anp papasu S| umopyealg ‘W62 03 S|00Yds 0] S9OIAIRS e
palaAljap @q ued SalouaIdIYe 8y} Jey} aduapluod s| aleay | :Bumol|oj ay} uo ybnos uonesye;) L€
CETRIVEIR]ITE]
SaNss| / Sjusawiio’) buiuiea buojaji 0°¢
:sasuodsay :suoIsany pue sU3WIWOYH ‘ON

G1/v10Z s|esodoid jobpng [eniu| - bulules| buojejr

ANILNYIS ® MIIANYIAO

g Xipuaddy

Page 73



sjuawalinbail 196png Ayjiqeuleisns

paseq spaau pue Buluiel) JO S|9A3] ay} JO JuUsWISsasse
|nja1ed pue uoljesojje juelb aseyd uoljepunod ayj jJo
JuswAojdap jo uonesiwixew ybnoiy) painodas ag ||IIm siy L

‘sabueyo

jeuonjesado pue sejol 0} sabueyos ybnoayy Aousiolys

JO |9A8) Jajealb e aseajal pue asijeuoijel 0} usyeuspun
uaaqg Sey YJom Jayunj Jey) pajedipul aAlNdaxd a1y ayl

"82IAJ3S 2ISNW By} JOJ
payjuapl aq pjnom sjuswabuelie aajjeuls)e uoisiaold siy)
Jo Buluoissiwwosap ay} Jo ped se jeyj PawIuod Sem )|

1ebpng sy} Bumas o} uonNquUuo Juepodw
INQg jlewss ¥ "JUBI018 810w SN ayew 0} }oeq o buiaq
ale yoiym Ausuoness ‘1aded ‘Bununud Joy syabpng Aep 0} AeQq

"80IAI8S 8} WOJ} MEIPYNIM

"ybnos
uolneoljLe|d alow — a2IAIBS JISN|A R Juswaug Ape]

¢Hodal 196png aui o} awii ey}

wouj sjsod pue siaquinu pue sainbiy ul 9duaISYIp 8y}
Aym “(papinoud siaded pajielap ui) uoisioap jauiges) 0}
8oUalajal SBY ainjonisay ad1AI9S JO uolejuswaldu)

‘slasn
SOIAI9S JBUJ0 pUB SB2IAISS 2ISNW 8y} JOj Pasn S| ajuad
SIY} ‘Uojelue|o) JO BUILOISSILULLIODBP — 82IAI8S UINOA

¢, ueal sy} Se0p Jeym — soiseq 0} yoeq

‘wajgold e awo2sq Aew }I S|ooYyos ojul

8¢

L€

9¢

G¢

:sasuodsay

:SUOI}SaNY) pue SjUBWIWO)

GL/v10Z S|esodoid jobpng [eniu] - buiuies | Buoor

ANILNYIS B MIIAYIAO

g Xipuaddy

Page 74



‘Wiz 8q pinom saloualdiya buuinoal
woiy puy o} s deb sy ‘ABsjens juswissAul ayy
ybnouy) wolj papuny asueul Builbpuq jo asn ayl INOYIA
‘@say) jo Buiwy ay} 0} saje@l sanJasal woly Buipuny
Jeuonisuel; 1o Buibpug syl ‘sieaA Jaje| ul Buuinoal aq
lm Aayy ybnouy uaaa (G1/7102) Jeak |eloueul 1sil 8y Ul
[IN} Ul SABIYOE JOU |{IM SM Jey] SaIouaIdlya 0} sajejal siyl

196pnq sy} Buiouejeq jo Aem fensn
BU} 10U SI }| ¢SIY} Op O} aAey am op Aym ‘eoueul{ Buibpug

€l
‘salbajel)s 186pnq ‘uolyisod pus JeaA |enjoe ay} Joaje
sieaA snoinaud ul uaye} yoeoidde ay} yum jusisisuod sl PIN02 YoIym Z| WO — 6 Yuo ul uaddey pjnoo sjuany
puB PaAaIyoe aq ||IM |[9A3] SiY} Jey} uo 3lom o} uondwnsse ‘ajgejieAe wns Aouabuiuo) ayj o} uoneas ul uosod
a|geuoseal e S| SIY]l ‘g Yo Je ajepdn 8y} si w/cF pajoaloid e o) Buliagal ale am jey) pasiel uiaouo) 'l
‘awiooul Jjeuag BuisnoH jo Buiyosdal e pue
pajedionue uey} puewap Jamoj JO }nsal e se sjuswAied ZJUnowe Siy} JO uMmopyealiq ay) Jo s|iejap aAey
Buisnoq Aseuonaiosiq Jo) 186png a8y} ul sslousldlye aM ue) ¢SIy) op 0} uonisod Buuojuow g YUo 8y} wol)
BuLinoal yum Jayebo) sjgeasiyoe Buileq jou (MS.L3I) 35023 Buisynn jo ABajelis pajsabbns e aiay) s| 810)aiay}
awwelbold 19SSy Saining alysjull4 8y} pue XUlep wouy Aypp Ajuo sway Bulunoas wolyGLeF Ajjuanino s
saloualole sieaA snoinaid ul uononpas e jo dn spew yoiym deb 1obpnq ayj soue|eq Ajuo pjnod sm jeyy pasiape
se ale s|ie}ag ‘swayl buuinoal Jo dn apew S| 35023 SUL alom siaquis|y ‘Yoam jse| sbuneaw Auiniogs ayj uj L'l
suolsany pue sjuUsaWWo?) |eldusn 0L
:sasuodsay :suosany pue sjUsaWIWO) ‘ON

GL/V10Z UOISSaS Malnay jJobpng anuaAay — SoJIAI9S 9jeiodio)

ANILNY™DS B MIIANYIAO

g Xijpuaddy

Page 75



'sj96pnq Jo Juswubijea.
ay} pue Juswsaalbe snjels 9buis 8y} jo uoionposul
ay} bumojoy ajqissod aq ||im [01u0d JaY6R YN "SIy} 0}
|elUassa Si |0JjU0d juswysi|gelsy "pI||o4u0D 8q 0} pasu
sa0p siy} pue abueyo o0} pasu saop uojesiuebio ayl

"SIy} s109j4a1 Buibpuqg ay) pue sajeosswi) paaibe
UIYIM paIdAlldp 8Q ued 3Iom |A4A @Y} Jey} aoueinsse
sopinoad j1obpng ay} 0} yoeosdde juswabeuew ysu ay|

"196png aseq woly uolnguUIUod B ayew
0] Paau Jou . Jou S| aiay) pue ABajel)s JUSWISaAUI BY) 10}
80Inosal papinoid sey Ssouejeq pue S9AISSAl JO MBIASI
8y) woly a|ge|ieAe s92Inosal 8y} se palinbai jou si siy}

GL/¥LOC Ul 'SIS00 JuswissAul J0) L1/910¢C Pue 91/5102
Joj suondwnsse a8y} 0} ul }jiNg WOYS' L3 SI 819y} Apuaiing

‘uoljisod }8u 8y} 8ABY 0} Sh 10} J19pIO Ul
aWaYdS uoljoNpay Xe] [19unod ay} Jo 108y ay) ajejnoled
0} paau am INg wG03F jo Junowe ssoib e ul Buug
PINOM 3SBaloul 9%| Jayuny ¥ °XE} [IDUNOY Ul 8sealoul
%¢ e jo uondwnsse ue sapn|oul Ajjuaiund uonoafoid ay|

¢AWI) SIY} PaJaAlap
2Qq UBD I 80URINSSE JBYM 0S U3U} N0 YIOM JoU pIp
SIY} ey} pue GO0z Ul sainjonisal snoinald o} aoualaley

¢9oueuy buibplq jo junowe ay}
PaWNSSE JOAO JOU SABY 9M Jey} MOUy SIaquis|\| Op MOH

éaininy
8y} Jo} sanlasal ysiuajdal 0} aoeyd ui BuiylAue aisay) s|

¢,SI1UY} U0 BUOp UB3Q YIOM Jayuny
Aue sey ‘deb ay} asojo 0} Abajeuis ay} Jo Yed se |aAs] xe|
[19unon) pasodoid ay} JO M3IABI B 0] 9oUBIBJal S| 8J9Y |

L'}

9l

Gl

Vi

:sasuodsay

:suoISanNy pue spusaWWO)

‘ON

G1/V10Z UOISSaS MaIAay jJobpng anuaAdy — SoJIAI9S ajelodio)

ANILNYIS ® MIIANYIAO

g Xipuaddy

Page 76



ainjonuis Aed mau ay) pue
uswaalbe snjels o|buls ayj ybnoly) paajosal usaq sey
siy} se swiejo Aed [enba [euonippe 0} pes| jou |im siyl Inq

"suoijenjeas qol pasinal paau Aew 8210)310M paonpal
e u| y9| ale oym ajdoad pue swied Aed |enb3
uo sabusajjeyd Jayuny 0} uado aq ||Im 8m [njaied jou

sabueyo 9|0l JIBY) JI polenjeAs-a1 @q O) paau Aew sqor e | ale am i ‘uonesiuebloal aininy pue snjeis ajbuls YIm e 61
‘030D Yim pajsanbail
Buneasyy "sieak Jo Jaquinu e Joj S}S09 Jels uo Juadsiapun

‘pabuelle aq 0} Bunssyy e aneY D4 1Byl SMOYS YdIym UOljeULIOjUI O} 80UB1a)0Y gl

:sasuodsay :SuUoI)Sany) pue sjU3WIWO) ‘ON

G /71 0Z UOISSaS MalAdy jabpng onuaAdy — SadlAleg djelodio)

ANILNYIS 8 MIIAYIAO

g Xipuaddy

Page 77



'SLIvLOZ 10} sjesodoud 196pnq ay)
Ul PaLUBP! SAIUSD INSIOT JO} WZ9E'0F Y} UIYIM Siseq
Buuinoal e Uo papnjoul s junowe siy] -ueld ssauisng
saljuay) aunsie paesiAal a8y} Jo suoneondwn j9b6png
Jeak-ui oy} ssaippe 0} ¥1/£L0Z Ul Spew Sem 8AIasal

¢, @inssaid
SIY} UO |iejap Jayun) aAey am ued pue jey) si

yonw moH -uswAied jeydes e o} pajejal Aped si siy)

Aouabunuoo 8y} wWol} WGOS 03 JO uonedoje uy ‘aIns|a7 10} WZ96 03 JO ainssaid ay) 0} piebal yppn e L'z
sjuawisaAuj/sainssald | 00°Z
:sasuodsay :SUOIISaNY pue SjUBWWOH oN

GL/Y710Z UOISSOS MBIADY Jobpng aNUBA3Y — SBIIAISS djelodlo)

ANILNYIS ?@ MIIAYIAO

g Xipuaddy

Page 78



“uoIsnjoul Joj payluap!
seale 99IA19S Ul SNJA Jayuny ou ale aisy] d|qeAsiyoe
si jeym Ajuspr o} uaye} Buieq si yoeoidde paseq
¥SU pedueleq S| 1aBpng sy (UN SNURUOD [[IM YOIYM

¢papnjoul buisq
ale soipuaniys jo sadA} tayjo jeypnn  swwelboid
IN4A Byl Japun salouaolye Jaypuny 0] 8ousidjel

sseo0id BuioBuo ue sI S8loUBIOIS JO UOeIyNUBP! By soyew deb jJebpng ay} Bunesw o} Bulusjes aplls sy e ec
" SUOIUM 8y} YIM p|ay usaq aney
SUOISSNOSI(] "SUONIPUOD pue SWJd} £ Hed O} pajejal jou iuawhojdw
Sl ]| "0}8 |9AeJysuondiIOSgNS |BUOISSa)0Id O} Sajejal Sy JO 1SO7) 90IOPHOAA Y} JO |IE}JOP SIOW dABY OM UBD e Z'c
*90IN0S SIY} Wolj ajqissod se ¢ papnjoul usaq Apeale
yonw se puly o} Buialys ale am pue BuioBuo S SHOM SIY} 10U Jeyl sey ‘soiseq 0} }oeg/uswalndold wol} sjgejieAe
INg papnjoul ueaq sey Jey 0S MIOM 3Y} JO SWOoIN0 8y | ag Aew Jeyl salousIole |euUOIpPE 0} d2ualId)el YU L'
SepuePPI | 0°€
SONss| | SjUaWIWIO)) S92IN0Say ajelo0dio)
:sosuodsay :suoisanY pue sjuUsWWo) N

GL/710Z UOISSOS MaIAay jobpng oanuaAay — SoJIAIaS 9jelodio)

ANILNYOS ? M3IAYIAO

g Xipuaddy

Page 79



Page 80



Appendix 9

Budget 2014/15
Council Fund - Revenue

Summary of Council Fund Earmarked Reserves

Estimated Estimated

Balance Balance
01/04/14 31/03/15
£m £m

Service Balances

Community Services 0.029 0.000
Environment 1.140 0.413
Corporate Services 1.319 0.000
Total 2.488 0.413
Corporate Balances

Equal Pay / Single Status 27.618 10.767
Total 27.618 10.767
Specific Reserves

Insurance Fund - Asbestos 0.160 0.160
Benefits Equalisation 1.200 0.300
Supporting People 1.493 1.293
Building Control 0.200 0.150
Milk Quotas 0.077 0.081
Waste Disposal 0.518 0.418
Flint Castle Landfill Site 0.030 0.030
Flintshire Business Services 0.089 0.039
Winter Maintenance 0.250 0.250
Design Fees 0.120 0.120
County Elections 0.092 0.092
Third Party Insurance Claims 0.087 0.087
Flintshire Insurance 0.600 0.600
Minor Reserves under £0.050m 0.038 0.028
Total 4.954 3.648

Page 81



Page 82



Agenda Item 10

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

DATE: TUESDAY, 18 FEBRUARY 2014

REPORT BY: HEAD OF FINANCE

SUBJECT: COUNCIL FUND CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2014/15

AND INDICATIVE FUNDING TO 2017/18

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To present the annual Council Fund Capital Programme for 2014/15
and indicative funding levels to 2017/18.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01  The draft annual Council Fund Capital Programme for 2014/15 and
the indicative funding to 2017/18 was considered by Cabinet on 21
January 2014 for initial approval and was also referred to Overview
and Scrutiny for consideration.

2.02 The draft proposals were considered by the Corporate Resources
Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 3 February 2014 (a session
open to all members) where Members offered comments and asked a
number of questions to clarify issues. A summary of these, together
with Officer responses is included in Appendix 3 of the attached
Cabinet report.

2.03 The final budget proposals for 2014/15 and indicative funding to
2017/18, which were unchanged from the draft stage, were
considered by Cabinet earlier today. A copy of the report is attached
as Appendix A.

2.04 Cabinet were recommended to approve the recommendations as set
out in 8.01 of the attached report in full for recommendation to
Council. A verbal update from Cabinet will be provided at the
meeting. It is normal Council practice to approve the annual Capital
Programme at the annual budget-setting meeting alongside the
annual Council Fund Revenue Budget.

Page 83



3.00

3.01

3.02

3.03

3.04

4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

CONSIDERATIONS

As discussed at the Overview and Scrutiny meeting, and as explained
in the report to Cabinet, the financial value of the annual Capital
Programme is, in part, dependant on the sale of assets and the
availability of the capital receipts from those sales to add to the
Council’'s supported capital borrowing approval and general and
specific capital grants.

The Asset Strategy sets out a programme of intended disposals and
the capital receipts from those disposals are planned into the Capital
Programme year by year. Sale of assets need to both occur during or
before the financial year for which their capital receipt is needed, and
at the financial value estimated, for there to be sufficient funds
available for the total Capital Programme approved for that year.

As discussed at Overview and Scrutiny there is a degree of risk in
planning capital receipts due to the unpredictability of market interest
in purchase and variations in land valuations. Given the
unpredictability this brings the attached report refers, in Sections
5.02.3 to setting a minimal capital receipts target of £1.250m for
2014/15 and subsequently a reduced core programme of £7.400m.

The report also recommends in Section 5.02.4 that any additional
capital receipts generated in 2014/15 be kept until the 2015/16
financial year and added to Welsh Government (WG) funding (and
continuing in future years) to ensure that the capital programme in
future years is set based on an actual level of resources available.

RECOMMENDATIONS

The Council is recommended to approve the recommendations listed
within the attached report from Cabinet at 8.01.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

As set out in the report.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

Individual capital programme schemes may have specific anti-poverty
impacts.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

Individual capital programme schemes may have specific
environmental impacts.

Page 84



8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

EQUALITIES IMPACT

Individual capital programme schemes may have specific equalities
impacts.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None directly as a result of this report.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

All Members and Overview & Scrutiny.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

Initial capital workshops were held on 16" and 18" December 2013
for all Members; Overview and Scrutiny on 3™ February 2014.

APPENDICES

Appendix A — Report to Cabinet 18" February: Council Fund Capital
Programme 2014/15 and Indicative Funding to 2017/18.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

2014/15 budget papers, including Welsh Government papers

Contact Officer: Gary Ferguson
Telephone: 01352 702271
Email: gary.ferguson@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 85



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 86



APPENDIX A

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE:

TUESDAY, 18 FEBRUARY 2014

REPORT BY: HEAD OF FINANCE, CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTOR

OF ENVIRONMENT

SUBJECT: COUNCIL FUND CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2014/15

1.00

1.01

2.00

2.01

2.02

2.03

2.04

AND INDICATIVE FUNDING TO 2017/18

PURPOSE OF REPORT

The purpose of the report is to propose the Council Fund Capital
Programme for 2014/15 (with indicative funding estimates for future
years), following consultation with the Corporate Resources
Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

BACKGROUND

The Council plans on a 4 year capital programme timescale. Each
year, the Council sets it capital programme for the coming year and
provides an indication of the estimated level of resources available
and has historically shown the potential allocation to service areas in
future years.

Indicative amounts for 2014/15 were shown in the Capital
programme 2013/14 report which was agreed by Council on 1%
March 2013.

Capital programme and capital monitoring reports over recent years
have highlighted the growing pressure being experienced by all
councils in relation to capital. The specific background to the setting
of the Council's 2014/15 capital programme was discussed with
Members at the Budget Workshops on December 16" and 18" 2013,
who supported the proposed approach to the capital programme for
2014/15.

A meeting hosted by Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny
Committee was held on 3™ February to enable all Members to
consider the 2014/15 capital programme. Members raised various
comments and questions and responses were provided and a
summary of these are detailed in Appendix 3.

Page 87



2.05

3.00

3.01

3.02

3.03

3.04

3.056

This report covers the Council Fund only. The initial Housing
Revenue Account (HRA) capital programme proposals were
considered alongside the HRA revenue budget proposals for
2014/15 by Cabinet and the Housing Overview and Scrutiny
Committee in January and the final proposals are also on this
agenda.

CAPITAL STRATEGY

Flintshire, along with all Councils, has experienced significant
pressure on the capital programme in recent years. This results from
reduced funding available through the annual financial settlement
from the Welsh government (WG) and the impact the economy has
had on the generation of capital receipts. Furthermore, as WG
seeks to manage its own budgets, the specific grants available to
Councils for capital investment in particular services has become
more limited; with WG switching its support for Highways
Maintenance and 21% Century Schools to revenue support for
Council borrowing in place of capital grant.

The pressure on capital resources comes at the same time as
significant financial pressure on revenue budgets and is a situation
which is set to continue until at least the end of the decade. The
combination of the two means that it is more important than ever that
the Council's revenue and capital service delivery and financial
planning are fully integrated.

Against this backdrop, it was recognised, during the lead into the
setting of the capital programme for 2013/14, that there was a need
to review:-

e The approach to the management of assets to ensure that
they meet Council priorities in terms of service delivery,
community development, income generation and capital
receipts; and

e The development and management of the capital programme
to ensure it most effectively meets the Council's aspirations,
with a Capital Financing Strategy as an integral part of the
overall Medium Term Financial Strategy.

Significant work has been undertaken by officers in 2013 to review
capital assets and how and where services are delivered from. The
information from this review is being brought together for detailed
Member consideration and public engagement in the spring of 2014.

The availability of this review information is crucial to decisions on

future service delivery, prioritising investment, aligning resources
and achieving value for money in the longer term.

Page 88



3.06 Whilst this work on planning for the longer term is developing, it is
important that the Council sets its core capital programme and puts
in place funding to meet urgent needs for 2014/15 to enable the
resources to be in place to:-

e Support key services e.g. schools maintenance;
e Support investment which enables change e.g. ICT networks;

¢ Provide funding for property related costs e.g. DDA, Health &
Safety; and

¢ Meet essential contractual commitments and health & safety
issues.

4.00 FUNDING THE CAPITAL PROGRAMME

4.01 The capital programme includes the following elements which are
funded as shown below:-

(a) A core capital programme resourced by:-

e The funding mechanisms within the WG financial
settlement (general capital grant and supported borrowing
where WG recognise the cost of repaying the borrowing in
the revenue financial settlement); and

e Capital receipts from the sale of Council assets in
accordance with the disposal programme.

The Council has discretion to allocate both of these resources
as it determines to meet local priorities and needs.

(b) Capital schemes funded from specific grants which are for
specific purposes as directed by WG or other grant providers;

(c) WG supported borrowing through the Local Government
Borrowing Initiative (LGBI) for highways and 21%* Century
schools (WG element); and

(c) Locally determined unsupported (prudential) borrowing which
is met from the Council’s revenue budget without support from
WG.

500 CORE CAPITAL PROGRAMME

5.01 The total projected core funding available over the 4 year period
2014/15 to 2017/18, by way of the sources in 4.01 (a) above, is
shown in the table below and amounts to £31.898m.

Page 89



5.01.1

5.02

5.02.1

5.02.2

5.02.3

ESTIMATED AVAILABLE CORE FUNDING 2014/15 - 2017118

2014115 201516 2016M7 2017118 | Total
£m £m £m £m £m

Funding (Excluding Specific ltems)
Unhypothecated Supported Borrowing (USB)1 4299 4299 4299 4299 | 17.19%

General Capital Grant (GCG)1 2616 2616 2616 2616 | 10464
Capital Receipts 1250 1260 1250 1250 | 5.000
(Shortfall) / Surplus from 2013/14 (0.762) (0.762)
Total 7403 8165 8165 8165 | 31.898

1 As per 14115 Final Settlement,

This shows that the total resources available in 2014/15 to fund the
core capital programme are £7.403m.

Funding
The basis for the estimates of funding levels are as follows:-

USB and GCG

The final financial settlement received from WG in December 2013
provided a total of £6.915m, £4.299m through USB and £2.616m via
GCG. This has been assumed to be consistent throughout the
reporting period.

Capital Receipts

The issue of capital receipts continues to be a problematic one for
the Council. [n the current economic climate it is difficult to predict
with certainty when disposals will be effected and the funds therefore
realised to support the capital programme. This led to the Council's
decision to withhold 20% of the core programme in the current
financial year. The Month 6 report to Cabinet on 17" December
recommended that this 20% continue to be held back in 2013/14.

As a consequence of this continued position it is considered to be
imprudent to set capital budgets where the funding may not be
realised. It is therefore recommended that the 2014/15 core capital
programme budget be set based on a minimal capital receipts target
of £1.250m, which the Council is confident can be achieved. This
will have the effect of reducing the overall core programme by c30%
(£3.083m) in 2014/15 from that indicated last year.

Page 90



5.02.4

5.02.5

5.02.6

5.02.7

5.03

5.04

Any receipts generated over and above the target figure of £1.250m
could either be:-

¢ Released in year to supplement the programme; or

e Allocated in 2015/16 by adding them to WG funding to fund
the core capital programme or utilised to fund capital works
arising from the asset review.

It is further recommended that any such additional receipts in
2014/15 be kept until the 2015/16 financial year, so that going
forward each subsequent year's budget is based on actual receipts
from the previous year, placing the Capital Programme on a more
secure footing during difficult economic times.

As a result of the uncertainty about receipt levels, the forecast of
receipts in this report is limited to four years rather than the 10 years
which has been provided in reports in previous years and is forecast
at a consistent level over the period.

Whilst it is appreciated that this approach may cause short term
operational challenges, this process will allow future core capital
programmes to be set based on known levels of funding and will
remove the uncertainty over capital planning that has been inherent
in previous years.

Shortfall from 2013/14

As previously reported in capital monitoring reports, the final shortfall
carried into 2013/14 was £3.028m as a result of receipts in previous
years not reaching anticipated levels. This was mitigated by the 20%
holdback in year and the capital receipt received on the liquidation of
AD Waste and increased by a shortfall in in-year capital receipts and
new budget pressures, resulting in a revised shortfall of £0.762m
carried into 2014/15 (Section 3.05.5 of the Month 6 monitoring report
to Cabinet on 17" December 2013 refers).

Allocation of the available funding

As indicated in 5.01.1, the total amount available to fund the core
capital programme in 2014/15 is £7.403m.

In taking a broadly one year approach to the capital programme,
pending the longer term planning described in 3.04, it is important to
adopt a risk based approach to identify any urgent capital needs
which need to be addressed in 2014/15 to avoid known and
unavoidable pressures arising and causing pressure on the
programme in year. This has been restricted to contractual and
health & safety matters only.

Page 91



5.06

5.06

5.07

6.00

6.01

As a result, two items for inclusion have been identified and it is
recommended that these be met from the core programme
resources before allocating the remainder to core schemes:-

CAPITAL BUDGET 14/15 - ADDITIONAL ITEMS

SCHEME DESCRIPTION VALUE
£m
Glanrafon Centre, Queensfemry ~ Health and safety works to roof and 0.060
infernal facilities
A548 Highways Works Contractual claim re additional works 0.085
0.145

This leaves £7.258m to be allocated to the remaining core schemes.
Heads of Service from all three operational Directorates and
Corporate Services carried out an in-depth review of the core
schemes to recognise any statutory/contractual obligations and
inherent risks in reducing funding from previously indicated levels. In
addition, consideration has been given to the timing of programmes,
client groups, links with external funding partners, the level of funding
in prior years and specific funding needs for 2014/15.

The resulting recommended allocations for 2014/15 can be found in
Appendix 1. Detailed programmes for future years will be drawn up
in the light of actual levels of receipts becoming known.

ESTIMATED TOTAL COUNCIL FUND CAPITAL PROGRAMME

The total projected funding available (including the core programme)
over the 4 year period 2014/15 to 2017/18, by way of the sources in
4.01 (a) to (d) above, is shown in the table below and amounts to
£101.361m.

Page 92



6.02

6.03

6.04

6.05

ESTIMATED AVAILABLE TOTAL FUNDING 2014/15-2017/18
2014115 201516 2016117 2017M8 | Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Funding (Total)
General Funding
Unhypothecated Supported Bormowing (USB) 1 4299 4299 4299 4299 | 17.1%
General Capital Grant (GCG)1 2616 2616 2616 2616 | 10464
Capital Receipts 1260 1250 1250 1250 | 5.000
(Shortfall) / Surplus from 2013/14 (0.762) (0.762)
Sub Total 7403 8165 8165 8165 | 31.898
Specific Funding
Specific Capital Grants 5215 0747 0576 6.59
Unsupported (Prudential) Bomowing 1960 21558 4043 0504 | 28.065
Local Govt Borrowing Initiafive - Highways 2.700 2.700
Local Govt Borrowing Initiative - 21st C Schools 3635 22698 5263 0504 | 32.100
Sub Total 13570 45003 9882  1.008 | 69.463
Total Funding Available 20973 53168 18.047 9473 | 101.361
1 As per 14115 Final Settlement.

This shows that the total resources available in 2014/15 to fund the
capital programme are £20.973m.

Appendix 2 sets out the estimated total capital programme for
2014/15, taking account of all funding sources referred to in Section
4. These are detailed below.

The core allocations, as funded by those sources referred to in
Section 5, can be found in the column ‘General'.

Specific allocations can be found in the column ‘Specific’. In 2014/15
this adds further investment of £13.570m (See 6.06 to 6.09 below).

Page 93



6.06

6.07

6.08

6.09

6.10

7.00

7.01

Specific grants amount to £5.275m and include £1.7m Regional
Transport Grant, £1.542m Transition to 21C Schools and £0.950m
for Land Drainage. The amounts included are based on historical
allocations and information available at the time of writing the report,
any subsequent variation in the level of individual grants will be dealt
with by amending the budget as necessary in year. These allocations
are for specific time durations hence the variation in amount year on
year.

Unsupported (prudential) borrowing of £1.960m relates to funding for
schemes approved in previous years.

A further £4m is to be made available across Wales by WG in
2014/15 under the Local Government Borrowing Initiative (on top of
the £4m provided in 2012/13 and 2013/14) to support the borrowing
charges (revenue) of highways capital works. This equates to £2.7m
for Flintshire in 2014/15.

In addition to the above, WG has recently announced an extension
of the LGBI to include schools; this will bring forward funding
(between 2014/15 and 2016/17) of £200m across Wales, which will
be used to support the borrowing charges (revenue) that fund the
WG element of the 21st Century Schools Programme. This equates
to £3.635m for Flintshire in 2014/15.

It can be seen that the indicative funding for 2015/16 includes
£44.176m related to 21 C schools. Whilst preliminary expenditure
on the 21% C schools programme has taken place in 2013/14, the
programme is for significant expenditure to commence from 2015/16
to deliver on the £64m of investment in Flintshire schools under the
21%' C programme which is funded equally by Flintshire and WG.

CONSULTATION

A meeting of the Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny
Committee was held on 3rd February 2014, at which the capital
programme proposals as set out in this paper were considered. The
scrutiny meeting was open to all Members of the Council and the
feedback from the meeting is incorporated at Appendix 3

Page 94



8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

13.00

13.01

14.00

14.01

RECOMMENDATIONS

Cabinet is asked to recommend to Council on 18™ February that
they:

(a) Note the report.

(b) Approve the allocation of funding to the core capital
programme in 2014/15, as shown in Appendix 1, including
the additional items referred to in Section 5.05, and note the
indicative funding available for future years.

(c) Approve the setting of a minimal capital receipts target for
2014/15 and the process whereby receipts generated in one
financial year are used to fund expenditure in the next (See
Section 5.02.3 and 5.02.4).

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

As set out in the report.

ANTI-POVERTY IMPACT

Individual Capital Programme Schemes may have specific anti-
poverty impacts.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

Individual Capital Programme Schemes may have specific
environmental impacts.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

Individual Capital Programme Schemes may have specific equality
impacts.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None directly as a result of this report.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

All Members through Overview & Scrutiny.

Page 95



15.00

15.01

15.02

16.00

16.01

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

Initial discussion took place at the Member workshops on 16™ and
18™ December, 2013.

Corporate Resources Overview & Scruting Committee on 3™
February.

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 — Core Capital Programme Schemes 2014/15
Appendix 2 — Total Capital Programme 2014/15
Appendix 3 — Feedback from Overview and Scrutiny

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer:  Gary Ferguson
Telephone: 01352 702271
Email: gary.ferguson@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 96



CORE CAPITAL PROGRAMME SCHEMES APPENDIX 1

2014/15
Estimate
£m
SUMMARY
COUNCIL FUND
COMMUNITY SERVICES 1.885
ENVIRONMENT 2.345
LIFELONG LEARNING 2.035
CORPORATE SERVICES 1.135
TOTAL - COUNCIL FUND 7.400
FINANCING
Unhypothecated Supported Borrowing (USB) 4.299
General Capital Grant 2.616
Capital Receipts 0.488
(Unallocated - Headroom)) / Under Financing (0.003)
TOTAL - FINANCING 7.400

Page 97



CORE CAPITAL PROGRAMME SCHEMES APPENDIX 1 (Cont.)

2014/15
Estimate
£m
COMMUNITY SERVICES
Grants
Various Private Sector Renewal and Improvements 1.730
Shotton Housing Renewal Area Support 0.155
TOTAL - COMMUNITY SERVICES 1.885
ENVIRONMENT
Administrative Buildings
Various Disability Discrimination Act (DDA) Works 0.175
Various Energy Efficiency Measures 0.100
Various Renewable Energy Installations 0.100
Various Asbestos Removal 0.070
Various Legionella Monitoring 0.070
Various Upgrading Fire and Intruder Alarms 0.055
Various Fire Safety Order Works 0.100
Various Corporate Property Maintenance 0.350
Queensferry  Glanrafon - Health & Safety Works 0.060
Engineering
Various Land Drainage Works - General 0.045
Various Coast Protection Works - General 0.070
| Highways
Various Highways Infrastructure 0.520
Various Bridge Assessments and Replacement 0.100
Various Street Lighting Replacement 0.120
Various Structural Maintenance 0.120
Gronant A548 Contractual Claim 0.085
Regeneration
Various Town Centre Regeneration 0.130
Flint Townscape Heritage Initiative 0.075
|  TOTAL - ENVIRONMENT | 2.345 |

Page 98



CORE CAPITAL PROGRAMME SCHEMES APPENDIX 1 (Cont.)

2014/15
Estimate
£m
LIFELONG LEARNING
Education - General
Various School Buildings Repairs and Maintenance 1.700
Various Disability Discrimination Act - Individual Pupils 0.250
Various Fumiture and Equipment 0.045
Primary Schools
Various Learning Environments (Foundation Phase) 0.040
TOTAL - LIFELONG LEARNING 2.035
CORPORATE SERVICES
ICT and Customer Services
General ICT Infrastructure 0.170
General Agile Working Investment 0.070
General EDRMS Implementation 0.065
General ICT Infrastructure 0.140
General Microsoft Enterprise Agreement 0.350
Flintshire Connects
Various Flintshire Connects 0.250
Corporate Finance
General Minor Capital Works - Health & Safety 0.075
General Corporate Provision - Feasibility Studies
Clwyd Theatr Cymru
General Provision 0.015
TOTAL - CORPORATE SERVICES 1.135
| TOTAL - COUNCIL FUND 7.400 |

Page 99



Page 100



TOTAL CAPITAL PROGRAMME SCHEMES APPENDIX 2
Estimate 2014/15
Estimated Financing
Payments General  Specific
£m £m £m

SUMMARY

COUNCIL FUND

COMMUNITY SERVICES 2.461 1.885 0.576

ENVIRONMENT 8.146 2.345 5.801

LIFELONG LEARNING 9.228 2.035 7.193

CORPORATE SERVICES 1.135 1.135 0.000

TOTAL - COUNCIL FUND

20.970 7400 13.570

FINANCING

Unhypothecated Supported Borrowing (USB) 4,299 4.299

General Capital Grant 2.616 2.616

Capital Receipts 0.488 0.488

Specific Capital Grants 5.275 5.275
Unsupported (Prudential) Borrowing 1.960 1.960
Local Government Borrowing Initiative (LGBI) - Highways 2.700 2.700
Local Government Borrowing Initiative (LGB) - 21C Schools 3.635 3.635

(Unallocated - Headroom) / Under Financing

(0.003) (0.003) _ 0.000

TOTAL - FINANCING

20.970 7400 13.570

Page 101




TOTAL CAPITAL PROGRAMME SCHEMES APPENDIX 2 (Cont.)
Estimate 2014/15
Estimated Financing
Payments | General = Specific
£m £m £m

COMMUNITY SERVICES
Grants

Various Private Sector Renewal and Improvements 1.878 1.730 0.148

Shotton Housing Renewal Area Support 0.433 0.155 0.278
Travellers' Sites

Queensferry Riverside Caravan Site 0.150 0.150

TOTAL - COMMUNITY SERVICES 2.461 1.885 0.576
ENVIRONMENT
Administrative Buildings

Various Disability Discrimination Act (DDA) Works 0.175 0.175

Various Energy Efficiency Measures 0.100 0.100

Various Renewable Energy Installations 0.100 0.100

Various Asbestos Removal 0.070 0.070

Various Legionella Monitoring 0.070 0.070

Various Upgrading Fire and Intruder Alarms 0.055 0.055

Various Fire Safety Order Works 0.100 0.100

Various Cormporate Property Maintenance 0.350 0.350

Alltami Depot Rationalisation 0.075 0.075

Queensferry Glanrafon - Health & Safety Works 0.060 0.060
Engineering

Various Land Drainage Works - General 0.995 0.045 0.950

Various Coast Protection Works - General 0.070 0.070
|Highways

Various Highways Infrastructure 2.220 0.520 1.700

Various Bridge Assessments and Replacement 0.100 0.100

Various Street Lighting Replacement 0.120 0.120

Various Structural Maintenance 0.120 0.120

Various Local Government Borrowing Initiative (LGBI) 2.700 2.700

Gronant A548 Contractual Claim 0.085 0.085
Regeneration

Various Town Centre Regeneration 0.137 0.130 0.007

Flint Townscape Heritage Initiative 0.309 0.075 0.234
Ranger Services

Connahs Quay Wepre Park Development 0.135 0.135

TOTAL - ENVIRONMENT 8.146 2.345 5.801

Page 102




TOTAL CAPITAL PROGRAMME SCHEMES APPENDIX 2 (Cont.)
Estimate 2014/15
Estimated Financing
Payments General Specific
£m £m £m

LIFELONG LEARNING
Education - General

Various School Buildings Repairs and Maintenance 1.700 1.700

Various Disability Discrimination Act - Individual Pupils 0.250 0.250

Various Fumiture and Equipment 0.045 0.045
School Modernisation

Various 21st Century Schools 5.268 5.268

Shotton Taliesin Junior/Shotton Infant 1.794 1.794
Primary Schools

Various Leamning Environments (Foundation Phase) 0.040 0.040

Various Flying Start Capital Expansion Programme 0.131 0.131

TOTAL - LIFELONG LEARNING 9.228 2.035 7.193
CORPORATE SERVICES
ICT and Customer Services

General ICT Infrastructure 0.170 0.170

General Agile Working Investment 0.070 0.070

General EDRMS Implementation 0.065 0.065

General ICT Infrastructure 0.140 0.140

General Microsoft Enterprise Agreement 0.350 0.350
Flintshire Connects

Various Flintshire Connects 0.250 0.250
Corporate Finance

General Minor Capital Works - Health & Safety 0.075 0.075

General Corporate Provision - Feasibility Studies
Clwyd Theatr Cymru

General Provision 0.015 0.015
| TOTAL - CORPORATE SERVICES [ 1435 1435  0.000 |
| TOTAL - COUNCIL FUND | 20970  7.400 13570 |

Page 103



Page 104



‘Bunjesw ay} Jo apisino pspiroid
8q [IM S[e}op ‘OAIISuUas  Aj[elosswiliod  a10jaiay)
s| pue suolnjenobau [enyoenuod Buiobuo jo ped si siyl

JUBUOID Ul 4G80°03 dU} S! jeym

skemybBiH | 0'¢
‘Bopjoeq
ay) bBuissolppe UsA8 Jou ale am ‘[aAd| Siy} uey)
alow Je senunuod sbuipjing [00YIS JNO Ul uolelous}ap
‘swiwelboid 8100 3y} Wouy uoledo|je |enuue ) ‘wo0l'L3 Ol umop S| uonedoje GL/L02
sy} uey} alow Aq Buionpal si Bopjoeq soueusiuiew ay | sy} pue siyedas jo Boppeq sbiel e (IS sI iyl e
aoueuadjuiely g Jieday [ooyds | 0°C
‘s19910 AQ uO paxiom Buleg Ajjualind ale sawayds
Z oyouel] Jo sjelea  (LL0Z Jeqwedsq) [1Punod
Ag pue 9\ Aq paalbe usaq Apealje sAey AlsjsuasnDd ¢dwuwelbold s|jooyos
pue Aenp s,yeuuod ‘||lomAjOH Ul sawayos | ayduel] AINjua) L.Z 8y} Ul 81 S|00YIS YOIym S3pIosp OUM @
¢uoday 8y} Jo |09 ul 8|qe 8y} Ul WSE9'E3
"wg9Z G3 8y} jo Yed dn sayew WGEY'EF 8U} 'ON ay) 0} uonippe ul Z xipuaddy ul wggzZ' S 8y S| o
uonesIiulapo [ooYyds | 0°L
:sasuodsay :suolsany pue sjudaWWoH ‘ON

awweibold [ejide) pung [IoUno) — S82Jnosay 9djelodio)

ANILNYIS ® M3IIAYIAO

€ XIAN3ddV

Page 105



‘pajeosyjodAyun
suiewsal wns [ej0} 8y} ybnoyye ‘Junowe ©Sy ay) jo dn
ayew ay} ul Ajjeayioads umoys sl (g9 40} JUnowie ayy
ey} paynuapl sey Bunsaw Auniog ay) souls yosessay

"ainjny ay} ul uonedssyjodAy aiow 10y
[1ea st VOM ‘196pnq anusaal jenuue ay) Buijas usym
spun} asay} sousjbull Jouued [1DUNOD By} Jey} uesw
Jou saop jey; ybnoy} ‘eoejd saye) JuswaIes ay} Uuiym
syjunowe jo Buouajbul ou pue pajesayjodAyun si HSY

"SI9qQUIB |[e 0} Juds aq
Im asuodsal ay) Jo Adoo v j1ouno) Aluno) e Ajjuadal
pesies Auanb Jejjuis B 0} asuodsal aaAlsusayaldwod
alow B jJo ued aq |Mm Ssiy 0} sasuodsal ayl

‘(sAemybiy Jo ased ay} ul
siesaA (0g) Buimollog ay) Jo pouad 8y} 1o} ©SY 8y} Ul SI
poddns anuaaal Siy| “jeyaq Jisy} uo Moliog 0} [1IounoD)
3y} ajqeus 0} poddns snusAal ay} Buipinoid ale AN

¢, Sluswajpas ainny
10§ OM Yim dn siy} axe} [19UN0D B} JO 19pEeaT By} [IIM

£ JUBWIHWWOD UMOUY B S| )i SB

paosuajbuul 8q Jou )l pjnoD ¢,0s|e adnpal yoddns ay)
SQ0p ‘sieaA aininy ui seanpal jey} pue (9SY) Juels
Hoddng anuaaay ayj ul si Joddns anuaaal ay} |

¢AJuo 1salsyul Jo sjuswAedal
}salojui pue |ediouud 1o yoddns anusaAal [g97 8Y) S|

iJeysq s,.9M uo Bumolloq ale am jey 1081100
1l sI ‘Wodai ay} Jo 60°9 Pue g0’ seled o) Bunejey

(1997) °AeRIu] BuIMOII0g JUSWIUIBAOL) [ED0]

:sasuodsay

:suoljsany pue sjuUdWIWO)

swiwieiboid [ejide) pung [IoUN0) — Sa2Jnosay ojelodion

ANILLN™IS ® MIIAYIAO

€ XIAN3ddV

Page 106



§[5s]¥[alele)
Aq panoidde usaq sey Buipun) ay) aduo sajpuoud pue
spaau payiuapl uo paseq padojaaap ale sswwelbold

‘syJom yaq “6°e Jeak uj asue Aay}
Se sanss| ssalppe 0} 818y} ale Ing ooads eale 10 a)s
Jou ale swwelbold 810 8y} Ul suoiedo|e ayj Jo Auep

‘GL/ve0c 10}
$80IN0SaJ 8y} U0 |[e0 }sdi) Sey [[ejuoys siyl "sJeaA soud

ul pejewsas uey Jamo| Buieq sydieoas [eydeo jo }nsal
B SB pus Jeak sy} je se sawasyos [eyded papwwod
jo Buipunj-sopun pajewnse a8y} Si ||Bjuoys  siyl

£,.SNOUBA, Sk pa)Jew sway
asoy) Jo} dn umelp sswuwesbosd Apealse aiay) aly

&SIW}
sI AUM ", SNOLIBA, SI UOIJROO| Palels 8y} a1aym Sawayos
Jo Jsqunu e ale aloyl — aswweisboid [enden

¢WiZ9/L 03 4O |lepOys
pajosfoid ay) Joj uoneuedxs oy} si JBUM - |lejHoYS

jeisuas)

0°'S

:sasuodsay

:SUOIISaNY pue sjusawwon

‘ON

awiweabold [ejide) pung |IoUN0) — S80IN0Say ojelodio)

ANILNYIS B MIIAAYIAO

€ XIAN3addV

Page 107



Page 108



Agenda ltem 11

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

DATE: TUESDAY, 18 FEBRUARY 2014

REPORT BY: HEAD OF FINANCE., DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY
SERVICES, HEAD OF HOUSING

SUBJECT: HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT 2014/15 & CAPITAL
PROGRAMME 2014/15

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To present the Housing Revenue Account (HRA):-

1.02 Revenue budget proposals for the 2014/15 financial year, including
proposed rent changes, key areas of income and expenditure, and the
level of closing balance at the year end.

1.03 Budget proposals for the HRA capital programme 2014/15, which is
year three of a six year improvement programme.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 The final proposals for the HRA Revenue and Capital budget for the
2014/15 financial year, including proposed rent increases were
considered by Cabinet on 18" February 2014, and recommendations
made to County Council. A copy of the report is attached as
Appendix 1.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01  The outcome of the Cabinet meeting will be reported verbally to the
Council, along with a presentation on the main details of the HRA for
2014/15.

4.00 RECOMMENDATIONS

4,01 Members are recommended to receive and approve the
recommendation from Cabinet on 18" February 2014.

5.00 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

5.01 As set out in the report to Cabinet on 18" February 2014.

Page 109



6.00 ANTIPOVERTY IMPACT

6.01  None directly as a result of this report.

7.00 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

7.01  None directly as a result of this report.

8.00 EQUALITIES IMPACT

8.01 None directly as a result of this report.

9.00 PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

9.01 None directly as a result of this report.

10.00 CONSULTATION REQUIRED

10.01 None directly as a result of this report.

11.00 CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

11.01 None directly as a result of this report.

12.00 APPENDICES

12.01 Appendix 1 — Report to Cabinet — 18" February 2014.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
2014/15 Budget Working Papers

Contact Officer: Nicola Spencer
Telephone: 01352 703431
Email: Nicola.Spencer@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 110



FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 18 FEBRUARY 2014

REPORT BY: CHIEF EXECUTIVE, HEAD OF FINANCE, DIRECTOR
OF COMMUNITY SERVICES, HEAD OF HOUSING

SUBJECT: HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT 2014/15 & CAPITAL
PROGRAMME 2014/15

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To consider the Housing Revenue Accounts (HRA) budget as set out

1.02

1.03

1.04

2.00

2.01

2.02

2.03

2.04

in 1.02 and 1.03.

Revenue budget proposals for the 2014/15 financial year, including
proposed rent and service charge changes, key areas of income and
expenditure, and the level of closing balance at the year end.

Budget proposals for the HRA Capital programme 2014/15, which is
year three of a six year improvement programme.

To note the impact of the proposed revenue budget and capital
programme on the HRA 30 year Business Plan.

BACKGROUND

As the Council has a stock of Council housing, it is required by the
Local Government and Housing Act 1989 to keep a HRA in
accordance with proper accounting practices, and to budget to avoid
an end of year deficit.

The HRA is a “ring-fenced” account of certain defined transactions
relating to Local Authority Housing. The ring-fenced nature of the
account means that funding cannot be transferred between the
Council Fund and HRA or vice versa, other than in certain prescribed
circumstances.

Although there is a legal requirement to avoid an end of year deficit, it
is also considered to be good practice to budget for a closing balance
of at least 3% of total expenditure of the HRA.

Prior to the start of each financial year, the Welsh Government (WG)
consults with Local Authorities on the draft HRA subsidy and Item 8
determinations. These are the key financial determinations set each
year by WG which influence Local Authority rent increases, and also
the amount of HRA subsidy payable by the council. The two main

Page 111

APPENDIX 1



2.05

2.06

2.07

2.08

2.09

2.10

elements of the consultation are the “guideline rent increase” and the
Management and Maintenance (M&M) element of the HRA subsidy.

The management and maintenance allowance element of HRA
subsidy is the amount which WG considers each Local Authority
requires per HRA dwelling to manage and maintain the housing stock
held within the HRA.

Initial budget proposals for 2014/15 were approved by Cabinet on 21
January 2014 and considered by the Housing Overview and Scrutiny
Committee later the same day. The revenue budget and capital
programme proposals were welcomed by scrutiny and no changes
were requested to the initial budget proposals set out by the Cabinet.
A summary of the questions raised at the scrutiny meeting and
responses provided is included as Appendix 6.

New Rent Policy for Wales and exit from the HRA subsidy system

The new rent policy will be introduced in April 2015 and will allow for
the convergence of rents for both local authority and registered social
landlords. The rent policy sets a target rent band for each landlord
and landlords will be required to operate with average weekly rent
levels that fall within the scope of those bands. The banding is 5%
above or below the target rent.

Where a landlord’s weekly rent is higher than the target rent band, the
landiord will be expected to increase its rents more slowly e.g. at 0.5%
less than the rate of rent increases for the sector as a whole until the
average weekly rent falls within the target rent band.

Where a landlord’s weekly rent is lower than the target rent band,
transitional protection will apply to tenants. In any year a landlord will
not be permitted to increase the rent for any individual tenant by more
than £2 per week in addition to the agreed average annual rate of rent
increases for the sector as a whole.

The introduction of the new rents policy will also mark the end of the
current subsidy system where the HRA returns an element of its rents
back to WG (Currently £6.0m for Flintshire) each year. Stock owning
local authorities will ‘buy out’ of the system via a one off payment to
HM Treasury funded from HRA prudential borrowing. It is anticipated
that the change will be advantageous for Councils. WG agreed the
principle of the exit from the subsidy system in June 2013 and the
details of how this will be brought into place across Wales are being
developed. Further reports will be brought to Members, when the
details are known.

Page 112



3.00

3.01

3.02

3.03

3.04

CONSIDERATIONS
REVENUE BUDGET 2014/15

The final Housing Revenue Account subsidy and Item 8
determinations were received from WG on the 3™ February 2014.
There was one minor adjustment to the proposed guideline rent for
Flintshire to the Draft determinations that were received 20"
December 2013, with all other aspects of the determinations
unchanged.

Guideline Rent Increase
The final determinations from WG are to increase the all-Wales
average weekly guideline rent by 4.2%.

e using the previous September CPI inflation figure of 2.7% and

e and apply a 1.5% real increase to the average local authority
guideline rent for 2014-15.

The guideline rent increase is the amount by which WG considers
each Authority should increase weekly rents in order to make
progress towards achievement of the key WG objective of
“benchmark” rents, where Local Authority and Registered Social
Landlords (RSL) rents for similar properties in similar areas are
broadly the same.

The final guideline weekly rent increase for Flintshire 2014/15 is £3.32
per week, (on a 52 week collection basis). This is a percentage
increase of 4.63% (4.60% at provisional stage) to rents compared to
the all Wales average of 4.2%. The difference mainly due to a factor
that is applied to all councils for economic value of the stock, this is
however a reduced increase compared to the 2013/14 budget which
saw an increase in rents of 5.0%. Currently 9% of Flintshire social
rents are at the benchmark level.

The current levels of benefit claimants amongst Flintshire housing
tenants are illustrated in the table below :-

Flintshire Tenants - Housing Benefit
Claimants
Tenants
Benefit Status Number %
Full/Partial Benefit 4985 67.1%
Full Rent 2441 32.9%
Total 7426 100.0%

Page 113



3.05

3.06

3.07

3.08

3.09

3.10

3.1

3.12

As illustrated above, approximately 67.1% of the Councils 7,426
tenants would face no additional hardship as a consequence of the
proposed rent increase. This will be met by housing benefit subject to
claimants personal circumstances remaining the same and their
households being unaffected by Welfare Reform. Those tenants who
are not currently in receipt of benefit will naturally have to meet the full
increase in rent, unless they become eligible for housing benefit.

It is proposed to reduce the bad debt provision which will create
savings of £0.208m. Welfare reform has not impacted on arrears as
severely as anticipated in 2013/14 and this has been reflected in the
2014/15 budget proposals.

Management and Maintenance allowance

The Management and Maintenance allowance element of Housing
Revenue Account Subsidy increases to £2,769 per dwelling for each
local authority, reflecting an increase of £159 per dwelling (6.1%) on
2013/14.

Rent Increase — Garages

The 2014/15 increased rent level for all HRA garages is £5.75 per
week, an increase of £0.25 per week (4.63%) compared to 2013/14
(and in line with rent increases for homes).

General Income

The HRA budget has been realigned for 2014 to follow the same
format of the 30 year business plan which is submitted to WG. This
includes showing all areas of income under one heading.

£0.734m general income has been included in the plan reflecting
£0.531m for water bill collection and other smaller items of general
income. It also includes increased income of £0.126m following a
new charging policy for the tenants gardening service.

HRA — Key areas of expenditure

Appendix 1 sets out a summary of the proposed HRA budget for
2014/15 and compares it to the 2013/14 budget.

Appendix 2 shows the assumptions which have been made in
calculating the figures.

Appendix 3 shows the detail of proposed savings and efficiencies,
and investment for service improvements.

The approach to developing the draft budget has been to maximise
the efficiencies which could be made and to invest in service
improvements as set out in the Choices document. Overall the
proposed budget provides £0.536m of additional investment in
services and £0.789m of additional funding for the capital programme
over the levels in 2013/14 and makes savings of £1.144m. The total
savings figure equates to 6.9% of total operating costs.

Page 114



3.13

3.14

3.156

Estate Management
Estate management has identified efficiencies of £0.021m against the

2013/14 budget following VFM and back to basic reviews.

The funding for 2 full year Anti Social Behaviour (ASB) posts is
proposed as agreed in the Choices Document and also opening of the
ASB out of hours service to direct referrals is proposed. This will be at
a cost of £0.017m.

Service improvements totalling £0.038m are proposed to introduce a
Handy Person Service in Flintshire which is designed to aid tenants
with minor property repairs.

The funding for 2 posts to support tenants at risk of financial exclusion
is proposed at a cost of £0.052m as agreed in the Choices Document.

Landlord Services
The Landlord service is reflecting an increased spend of £0.336m
compared to 2013/14.

£0.324m is a realignment of the garden service including communal
land which is now reflected under landlord services rather than Estate
management. The gardening service has also created a saving of
£0.125m on 2013/14 costs following a review of the contract.

WG expects landlords to introduce charging for services that are only
available to specific tenants to maximise income through the HRA and
enable improvements to stock. As agreed at Cabinet, on 17"
December 2013, it is the intention to provide a chargeable service for
grass and hedge cutting from 1% April 2014. The new contract costs
of £0.126m will be recovered via a chargeable service to the tenant
creating additional income in the HRA.

Repairs and Maintenance

The housing repairs service is continuing its drive to develop into a
modern and efficient customer focused service. Repairs and
Maintenance is the largest element of expenditure within the HRA at
£8.467m. It is proposed to spend an additional £0.074m compared to
2013/14 a unit cost of £1,170 per property in 2014/15, compared to
£1,138 in 2013/14.

Repairs and maintenance have created savings of £0.070m following
value for money reviews on fleet and back to basics. The budget on
subcontractors has also been reduced by £0.050m.

An increased cost of £0.300m has been anticipated on materials.
This budget has been adjusted to reflect an increase of approximately
2,000 repairs per year and the requirement for subcontractors to
utilise the stores to enable greater control over material costs charged
via subcontractors.

Page 115



3.16

3.17

3.18

3.19

Capital Expenditure financed from Revenue Account
Capital expenditure financed from the revenue account (CERA)

enables additional investment in the HRA Capital Programme. The
use of this additional source of financing for capital improvements
helps to progress the work to achieve the requirements of the Welsh
Housing Quality Standard (WHQS). An investment of £6,581m has
been included in the 2014/15 budget which is an increase of £0.789m
on the 2013/14 budget.

Finance and Support Services

Finance and Support have identified an efficiency of £0.102m against
the 2013/14 budget. These savings have been identified through the
reduction of support recharges, one year temporary staff efficiencies
and a review of the admin service.

Closing Balance
A closing balance of 3.20% is recommended for 2014/15 as per

2013/14. This enables the Council to maximise investment in WHQS.

CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2014/15
Executive approved a 6 year capital improvement programme
commencing in 2012/13, on 19th July 2011.

At the end of the programme all council homes will have:-

A WHQS standard kitchen

A WHQS heating system

Smoke detectors

1300 homes will have WHQS standard bathrooms

This is year 3 of the original 6 year programme and Appendix 4 sets
out the proposed capital expenditure for 2014/15. The total proposed
capital funding for 2014/15 is £12.106m as set out below. This figure
is reduced marginally by £0.275m from the initial proposals in the
January report to Cabinet and Scrutiny. A further assessment of the
likely level of capital receipts in 2014/15 has been made which takes
account on market conditions. As a result the estimate for capital
receipts has been reduced from £0.600m to £0.325m. Should further
land receipts materialise in 2014/15 then further work can be
undertaken as agreed at scrutiny.

A revised Asset Management strategy is under development and will
be implemented from April 2015, subject to approval. This revised
strategy will ensure that all stock achieves the WHQS by 2020, and
will therefore involve the introduction of a number of new work
streams to address all investment needs both internal, external and
estate based environmental improvements.

Page 116



3.20

3.21

3.22

3.23

3.24

4.00

4.01

Home Ownership
Zero sales have been assumed for Right to Buy in 2014/15 for budget
purposes.

30 YEAR BUSINESS PLAN
It is a requirement of WG for all stock owning local authorities to

produce a robust business plan showing how they will meet WHQS by
the target of 2020.

Appendix 5 sets out the most up to date estimate of Flintshire’s 30
year HRA business plan, based on the proposed 2014/15 revenue
budget and capital programme as set out in this report. The plan
shows a projected funding shortfall of £8.005m to meet WHQS by
2020 a reduction of £6.520m on the funding shortfall projected in the
2013/14 business plan submitted to WG.

This is a slight change from initial proposals in the January report to
Cabinet and Scrutiny which reflects the reduced level of capital
receipts. A draft business plan was submitted on 17th January 2014
as required to access the MRA and a revised Business Plan and a
slightly revised capital programme will be submitted following Council
approval.

The Council’s preference in relation to achieving WHQS is to seek to
avoid borrowing for this purpose, but the Council has indicated to WG
that should this be necessary in order to achieve WHQS by 2020 then
it would do so. It can be seen that the gap has reduced significantly
because of the efficiencies within the HRA and additional revenue
income. The shortfall could potentially be met by prudential borrowing
if the gap is not closed over the next three years from savings
anticipated following rent reform and the exit from the subsidy system
along with driving through ingoing efficiencies to create more
resources for investment.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Members are asked to approve and recommend to Council :
i. The proposed HRA budget for 2014/15 as set out in Appendix
1, incorporating the financial assumptions in Appendix 2 and
the service Improvements and Efficiencies in Appendix 3.

ii. The level of rent and service charges for 2014/15 as set out in
paragraphs 3.01 to 3.07

ii. The level of projected balances at 31%! March 2015 at 3.20% of
total expenditure.

iv. The proposed HRA Capital Programme as set out in Appendix
4.

Page 117



4.02

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00
8.01
9.00
9.01
10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

Members are asked to note the impact of the proposed revenue
budget and capital programme on the 30 year Business Plan.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The Council has a statutory duty to review the income and
expenditure of the HRA, and to set a budget for the forthcoming
financial year which avoids a deficit closing balance position. This
report sets out how this can be achieved for the Council in 2014/15.
The key financial assumptions on which this is proposed are set out in
Appendix 2. The proposed budget estimates a closing balance of
3.20% to total expenditure.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

HRA activity helps alleviate poverty by providing safe and secure
homes that are energy efficient and economical to run. The ongoing
programme maintains the impetus to upgrade heating etc., to
minimise fuel use and thereby boost disposable income.
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

There are no direct environmental impacts arising from the HRA
budget as outlined in the report.

EQUALITIES IMPACT
There are no direct equalities impacts arising from this report.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

There are no direct personnel implications arising from the report.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

Consultation with all tenants over any rent increase must take place
and must be at least 28 days before any rent increase is due to come
into effect.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

Consultation with tenants on the draft budget and proposed rent
increase was undertaken at the tenants’ conference on 3™ February
2014. The Housing Scrutiny committee considered the draft budget
proposals at their meeting on 21%' January 2014 and fully supported
the proposals.

Page 118



12.00 APPENDICES
Appendix 1 — HRA budget 2014/15 Summary
Appendix 2 — HRA financial assumptions
Appendix 3 - HRA budget pressures, savings & service
improvements.
Appendix 4 — HRA capital budget 2014/15
Appendix 5 — HRA 30 year business plan summary
Appendix 6 — Summary of Questions and Responses

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer: Nicola Spencer
Telephone: 01352 703431
Email: Nicola.Spencer@Flintshire.gov.uk

Page 119



Page 120



HRA BUDGET 2014/15

2013/14 2014/15 | Variance Variance
Budget Budget £ to 2013/14 % to 2013/14
INCOME £ £ £
Rents (Council Dwellings & Garages) -26,918,901 -27,712,804 -793,903 3%
Capitalised Salaries -1,138,661 -1,111,523 27,138 -2%
General Income -590,756 -734,242 -143,486 24%
-28,648,318 -29,558,570| -910,252 3%
EXPENDITURE £ £ £
HRA Subsidy (Negative/Deficit) 6,166,805 6,403,697 236,892 4%
Capital Financing - Loan Charges 2,044,557 1,909,344 -135,213 -7%
Estate Management 2,318,001 1,887,596 -430,405 -18.6%
Landlord Services 500,632 836,225 335,593 67%
Repairs and Maintenance 8,392,993 8,466,870 73,877 1%
Welsh Housing Quality Standard - CERA 5,792,000 6,580,997 788,997 14%
Finance and Support 2,791,460 2,689,804 -101,656 -3.6%
Capitalised Salaries 1,138,661 1,111,523| -27,138 -2%
29,145,108 29,886,056 740,948 3%
(Surplus) / Deficit for the year 496,790 327,486 -169,304
Opening Balance -1,930,630 -1,283,840 646,790
HRA Closing Balance -1,433,840 -956,353 477,486
% of Total Expenditure (Guideline 3%) 4.92% 3.20%

Page 121



Page 122



HRA FINANCIAL ASSUMPTIONS - Appendix 2

‘S o 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
-]
@ Description 2014/15 % % %
1 |Guideline Rent av. Rent based on 50 weeks £ 74.96 1.000 1.000 1.000 Prices
2 |Guideline Rent applied, this level assumed for future years 104.6% 1.000 1.000 1.000 Pay
3 |Empty Properties rent loss 1.70% 1.030 1.030 1.030 Income
4 |M and M allowance average per property £ 2,769 1.080 1.080 1.080 Energy
5 |Mand M allowance 106.1% 1.030 1.030 1.030 Insurance
_ )
6 Increase applied to Garage Rents. Charge per week. £ 0.25 1.046 1.042 1.042 Garage Rents
7 |Empty Garages rent loss 21.2% 1.061 1.055 1.055 | MandM Allowance w
a
8 |CERA contribution to Capital £6.581m 0.020 0.020 0.020 | Empty Property
1.000 1000 | 1.000 | BadBebtProvison
1.112 1.112 1.112 Fuel
1.000 1.000 1.000 Price non inflation
1.050 1.050 1.050 Aerial Systems
1.023 1.023 1.023 Rates




Page 124



HRA BUDGET PRESSURES, SAVINGS & INVESTMENT OPTIONS- Appendix 3

Code Bid Ref ADDITIONAL CAPITAL INVESTMENT 2014/15 Notes
HRP/HRR CERA 788,997 |Increased contribution to the Capital programme
Code Bid Ref Increase in Rents 2014115 Notes
HRP/HRR 4.63% Rental Increase as per Welsh Government Guidance -342,622
Code Bid Ref EFFICIENCY SAVING OPTIONS 2014/15 Notes
HRX 15 Support Recharges 106,702 MMM%_M_.&M aﬂﬂﬂvon recharges to the HRA following a review of costs
HRM/HRX 25/4P  |Salary savings -14.954 MHMMMW review implemented. Vacant posts reflected at Single Status
HREMHRM/HRX| 78/12S/2P |Consolidation of general costs -16,015|Realignment of general costs under "Back to Basics”
HRX/HRM 135/20S |Software review -155,448 |Review of software costs and licences, reversal of one off expenditure.
HRR/HRP 218 Capital Financing costs -135,213|Review of costs
HRE 8S/6P  |Tenant Garden works -129,147|Contract tendered
HRE 98 Cleaning of Walks/Leas -28,560 | Contract cancelled due to demolition
HRE 108 Strand House -2,793|Property handed back to HRA
HRE 118 Housing News printing -7,305 |Printing costs lower than previous years
HRM 16S Subscriptions -3,368 |Review of costs
HRM 158 Subcontractors -50,000|Less sub contractor spend
HRM 178 Call out monitoring -3.000{Saving in the contract costs
HRM 258 Fleet Review -50,000}Savings as a result of the corporate fleet review
HRX/HRM 268 Admin Review -71,941{Review of Admin service
HRD/HRL 4S5/5S  |Void properties -31,306 |Savings due to a decrease in number of void properties.
HRL 228 Right to Buy fees -3.275|Reduction in RTB fees
HRD 248 Income from Garden Service recharges -126,000|Charging of service to tenants
HRD 188 Bad Debt Provision - Weilfare Reform -208,216|Calculated on Pd8 arrears figures, impact not as severe as expected.
Total Savings -1,143,242 6.8% of Total Operating Costs
Code Bid Ref Budget Realignment/One off pressures reversed 2014/15 Notes
HRL 68 Adhoc aerial costs -8.500|Reversal of 1yr budget
Total Savings -8,500] 0.1% of Total Operating Costs

Page 125



Code Bid Ref BUDGET PRESSURES/SERVICE IMPROVEMENTS 2014/15 Notes
HRD 14P Garage Voids 16,276 |Increase in garage voids and removal of Castle Hgts
HRX 1P Maisonette Decants 7,442 | Council Tax and Utility costs
HRX 3P Handy person service as per Choices Document 37,360|Agreement for handy person services.
HRX 4P Total Mobile IT Support post 26,2711 yr additional IT post to implement Total Mobile
HRX 4P 2 posts to support tenants at risk of financial exclusion - Choices Document 52,542 |Currently have 2 people short term funded, this funding is ending.
HRE 10P Court Costs 6,000 |Increase in court action taken by Rents and ASB
HRE 13P ASB posts as per Choices document 16,200|Salary 13/14 part year only
HRL 5P Launderette Machine Rental 18,798 | Contract reviewed for Syrs
HRE 9P/11P |Agile working 17,525 | Costs to implement agile working
HRM 16P Materials 300,000 |More repairs completed and more expenditure through stores
ALL Inflation 37,648|Average %
Service Improvements mwo.oan_ 2.0% of Rental income

Page 126



Appendix 4
Draft HRA Capital Programme 2014/15

HRA Capital programme 2014/15
WHQS £'m
Smoke Alarm Installations 0.100
Planned urgent works 0.150
Bathroom replacements 0.500
Heating Replacement - Programme and survey 2.000
Kitchen Replacements - Programme 4.000
DDA Audits 0.100
Fire Risk Assessments Work 0.400
Off Gas Programme 0.400
Environmental Works (footpaths and fences) 0.300
UPVC 0.200
Asbestos Survey and Removal (Ongoing Programme) 0.150
Envelope Works - Roofs, Fascias, Rendering 0.250
Electrical periodicals and rewires 0.150
Capitalised Salaries 0.478
Eco Funding 0.428
Welfare Reform - Remodelling 0.150
Total WHQS 9.756
Non WHQS
Planned urgent works 0.150
Vacant Properties 0.300
Maisonettes 0.575
Disabled Facilty Grants (DFG) - Mandatory/ Minor Adaps 1.000
Total Non - WHQS 2.025
RingFenced Work
Envelope Works - Roofs, Fascias, Rendering -
Vacant Properties 0.100
Eco Funding 0.150
Maisonettes 0.075
Total Ring Fenced Work 0.325
Total Spend 12.106
Funding - Base Programme
M.R.A 5.200
CERA 6.581
Total Base funding 11.781
Capital Receipts
RTB's 13/14 0.000
Land Receipts 0.325
Capital receipts 0.325
HRA Capital Funding 2014/15 Programme 12.106

Unallocated Funds

Page 127




Page 128



S XIAN3ddv

JUNno2o2y Bunesado |epdes Buisnoy alysjul|4

vL1'262- cve'erh- v9l'ze- 0 LE9'6E 0 0 0 002's 0 2sL'8 vv'ev02| O€
€L1'2LC L58'ELY- 660'82- 0 106'9¢€ 0 0 0 002'S 0 229'8 gv'eroe| 6¢
vov'vSe- £.€'08€- 006'92- 0 65t'6€E 0 0 0 002'S 0 S6v'8 eyr'iv0C| 82
Lyb'oce- 60z'8ve- ev.l'ce- 0 950've 0 0 0 00z's 0 09L'LL Lpovoe| L2
vz9'0ze- €LL'oze- 099°'6e- 0 G69°2e 0 0 0 002's 0 G660l v'6€02| 9¢
9L1's0e- viLz'e6e- Lvs'ee- 0 GIE'LE 0 0 0 002's 0 €€8'0L 6£'8€02( S¢
v16'681- LLv'L92- VAN A 0 EELLE 0 0 0 002's 0 €9'0L 8¢',E02| Ve
0L2'vLL- L8 L zeeglL- 0 958'8Z 0 0 0 002Z's 0 G1G'0L LE£'9€02| €T
¥99'6G1- olLz'8Le Lpl'oz- 0 €59°LC 0 0 0 002's 0 90.'ZL 9¢'6e0e| 22
LOL'LYL- €21'861- 891'61L- 0 98v'9Z 0 0 0 002'S 0 8Ls'clL seve0z| L2
298'veL- GG6'8L1L- ceesl- 0 G6e'ST 0 0 0 002's 0 €eeel ve'eeoe| 0C
Lv6'22L- €€2'091- 80€‘LL- 0 6522 0 0 0 002's 0 LSL°2L g€e'ceoc| 61
vSe'LLL- gzh'epL- L62°LL- 0 £€90'vC 0 0 0 002's 0 LL6'LL ce'leog| st
86€'66- peL'ozL- LGL'pL- 0 €91'22 0 0 0 002'S 0 rAL: AR Leoeoz| 2L QN
060'68- €8e'LLL- LEB'EL- 0 €9L'le 0 0 0 002's 0 9zv'ch £'620Z| 9l i
ZLL'6L- Lbb'L6- 0SL'EL- 0 261'0z 0 0 0 002'S 0 tAZATAR 62'820Z| 6SI
€9'69- 162'v8- 06€'CL- 0 1626l 0 0 0 002Z'S 0 290°CL 822202 vl @
zrl'09- L06'LL- ¥S9°LL- 0 8ee'8l 0 0 0 002's 0 €88°'L1 lz9zoz| €L (L
0SL°LG- €62'09- €.8'GlL- 0 6.1'8L 0 0 0 002's 0 L0S°L 9z'6zoe| 2
Lre'ee- 08¢ v L6E'VL- 0 £65°91 0 0 0 002Z's 0 96€'L seveoz| L
€ee'9e- £86'62- ¥¥9'6- 0 09.'G1 0 0 0 002's 0 SLE‘LL veeeoe| oL
550'8L- 6€€'0Z- ze8'SlL- 0 LG6'vlL 0 0 0 002'S 0 6LE'Y €ceeoe| 6
190t~ L0S'p- S61L'CL- 0 890'L 0 0 0 002's 0 €L0°L ceeoz| 8
ce0’L 689°L SEL- 0 yre‘LL 0 0 0 002°s 0 60v'91 eoeoe| L
292'L €28'L 8Z1- 0 G60°LL 0 0 0 002'S 0 9191 26102 9
6v'L 166°'L $S0°'L 0 v.9'6 0 0 0 00z's 0 826'Gl 618102 S
9659 168'9 609'L 0 ¥88'8 0 0 0 002's 0 €69°Gl gLz v
€eL'S 88¢'G 6€L'C 0 LzL'e 0 0 0 002'S 0 Lopv'slL L9102 €
2oL’ 6vL't LGL'E 0 0SS°L 0 0 0 002's 0 L06°GL 91’6102 4
(Al [Ad Al 0 185'9 0 0 009 002's 0 6.€CL SL'¥102 L
0003 0003 0003 0003 0003 0003 0003 0003 0003 0003 0003
uoneyu] 9x3| |{epuoys llesuoys amd/o vi3dd Buimoslog | Buimouriog sidiaoay | asuemoly pmy/g aiypuadx3y Jea \ ON
llejuoys aanenwny Buipuny {epuapnud | papoddng lende?) sieday Bujpunyg leyde) Jeap
SV¥H ajqesn Jofep




Page 130



‘eale o10ads e Ul ¥sap e Je paseq bBuiaq yejs uey) Joyley

"puai) inny e aq ||Im siy} padoy si )l

pue sjesodoud 196pnq asay} Jo }nsal e se w/F 0} paaley
sey siy| ‘Mou Wy |3 sem 0Z0Z A9 SOHM Buimaiyoe

10} deb papodau Ajsnoinaid ay) "sueld ssauisng ay)

Ul pauodal aq 0} pamo||e Sem UBY} ai0W paAisoal sey
[1oUNo0D 8y} ‘JeaA uo Jeah ‘Ing ‘ue|d ssauisng s,|louno)d
3y} UIYyNM papn|oul 8g pjnod JeYym JO SWI3) Ui SAIJeAI8SU0D
sAem|e aiom saul@pinb oa\ — asuemojje BN

‘alnjny 8y} ul sswoy

mau Jo Buipjing jeuajod moje Aew deos Buimodloq sy
‘abeblow e ypm se wug) JuswAedsls 10 wis)

paxi} SI 1IXe 9y} JO SWd) 8y} J8Y}aym Jnoge MalAal Japun
[ns si sy} ‘Bumouioq ayy 0y spiebal yppn ‘sessalboud
wia)sAs Apisqns ay} Jixe 0} }JOM By} Se SJunowe ay} uo
uodau pue sainbiy ayy ybnouy; yjey o) peseld Japeq aq ||im
am 1ey} Jeak [eioueul) Jeah 1xau Buunp aq |IMY vVHH
ay) Jauaq |Im walsAs Apisgns Aunseal] \H 9y} wodj
uxe uy ‘wnuue Jad w3 xoidde si ainbiy Bupiom ay |

oM Bupppiom ajibe seop MOH e

¢ wa)sAs Apisgns ay) Buixe Aq yoeq 196 am |lIm Jeypy e

Sonss|/SjuswIlIo) [eJauan

sonss|
[ SjUBWIWIOY) - (9NUSASY) JUNOIIY SNUSAdY BUISNOH

A

Ll

0L

:sasuodsay

:SUOI}SaNY puk SJUBWWOoH

SL/71L02Z [ellde) pue enuaAay 10} sjesodold jobpng [eniu] - JUNodJdy anuaAdy BUISNOH

ANILNYDS ® MIIAYUIAO

Page 131



uoiejuawajdwi 810jaq sloquisw

0} pajuasald aq ||im sjesodosd wuld "Ajjeulsixe 1o

asNoY Ui paJaAljap S! SIY} Jayjaym uo Je payoo| buieq aie
SISOD) "9J0IYdA pue uosiad pajjIxs INW B SAJOAU [[IM SIY |

)9 JNO paLLed 8q 0] }IOoM ‘SS820.d UOI}IBOS 8Y} UO!
SIUND Jj|D 0} Juas aq 0} sjiejop Jayund "pabueyo isnl sey
el ay) ybnoyye ‘pejebie) sie uoneAudap Jo sealy

'spjauaq
Bulwieo s)ueus) pajgesip Jo} a}el Jamo| B aq [(IM d1ay |
s} MdYy U0 J08Y8 O} BWIOD ||IIM dDIAIBS Buluapleb sy L

82JN0SaJ pun4 |elsuac) aq |Im ajes sy wod) Jdiaoal [eydes
Auy "vyH AQ paumo jou si )i Inqg pajexiew Buiag si Siy

"s[|eo ||e JoHuow
0] AJ|j10B} B8} SABY OS|E 8M pUB Ja)2Inb palamsue mou
aJe s||eo pue paj|ejsul usaq sey wajsAs suoyd mau Y

"SJOWO)SND 10} JJels Wiod) anjeA 1a)}aq 1ob 0} wie ay) yum
9|qIX3]} 2I0W 8Q 0} 8IAIBS BY} SMOJ|E pue S}S02 821JjO pue
abes|iw saonpal siy] "A|qixa]} aJow YIOM 0} ajge aie Asy)

¢ Alelo asea|d noA ued — aoines uosiad ApueH

indur Aue aaey [1DUno) ay) ssop ‘ pesen,
ale sasnoY YaIiym uo eualld ayy st jeym — Abisua 003

¢, Slueus)
pajgesip Jo} paonpal aq el dy} [[IM ‘a21A9s Buluspies

¢jodap uojueq pjo ay} yum auop Buiag st jeym

¢, PaAjOSal usa( )l Sey ‘@ouBuUSjuiBW
pue siiedal YJM BNSS| UB SEM SUOLEIIUNWIWOYD

L'l

o'l

Gl

vl

€l

:sasuodsay

:SUOI}SaNY) pue SULWWO)

"ON

S1/710Z [e3den pue enuaAay 10} s|esodolid jebpng [eniu] - JUNOJJY anuaAay buisnoH

ANLLNYOS ? MIIAHIAO

Page 132



"IoUN0YD BjOYM By} SSOIOB pasu ssappe o) paalbe
salnuoud ay) 0} Buipiodoe spasdold ay) wol) Jijpuaq
salpadoid YyH |je swwelbold |ended vHH 8y ojul yoeq

¢ eale 1ey) uiyum Aejs ays oyoads

)nd si sydisoal puej wol) pasiel si jey) Asuow ayj ON e e WwoJy pasies Asuow ay} pjnom ‘sydisoal puej |epuslod | z'¢
"0OAdnN Jo Juawaoe|dal ay) 1o}
196pnq Jueoiiubis si aley) swweiboid//1/910Z msu ay)
uj "peoe|dal aie Asy} [3un siiedas yno Auied o} jebpng ay)
0] pajedojie SeM Y00Z3F "wajqoid e s| aiay) Jey) aleme

ale pue sjuiejdwod aiow Buiniedal aie aoIAeg sileday ¢ uaddey siy} |Im ‘dayjesm pjoo 0] anp HI0M
a8yl "DAdN uo 18bpnq ay} asealoui 0} 8jif pinom Buisnoy e SIY} uo Juads }ob6png aiow 83s 0} Yl] pjnom am ‘DAdN A
S9NSS|/SjUaWILIO) [el3uad)
SoNnss| / Sjualulio) - ([eyide)) JUnoddy anuaAdy BUISNOH | 0°¢
:sasuodsay 1suUoI}SaNP pue sU3WWOo) N

G1/710Z [eliden pue anusAay Jo} s|esodold jabpng [eniu] - Junoddy anuaAay BuisnoH

ANILNYIS '®@ MIIAYIAO

Page 133



Page 134



Agenda ltem 12

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

DATE: TUESDAY, 18 FEBRUARY 2014

REPORT BY: HEAD OF FINANCE

SUBJECT: PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2014/15 - 2016/17

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To present to Council the recommendations of the Cabinet in relation
to the setting of a range of prudential indicators.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 At its meeting of 18" February 2014, Cabinet considered a report from
the Head of Finance in respect of setting of Prudential Indicators for
the period 2014/15 to 2016/17.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01  The recommendations of Cabinet to County Council are set out in
Appendix 1 — Prudential Indicators 2014/15 to 2016/17 (the report to
Cabinet of 18" February 2014).

400 RECOMMENDATIONS

4.01 Council is requested to agree the recommendations of the Cabinet as
set out in the attached report (Appendix 1).

5.00 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

5.01 As set outin the report.

6.00 ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

6.01  None directly as a result of this report.

7.00 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

7.-01  None directly as a result of this report.

8.00 EQUALITIES IMPACT

8.01 None directly as a result of this report.

Page 135



9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None directly as a result of this report.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None required.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

None.

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 — Report to Cabinet 18" February 2014: Prudential
Indicators 2014/15 to 2016/17.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Various Welsh Government papers.

Contact Officer: Liz Thomas, Finance Manager
Technical Accountancy

Telephone: 01352 702289

Email: liz.thomas@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 136



FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 18 FEBRUARY 2014

REPORT BY: HEAD OF FINANCE

SUBJECT: PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2014/15

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To present proposals for setting a range of prudential indicators in accordance
with the Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (the
Prudential Code).

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01  The Prudential Code has been developed by the Chartered Institute of Public
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) as a professional code of practice to
support local authorities in determining their programmes for capital investment
in fixed assets. Local authorities are required by Regulation to have regard to
the Prudential Code when carrying out duties under Part 1 of the Local
Government Act 2003.

2.02 The framework established by the Prudential Code is intended to support local
strategic planning, local asset management planning and robust option
appraisal. The objectives of the Code are to ensure, within a clear framework,
that the capital investments plans of local authorities are affordable, prudent
and sustainable, and that treasury management decisions are taken in
accordance with good professional practice.

2.03 The Prudential Code sets out the indicators that must be used, and the factors
that must be taken into account in preparing such.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01 The prudential indicators required by the Prudential Code are designed to

support and record local decision making; they are not designed to be
comparative performance indicators - the use of them in this way would be
likely to be misleading and counter productive. They are considered in parallel
with the treasury management indicators required by the CIPFA Treasury
Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice and Cross-Sectoral
Guidance Notes, as reported elsewhere on this agenda.

Page 137



3.02

3.03

3.04

3.05

The Prudential Code recognises that in making capital investment decisions,
and in reviewing the prudential indicators, the Council must have regard to the
following:

e Service objectives, e.g. strategic planning for the authority

e Stewardship of assets, e.g. asset management planning

¢ Value for money, e.g. option appraisal

¢ Affordability, e.g. implications for Council Tax and Council housing rents
¢ Prudence and sustainability, e.g. implications for external borrowing

e Practicality, e.g. achievability of the forward plan

The Code does not specify how the Council should have regard to these
factors, but instead concentrates on the means by which it demonstrates that
the proposals are affordable, prudent and sustainable.

Affordability is the ultimate constraint on the amount that a local authority can
spend or borrow. In practice, when making a decision to invest in a capital
asset, the authority must do more than simply determine whether it can afford
the immediate cost. In order to ensure long term affordability, decisions have
to be prudent, and in the long term sustainable. Borrowing has to be prudent
because, since future interest rates and revenue streams are uncertain, it must
involve an element of risk. Furthermore, if the Council is unable to deliver its
capital programme, or to afford the cost of running and maintaining the new
facilities, the chosen level of capital investment will not be sustainable in the
long term. Prudence and affordability are related concepts.

The Prudential Code specifies that prudential indicators are required to be
calculated for the forthcoming financial year and two subsequent financial
years, this process links in with the Medium Term Financial Plan.

Based on those resources currently allocated (including specific grants, but
excluding any rephasing of expenditure from 2013/14 to future years), the
estimates of capital expenditure to be incurred in 2014/15 (and the following
two years), are as indicated in the table below; unsupported (prudential)
borrowing of £27.561m has been assumed in the three year period for Council
Fund purposes. This is in line with the capital programme proposals
recommended to commence in 2014/15 in the Council Fund Capital
Programme 2014/15 to 2017/18 report which is included elsewhere on this
agenda.

Page 138



3.06

3.07

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
Estimate Estimate Estimate
£m £m £m
Council Fund 20.970 53.168 18.047
Housing Revenue Account 12.381 15.901 15.461
Total 33.351 69.069 33.508

The capital expenditure totals essentially provide the base financial data from
which all other indicators follow.

Prudential Indicators for Affordability

Estimates of the ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream for 2014/15
based on those expenditure assumptions outlined in the Council Fund and
Housing Revenue budget report (both included elsewhere on this agenda), are
as included in the table below; these indicators of affordability address the
revenue implications of the Council’s financial strategy.

RATIO OF FINANCING COSTS TO NET REVENUE STREAM

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
Estimate Estimate Estimate

% % %
Council Fund 6.004% 6.932% 7.432%
Housing Revenue Account 6.755% 5.923% 5.434%

The Council Fund net revenue stream is the amount to be met from Welsh
Government (WG) grants and local taxpayers, and the HRA equivalent is the
amount to be met from WG grants and from Rent payers. The estimate of
financing costs includes the current commitments and the proposals included
in the capital programme report. The HRA, as calculated, reflects a reducing
financing cost attributable to the continuing reduction in HRA debt outstanding
as a percentage of an increasing level of revenue stream income.

The Prudential Code requires that the estimate of the incremental impact of
capital investment decisions as proposed in the capital budget report for the
period 2014/15 to 2016/17, over and above capital investment decisions that
have previously been taken by the Council are reported in terms of their impact
on Band D Council Tax and Housing Rents. The 2014/15 Council Fund and
HRA capital programmes contain no new capital investment decisions (only
those decisions previously approved by Council).

Page 139



3.08

3.09

3.10

Prudential Indicators for Prudence

Estimates of the capital financing requirement, as described in section 3.09
below, for 2014/15 are:

CAPITAL FINANCING REQUIREMENT

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
Estimate Estimate Estimate
£m £m £m
Council Fund 166.707 189.626 212.582
Housing Revenue Account 24.701 24.207 23.722
Total 191.407 213.833 236.304

The capital financing requirement measures the Council’'s underlying need to
finance capital expenditure by borrowing or other long-term liability
arrangements. In accordance with best professional practice, The Council
does not associate debt with particular items or type of expenditure. The
authority has an integrated treasury management strategy and has adopted
the CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice and
Cross-Sectoral Guidance Notes. The Council has, at any point in time, a
number of cash flows both positive and negative, and manages its treasury
position in terms of its debt and investments in accordance with its approved
Treasury Management Policy and Strategy. The Treasury Management Policy
Statement 2013 — 2016 and the Treasury Management Strategy 2014/15
appear elsewhere on this agenda following consideration by the Audit
Committee in January 2014. In day to day cash management, no distinction
can be made between revenue cash and capital cash. External debt arises as
a consequence of all the financial transactions of the Council and not simply
those arising from capital spending. In contrast, the capital financing
requirement reflects the Council's underlying need to finance capital
expenditure by borrowing or other long-term liability arrangements.

CIPFA’s Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities includes the
following; gross debt and the capital financing requirement, as a key indicator
of prudence.

‘In order to ensure that over the medium term debt will only be for a capital
purpose, the local authority should ensure that debt does not, except in the
short term, exceed the total of capital financing requirement in the preceding
year plus the estimates of any additional financing requirement for the current
and next two financial years’.

Page 140



3.11

In November 2012 CIPFA issued an amendment to the Prudential Code
changing the indicator from net debt (total borrowing and other long-term
liabilities less any investments held) to gross debt. Following reflection that
comparing the capital financing requirement to the net position i.e., net of
investments, could potentially mask a position where an authority had
borrowed other than for a capital purpose and then subsequently invested the
surplus funds.

The Head of Finance reports no difficulty in meeting this requirement for the
future period to which the prudential indicators apply. This view takes into
account current commitments, existing plans, and all budget proposals.

Prudential Indicators for External Debt and Treasury Management

In respect of its external debt, it is recommended that the Council approves the
following authorised limits for its total external debt gross of any investment for
the next three financial years. These limits separately identify borrowing from
other long term liabilities such as finance leases. The Council is asked to
approve these limits and to delegate authority to the Head of Finance, within
the total limit for any individual year, to effect movement between the
separately agreed limits for borrowing and other long term liabilities, in
accordance with option appraisal and best value for money for the authority.
Any such changes made will be reported to the Council at its meeting following
the change.

AUTHORISED LIMIT FOR EXTERNAL DEBT
2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
Estimate Estimate Estimate
£m £m £m
All Borrowing (Cap/Rev) 202.300 247.300 257.300
Other Long Term Liabilities 20.100 21.100 22.100
Total 222.400 268.400 279.400

The authorised limits are consistent with the authority’s current commitments,
existing plans and the proposals in the capital programme report, and with its
approved Treasury Management Strategy 2014/15. They are based on the
estimate of most likely, prudent position with, sufficient headroom over and
above this to allow for operational management, for example unusual cash
movements. Risk analysis and risk management strategies have been taken
into account, as have plans for capital expenditure, estimates of the capital
financing requirement and estimates of cash flow requirements for all
purposes.

Page 141



3.12

3.13

3.14

Council is also asked to approve the following operational boundary for
external debt for the same period. The proposed operational boundary for
external debt is based on the same estimates as the authorised limit but
reflects directly the estimate of the most likely, prudent provision, without the
additional headroom included in the authorised limit to allow for example for
unusual cash movements, and equates to the maximum of external debt
projected by this estimate. The operational boundary represents a key
management tool for in year monitoring. Within the operational boundary,
figures borrowing and other long term liabilities are separately identified.
Council is also asked to delegate authority to the Head of Finance, within the
total operational boundary for any individual year, to effect movement between
the separately agreed figures for borrowing and other long term liabilities, in a
similar fashion to the authorised limit. Any such changes will be reported to
Council at its next meeting following the change.

OPERATIONAL BOUNDARY FOR EXTERNAL DEBT
2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
Estimate Estimate Estimate
£m £m £m
All Borrowing (Cap/Rev) 182.300 227.300 237.300
Other Long Term Liabilities 10.100 11.100 12.100
Total 192.400 238.400 249.400

The figure for all borrowing has increased in line with the assumption made in
3.05 that for Council Fund purposes there is a requirement to borrow
£27.561m through unsupported (prudential) borrowing over the three year
period.

It should be noted that actual external debt is not directly comparable to the
authorised limit and operational boundary, since actual external debt reflects
the position at a point in time.

Council is asked to note that the authorised limit determined in 2014/15 (see
section 3.11 above) will be the statutory limit determined under section 3 (1) of
the Local Government Act 2003.

The prudential indicator in respect of treasury management is confirmation that
the Council has adopted the CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public
Services: Code of Practice and Cross-Sectoral Guidance Notes (as reported
elsewhere on this agenda). The aim of this indicator is to ensure that treasury
management is led by a clear integrated forward treasury management
strategy.

Page 142



4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

RECOMMENDATIONS

That Members approve and recommend to County Council on 18" February

2014:

(@)  the prudential indicators as detailed in Section 3 of the report

Capital expenditure (3.05)

Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream (3.06)

Incremental impact of capital investment decisions on the council tax
(3.07)

Incremental impact of capital investment decisions on housing rents
(3.07)

Capital financing requirement (3.08)

Gross debt and the capital financing requirement (3.10)

Authorised limit for external debt (3.11, 3.13)

Operational boundary for external debt (3.12)

Adoption of the CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public Services:
Code of Practice ad Cross-Sectoral Guidance Notes (3.14)

(b)  delegated authority for the Head of Finance to effect movements
between the separately agreed limits within the authorised limit for
external debt and the operational boundary for external debt (3.11, 3.12)

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

As set out in the report.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None directly as a result of this report.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None.

Page 143



11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

None directly as a result of this report.

APPENDICES

None.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Various Welsh Government and CIPFA Papers.

Contact Officer: Liz Thomas

Finance Manager - Technical Accounting
Telephone: 01352 702289
E.mail: liz.thomas@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 144



Agenda Item 13

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

DATE: TUESDAY, 18 FEBRUARY 2014

REPORT BY: HEAD OF FINANCE

SUBJECT: MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION 2014/15

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To present to Council the recommendations of the Cabinet in relation
to the setting of a prudent minimum revenue provision for the
repayment of debt.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 At its meeting of 18" February 2014, Cabinet considered the Head of
Finance’s report in respect of the calculation of Minimum Revenue
Provision for 2013/14.

2.02 The report of 18" February 2014 detailed the requirements and
associated guidance in respect of:-

e The four available options for making prudent provision.

e The circumstances for using the options, two of which are
available in respect of capital expenditure funded by way of Welsh
Government supported borrowing and a further two in respect of
that funded by unsupported (prudential) borrowing.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01  The recommendations of Cabinet to County Council are set out in
Section 4.00 of the report to Cabinet of 18" February 2014, a copy of
which is included as Appendix 1 to this report.

400 RECOMMENDATIONS

4.01 Council is requested to agree the recommendations of the Cabinet,
being that:-

e Option 1 (Regulatory Method) be used for the calculation of the
minimum revenue provision in 2014/15 for all supported borrowing.

Page 145



5.00

5.01

5.02

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

e Option 3 (Asset Life Method) be used for the calculation of the
minimum revenue provision in 2014/15 for all unsupported
(prudential) borrowing.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The 2014/15 Council Fund Revenue Budget provides for the minimum
revenue provision in respect of all supported borrowing, on the basis
of Option 1 — Regulatory Method calculation.

Any planned use of unsupported (prudential) borrowing, will need to
take account of the revenue consequences of the Option 3 — Asset
Life Method calculation, as part of the overall options appraisal and
budget setting processes.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None directly as a result of this report.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None required.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

None.

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 — Report to Cabinet 18" February 2014: Minimum
Revenue Provision 2014/15.

Page 146



LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Various Welsh Government papers.

Contact Officer: Liz Thomas

Finance Manager — Technical Accountancy
Telephone: 01353 702289
Email: liz.thomas@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 147



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 148



FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 18 FEBRUARY 2014

REPORT BY: HEAD OF FINANCE

SUBJECT: MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION 2014/15

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To present proposals for the setting of a prudent minimum revenue
provision for the repayment of debt in 2014/15, as required under the
Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (Wales)
(Amendment) Regulations 2008 (‘the 2008 Regulations’).

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 Local Authorities are required each year to set aside some of their
revenue reserves as provision for the repayment of debt ie. a
provision in respect of capital expenditure financed from borrowing or
credit arrangements.

2.02 Regulation 22 of the 2008 Regulations requires an authority to each
year make an amount of Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) which it
considers to be ‘prudent’, but the regulation does not itself define
‘prudent provision’. However, the Welsh Government (WG) has
provided guidance which makes recommendations to authorities on
the interpretation of the term; the guidance was last updated in April
2010.

2.03 Authorities are required to prepare an annual statement of their policy
on making MRP, which mirrors the existing requirements on the
prudential borrowing limit and investment policy.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS
Meaning of ‘Prudent Provision’

3.01 The WG guidance provides for a number of options for making

‘prudent provision’. It explains that provision for the borrowing which
financed the acquisition of an asset should be made over a period
bearing some relation to that over which the asset continues to
provide a service.

Page 149



3.02

3.03

3.04

3.05

3.06

Options for Prudent Provision
Option 1 — Regulatory Method.

For debt which is supported by Revenue Support Grant (RSG),
authorities may continue to use the formula specified in the Local
Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (Wales) Regulations
2003 (the regulations which preceded the 2008 Regulations), since
the RSG is calculated on that basis, i.e. authorities are able to
calculate MRP exactly as if the 2003 Regulations were still in force.

Option 2 — Capital Financing Requirement Method

This is a technically simpler alternative to option 1 and may also be
used in relation to supported debt. While still based on the concept of
the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), which is easily derived
from the balance sheet, it avoids the complexities of the formula in
Regulation 22. However, for most authorities it will probably result in
a higher level of provision (and subsequent impact on service
budgets) than Option 1, as it would for Flintshire County Council.

Option 3 — Asset Life Method

For new borrowing under the Prudential system for which no
Government support is being given and is therefore self-financed,
there are two options. Option 3 is to make provision in equal
instalments over the estimated life of the asset for which borrowing is
undertaken. This is a possibly simpler alternative to the use of
depreciation accounting (Option 4), though it has some similarities to
that approach.

Option 4 — Depreciation Method

Alternatively, for new borrowing under the Prudential system for which
no WG support is being given, Option 4 may be used. This means
making MRP in accordance with the standard rules for depreciation
accounting.

Conditions for using the options
The intention is that Options 1 and 2 should be used only for WG
supported borrowing. Options 3 and 4 should be used in relation to all

capital expenditure which is to be financed by unsupported borrowing
or credit arrangements.

Page 150



4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

5.02

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

RECOMMENDATIONS

That members approve and recommend to the County Council on 18"
February 2014:-

Option 1 (Regulatory Method) be used for the calculation of the
minimum revenue provision in 2014/15 for all supported borrowing;
this represents a continuation of the approved and adopted policy
for 2013/14.

Option 3 (Asset Life Method) be used for the calculation of the
minimum revenue provision in 2014/15 for all unsupported
(prudential) borrowing; this represents a continuation of the
approved and adopted policy for 2013/14.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The 2014/15 Council Fund revenue budget provides for the minimum
revenue provision in respect of all supported borrowing, on the basis
of Option 1 — Regulatory Method calculation.

Any planned use of unsupported (prudential) borrowing, will need to
take account of the revenue consequences of the Option 3 — Asset
Life Method calculation, as part of the overall options appraisal and
budget setting processes.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None directly as a result of this report.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

None.

Page 151



12.00 APPENDICES

12.01 None.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer: Liz Thomas

Finance Manager - Technical Accounting
Telephone: 01352 702289
Email: liz.thomas@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 152



Agenda Iltem 14

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

DATE: TUESDAY, 18 FEBRUARY 2014

REPORT BY: HEAD OF FINANCE

SUBJECT: TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2014/15

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01 To present to Council the recommendations of Cabinet in relation to
Treasury Management Strategy for 2014/15.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 The Local Government Act 2003 requires all local authorities to have
due regard to both the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy’s Treasury Management in Public Services: Code of
Practice (The CIPFA Code of Practice) and Welsh Government
guidance on Local Authority Investments.

2.02 The Council has adopted The CIPFA Code of Practice which

requires:-

e The Council to create and maintain a Treasury Management Policy
Statement which states the Council’'s policies, objectives and
approach to risk management of its treasury management activities.

e The Council to create and maintain suitable Treasury Management
Practices (TMPs) and accompanying schedules, stating how those
policies and objectives will be achieved and prescribing how those
activities will be managed and controlled.

e The Council to receive reports on its treasury management policies,
practices and activities, including, as a minimum, an annual
strategy and plan in advance of the year, a mid-year review and an
annual report after its close, in the form prescribed in its TMPs.

e Responsibility for Treasury Management to be clearly defined. The
Council delegates responsibility for the implementation and regular
monitoring of its treasury management policies and practices to the
Cabinet, and for the execution and administration of treasury
management decisions to Head of Finance, who will act in
accordance with the organisation’s policy statement and TMPs and,
CIPFA’'s Standard of Professional Practice on Treasury
Management.

Page 153



3.00

3.01

3.02

3.03

3.04

4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

e A body to be responsible for the scrutiny of Treasury Management
Policy, Strategy and Practices. The Council has nominated the
Audit Committee to be responsible for ensuring effective scrutiny of
the treasury management function. The Audit Committee has
previously agreed to include treasury management as a standing
item on each quarterly agenda to receive an update.

CONSIDERATIONS

At a meeting of the Audit Committee on 29" January 2014 Members
reviewed the draft Treasury Management Strategy for 2014/15. The
Audit Committee recommended to Cabinet that the Council approves
the Strategy for 2014/15.

This mornings Cabinet meeting (18" February 2014) received the
recommendation of the Audit Committee. The Cabinet report, which
includes the Treasury Management Strategy for 2014/15, is included
at Appendix 1. Any comments from the Cabinet will be reported
verbally.

A training session open to all Members on treasury management was
run by Arlingclose, the Council’'s Treasury Management advisors on
the morning of 27" January. The aim of the workshop was to aid
Members’ understanding of the Treasury Management Strategy.

On 1% March 2013 the Council approved the current Treasury
Management Policy and Treasury Management Practices with both
documents covering 3 financial years, 2013 to 2016. It was agreed
that these documents would not require annual approval by Members,
unless any significant changes was required. No changes need to be
made to the Policy, and only minor changes need to be made to the
Practices simply to bring them in line with changes approved to the
Strategy.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Council approves the Treasury Management Strategy 2014/15.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

As set out in the report.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

Page 154



8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None directly as a result of this report.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

Arlingclose Ltd as Treasury Management Advisers.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

Arlingclose Ltd as Treasury Management Advisers.

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 — Cabinet report of 18" January 2014

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer: Liz Thomas — Finance Manager,
Technical Accounting

Telephone: 01352 702289

Email: liz.thomas@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 155



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 156



REPORT TO:

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

CABINET

DATE:

REPORT BY:

TUESDAY, 18 FEBRUARY 2014

HEAD OF FINANCE

SUBJECT:

1.00

1.01

2.00

2.01

2.02

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2014/15

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To present to Members the draft Treasury Management Strategy for
2014/15 for recommendation to Council.

BACKGROUND

The Local Government Act 2003 requires all local authorities to have
due regard to both the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy’s Treasury Management in Public Services: Code of

Practice (The CIPFA Code of Practice) and Welsh Government

guidance on Local Authority Investments.

The Council has adopted The CIPFA Code of Practice which

requires:-

The Council to create and maintain a Treasury Management
Policy Statement which states the Council’s policies, objectives
and approach to risk management of its treasury management
activities.

The Council to create and maintain suitable Treasury
Management Practices (TMPs) and accompanying schedules,
stating how those policies and objectives will be achieved and
prescribing how those activities will be managed and controlled.

The Council to receive reports on its treasury management
policies, practices and activities, including, as a minimum, an
annual strategy and plan in advance of the year, a mid-year
review and an annual report after its close, in the form
prescribed in its TMPs.

Responsibility for Treasury Management to be clearly defined.
The Council delegates responsibility for the implementation and
regular monitoring of its treasury management policies and
practices to the Cabinet, and for the execution and
administration of treasury management decisions to Head of

Page 157



2.03

3.00

3.01

Finance, who will act in accordance with the organisation’s
policy statement and TMPs and, CIPFA’'s Standard of
Professional Practice on Treasury Management.

o A body to be responsible for the scrutiny of Treasury

Management Policy, Strategy and Practices. The Council has
nominated the Audit Committee to be responsible for ensuring
effective scrutiny of the treasury management function. The
Audit Committee has previously agreed to include treasury
management as a standing item on each quarterly agenda to
receive an update.

A training session open to all Members on treasury management was
run by Arlingclose, the Council’s Treasury Management advisors on
the morning of 27" January. The aim of the workshop was to aid
Members’ understanding of the Treasury Management Strategy.

CONSIDERATIONS

The draft Treasury Management Strategy for 2014/15 is attached at
Appendix 1. The changes made from the 2013/14 strategy are
summarised below:

o Section 3 — Local context.
A new section bringing together current levels of borrowing and
investments, along with the Council’s projections for capital
expenditure and use of reserves to estimate either the level of
borrowing required, or the level of investments the Council will
have, over the medium term.

° Section 5 — Investment Strategy.
Additional counterparties have been added to the list of
organisations which the Council can invest its surplus funds
with.
In preparation for amendments to building society regulatory
framework, changes have been made to investments with
building societies.

o Section 6 — Borrowing Strategy.

In 2013/14 the borrowing strategy was to create short term
revenue savings by not undertaking any new borrowing and
funding capital expenditure internally from reserves. In all
probability the situation will remain the same in 2014/15 and
possibly beyond, however this is not sustainable in the
medium term. The borrowing strategy for 2014/15 will be to
regularly review the level of internal borrowing against the
potential for incurring additional revenue costs by deferring
borrowing into future years when long-term borrowing costs
are forecast to rise.

Page 158



3.02

3.03

3.04

3.05

4.00

4.01

At a meeting of the Audit Committee on 29" January 2014 Members
reviewed the draft Treasury Management Strategy for 2014/15.
Discussion was as follows:

Investments

Members debated the inclusion in the 2014/15 Strategy of the ability
to invest in any other organisation (that is, unrated organisations).
There was recognition that this exposed the Council to additional
risks, and in response Officers will develop an additional policy
framework for consideration by members before any investments of
this type are made, these changes have been reflected in the
strategy. Members also recognised that this could be an opportunity
to support local organisations such as credit unions, and potentially
meet economic development or other policy aims subject to striking a
balance with the security, liquidity and yield of the Council’s surplus
funds. The Committee recommended that the enquiry be put before
Cabinet.

Debt

Queries had been raised regarding the Council’s level of debt and the
interest costs of the debt at the training session on 27" January 2014
and County Council on 28" January 2014, and a discussion regarding
debt ensued at the Committee.

Members of the Committee recognised that in absolute terms the
figures for debt and interest on debt are significant, however must be
viewed in proportion to the level of assets that the Council has
invested in over a very long period of time. There was recognition that
the rate of interest charged on some loans were high by today’s
standards, however these loans were taken out at a time when those
interest rates were the best available. The Committee is satisfied that
processes are in place to review debt and to take debt rescheduling
opportunities when appropriate (higher rated loans could be replaced
by new loans at lower rates when the premium charged is not
prohibitive).

On 1% March 2013 the Council approved the current Treasury
Management Policy and Treasury Management Practices with both
documents covering 3 financial years, 2013 to 2016. It was agreed
that these documents would not require annual approval by Members,
unless any significant changes was required. No changes need to be
made to the Policy, and only minor changes need to be made to the
Practices simply to bring them in line with changes approved to the
Strategy.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That the Cabinet considers the enquiry put forward by the Audit
Committee outlined in 3.03

Page 159



4.02

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

That the Cabinet approves and recommends to the Council the
Treasury Management Strategy 2014/15.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

As set out in the report.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None directly as a result of this report.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

Arlingclose Ltd as Treasury Management Advisers.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

Arlingclose Ltd as Treasury Management Advisers.

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 — Draft Treasury Management Strategy 2014/15

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer:

Telephone:
Email:

Liz Thomas — Finance Manager,
Technical Accounting

01352 702289
liz.thomas@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 160



Slry Fflint
“* Hintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

TREASURY MANAGEMENT
STRATEGY

2014/15

Page 161

Appendix 1



Section

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

CONTENTS

Introduction

Economic Context

Local Context

Current and Expected Treasury Portfolios
Investment Strategy

Borrowing Strategy

Policy on the use of Financial Derivatives
Treasury Management Indicators

Other Matters

APPENDIX A — Debt Maturity Profile

Page 162

12

13

13

15

17



Treasury Management Strateqy Report 2014/15

The Council is recommended to:
e approve the Treasury Management Strategy for 2014/15
o approve the Treasury Management Indicators for 2014/15

1.0 Introduction

In April 2012 the Council adopted the Chartered Institute of Public Finance
and Accountancy’s Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of
Practice 2011 Edition (the CIPFA Code) which requires the Council to
approve a treasury management strategy before the start of each financial
year.

In addition, the Welsh Government (WG) issued revised guidance on local
authority investments in March 2010 that requires the Council to approve an
investment strategy before the start of each financial year.

This report fulfils the Council’s legal obligation under the Local Government
Act 2003 to have regard to both the CIPFA Code and the WG Guidance.

The successful identification, monitoring and control of risk are central to the
Council’s treasury management strategy as the Council has borrowed and
invested substantial sums of money and is therefore exposed to financial risks
including the loss of invested funds and the revenue effect of changing
interest rates.

2.0 Economic Context (including Interest Rate Forecast — as provided by
Arlingclose Ltd, November 2013.

Economic background: The Bank of England’s Monetary Policy Committee
(MPC) through its recent forward guidance is committed to keeping policy
rates low for an extended period using the Labour Force Survey
unemployment rate of 7% as a threshold for when it would consider whether
or not to raise interest rates, subject to certain knock-outs. Unemployment
was 7.7% in August 2013, but is not forecast to fall below the threshold until
2016, due to the UK’s flexible workforce.

The flow of credit to households and businesses is slowly improving but is still
below pre-crisis levels. The fall in consumer price inflation from the high of
5.2% in September 2011 to 2.7% in September 2013 will allow real wage
increases (i.e. after inflation) to slowly turn positive and aid consumer
spending.

Stronger growth data in 2013 (0.4% in Q1, 0.7% in Q2 and 0.8% in Q3)
alongside a pick-up in property prices mainly stoked by government initiatives
to boost mortgage lending have led markets to price in an earlier rise in rates
than warranted under Forward Guidance and the broader economic backdrop.

1
Page 163




However, with jobs growth picking up slowly, many employees working
shorter hours than they would like and benefit cuts set to gather pace, growth
is likely to only be gradual. Arlingclose forecasts the MPC will maintain its
resolve to keep interest rates low until the recovery is convincing and
sustainable.

In the US expectations for the slowing in the pace of asset purchases
('tapering') by the Federal Reserve and the end of further asset purchases will
remain predominant drivers of the financial markets. The Federal Reserve did
not taper in September and has talked down potential tapering in the near
term. It now looks more likely to occur in early 2014 which will be supportive
of bond and equity markets in the interim.

Credit outlook: The likelihood of banking failures has diminished, but
remains a significant risk. Regulatory changes in the UK, US and Europe are
underway to move away from the bank bail-outs of previous years (e.g. Lloyds
Banking Group and RBS in 2008) to bank resolution regimes in which
shareholders, bond holders and unsecured creditors are the first port of call to
re-capitalise an institution via bail-in. This is already apparent to holders of
subordinated debt issued by the Co-operative Bank, which will suffer a haircut
and conversion to alternative securities and/or equity in the bank’s liability
management exercise. There are also proposals for EU regulatory reforms to
Money Market Funds which will, in all probability, result in these funds moving
to a VNAV (variable net asset value) basis and losing their ‘triple-A’ credit
rating wrapper. Diversification of investments between creditworthy
counterparties to mitigate bail- in risk will become even more important in the
light of these developments.

Interest rate forecast. Arlingclose’s projected path for short term interest
rates remains flat. Markets are still pricing in an earlier rise in rates than
warranted under Forward Guidance and the broader economic backdrop. The
MPC will not raise rates until there is a sustained period of strong growth.
However, upside risks weight more heavily at the end of our forecast horizon.

Arlingclose continue to project gilt yields on an upward path through the
medium term. The recent climb in yields was overdone given the soft
fundamental global outlook and risks surrounding the Eurozone, China and
us.

Table 1: Interest rate forecast

Bank 3 month | 12 month | 25-year

Rate LIBID LIBID gilt yield
Q12014 0.50 0.45 0.90 3.35
Q2 2014 0.50 0.45 0.95 3.40
Q3 2014 0.50 0.50 0.95 3.45
Q4 2014 0.50 0.55 0.95 3.50
H1 2015 0.50 0.55 1.00 3.55
H2 2015 0.50 0.75 1.05 3.60
H1 2016 0.50 0.75 1.15 3.75
H2 2016 0.50 0.75 1.25 3.95

2

Page 164



For the purpose of setting the budget, it has been assumed that new
investments will be made at an average rate of 0.5%, and that new long-term
loans will be borrowed at an average rate of 4.3%.

Local Context

As at 31%' December 2013 the Authority had £172.1m of long term borrowing
and £59.7m of investments. This is set out in further detail in section 4.
Forecast changes in these sums are shown in the balance sheet analysis in

the table below.

Table 2: Balance Sheet Summary and Forecast

31.3.13 31.3.14 31.3.15 31.3.16 31.3.17
" Actual Estimate | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
£m £m £m £m £m

1,Non-HRA CFR 159 163 169 209 216
j HRA CFR 26 25 24 24 23
Motal CFR 185 188 193 233 239
A ess: Other long-term liabilities * -8 -8 -8 -8 -8
Z'Borrowing CFR 177 180 185 225 231
d.ess: External borrowing ** -172 -172 -172 -172 -172

Internal (over) borrowing 5 8 13 53 59
ieLess: Usable reserves -63 -60 -31 -24 -22
g-ess: Working capital 3 3 3 3 3
sinvestments (or New borrowing) 55 49 15 -32 -40

e
* finance leases and PFI liabilities that form part of the Authority’s debt

** shows only loans to which the Authority is currently committed and
excludes optional refinancing

The underlying need to borrow for capital purposes is measured by the
Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), while usable reserves and working
capital are the underlying resources available for investment. The Authority’s
current strategy is to maintain borrowing below their underlying levels,
sometimes known as internal borrowing.

The table shows the Authority’s CFR increasing steadily until 2015/16, this is
linked with the capital programme which increases sharply in 2015/16 due to
the 21 century schools building programme. The level of reserves the
Authority has is expected to fall in 2014/15 following the implementation of the
Single Status Agreement. The combination of the increase in capital
expenditure and a reduction in reserves, results in, an expected reduction in
investments in 2014/15, and a projected new borrowing requirement in
2015/16.

3
Page 165




CIPFA’s Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities recommends
that the Authority’s total debt should be lower than its highest forecast CFR
over the next three years. Table 1 shows that the Authority expects to comply
with this recommendation during 2014/15.

Current and Expected Treasury Portfolios

Current portfolio
The Council's treasury portfolio as at 31% December 2013 was as follows:

Table 3: Current Treasury Portfolio

Principal Interest

amount £m rate %
Investments:
Call accounts 6.0 0.57
Money market funds 12.6 0.41
Short-term deposits 37.3 0.61
Long-term deposits 2.0 0.95
Landsbanki (Iceland) 1.8
Total Investments 59.7 0.57
Borrowing:
Short-term loans - -
Long-term PWLB loans (fixed) 143.16 5.86
Long-term PWLB loans (variable) 10.00 0.55
Long-term market loans (LOBOs) 18.95 4.53
Total Borrowing 172.11 5.42
Net Borrowing 114.21 7.85%

Expected changes in portfolio

Current cash flow forecasts show net borrowing increasing to £126m by 31°
March 2014, as borrowing is expected to remain at this same level but
investments reduce. Net borrowing will further increase during 2014/15, when
the single status agreement is implemented and the reserve created
specifically is used.

Budget implications

The budget for investment income in 2014/15 is £248k, based on an average
investment portfolio of £60m at an average interest rate of 0.50%. The
budget for loan interest paid in 2014/15 is £9.3m, based on an average debt
portfolio of £172.11 million at a weighted average interest rate of 5.4%. If
levels of investments borrowing, and interest rates differ from those forecast,
performance against budget will be correspondingly different.

4
Page 166



Investment Strategy

The Council holds surplus funds, representing income received in advance of
expenditure plus balances and reserves held. In the past 12 months, the
Council’s investment balance has ranged between £57.9 and £83.3 million.

Both the CIPFA Code and the WG Guidance require the Council to invest its
funds prudently, and to have regard to the security and liquidity of its
investments before seeking the highest rate of return, or yield. The Council’s
objective when investing money is to strike an appropriate balance between
risk and return, minimising the risk of incurring losses from defaults and the
risk of receiving unsuitably low investment income.

Investment criteria and limits

The Council may invest its surplus funds with any of the counterparties in the
table below, subject to the monetary and time limits shown.

Table 4: Investment criteria and limits

Fitch | Moody’s | S& P | Cash Limit| Time Limit
Banks, Building Societies, other | AAA Aaa AAA £7m each 5 years*
organisations and securities whose | AA+ Aa1 AA+ 5 years*
lowest published long-term credit rating AA Aa2 AA 4 years*
from Fitch, Moody’s and Standard & AA- Aa3 AA- 3 years*
Poor’s is: A+ A1 A+ 2 years
A A2 A 1 year
A- A3 A- £5m each 1 year
The council’'s current account bank £5m next day
(NatWest Bank plc) if rated below A-
UK Building Societies without credit £1m each 1 year
ratings
Money Market Funds' and similar £7m each N/A
pooled vehicles
UK Central Government (irrespective unlimited 5 years
of credit rating)
UK Local Authorities? £7m each 5 years

1
Regulations 2003

2 as defined in the Local Government Act 2003

as defined in the Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (Wales)

* but no longer than 2 years in fixed-term deposits and other illiquid instruments

5

Page 167




Additional counterparties, new to the 2014/15 Treasury Management
Strategy, which the Council may invest its surplus funds with, are shown in
the table below, subject to the monetary and time limits shown.

Table 5: Investment criteria and limits

Fitch | Moody’s | S& P | Cash Limit | Time Limit
UK Registered Providers of Social A- A3 A- £7m each 5 years
Housing whose lowest published long-
term credit rating is:
UK Registered Providers of Social | BBB- Baa- BBB- £1m each 1 year
Housing without credit ratings or those
whose lowest published long-term
credit rating is:
Any other organisation, subject to: £1m each 1 year
e an external credit assessment
and specific advice from the £100k each 5 years
Authority’s treasury
management adviser
e a further policy framework for
investing with any other
organisations being developed

To manage the risk of a single default, the maximum that will be lent to any
one organisation (other than the UK Government) will be £7 million. A group
of banks under the same ownership will be treated as a single organisation for
limit purposes.

There is no intention to restrict investments to bank deposits, and investments
may be made with any public or private sector organisations that meet the
above credit rating criteria. This reflects a lower likelihood that the UK and
other governments will support failing banks as the bail-in provisions in the
Banking Reform Act 2014 and the EU Bank Recovery and Resolution
Directive are implemented.

In addition, the Authority may invest with organisations and pooled funds
without credit ratings, following an external credit assessment and advice from
the Authority’s treasury management adviser.

Current account bank

The Council’'s current accounts are held with NatWest Bank plc, which
currently meets the above credit rating criteria. During the year should its
rating not meet the above criteria he Council will treat NatWest as “high credit
quality” for the purpose of making investments that can be withdrawn on the
next working day, subject to the bank maintaining a credit rating no lower than
BBB-.

Building societies

The Council takes additional comfort from the building societies’ regulatory
framework and insolvency regime where, in the unlikely event of a building
society liquidation, the Council’'s deposits would be paid out in preference to
retail depositors. The Council will consider investing with unrated building

6
Page 168




societies where independent credit analysis shows them to be suitably
creditworthy. The Government has announced plans to amend the building
society insolvency regime alongside its plans for wide ranging banking reform,
and investments in lower rated and unrated building societies will therefore be
kept under continuous review.

Money market funds

Money market funds are pooled investment vehicles consisting of instruments
similar to those used by the Council. They have the advantage of providing
wide diversification of investment risks, coupled with the services of a
professional fund manager. Fees of between 0.10% and 0.20% per annum
are deducted from the interest paid to the Council.

Investments in money market funds involve the acquisition of share capital,
and are therefore counted as capital expenditure under WG regulations.
However, since withdrawals from funds count as capital receipts, these will be
used to fund the capital expenditure, leaving no overall impact on the
Council’s capital programme.

Registered Providers

Formerly known as Housing Associations, Registered Providers of Social
Housing are tightly regulated by the Welsh Government or the Homes and
Communities agency and retain a high likelihood of receiving government
support if needed. The Council will consider investing with unrated
Registered Providers with adequate credit safeguards, subject to receiving
independent advice.

Other Organisations

The Authority may also invest cash with other organisations, for example by
making loans to small businesses. Because of the higher perceived risk of
unrated businesses, such investments may provide considerably higher rates
of return. They will however only be made following a favourable external
credit assessment and on the specific advice of the Authority’s treasury
management adviser.

Foreign countries

Investments in foreign countries will be limited to those that hold an AAA or
AA+ / Aa1 sovereign credit rating from all three major credit rating agencies,
and to a maximum of £10 million per foreign country. Investments in
countries whose lowest sovereign rating is not AAA will be limited to one
year's duration. No country limit will apply to investments in the UK,
irrespective of the sovereign credit rating.

Overseas subsidiaries of foreign banking groups will normally be assessed
according to the country of domicile of the parent organisation. However,
Santander UK plc (a subsidiary of Spain’s Banco Santander) and Clydesdale
Bank plc (a subsidiary of National Australia bank) will be classed as UK banks
due to their substantial UK franchises and the arms-length nature of the
parent-subsidiary relationships.

7
Page 169



Sovereign credit rating criteria and foreign country limits will not apply to
investments in multilateral development banks (e.g. the European Investment
Bank and the World Bank) or other supranational organisations (e.g. the
European Union).

Risk assessment and credit ratings

The Council uses long-term credit ratings from the three main rating agencies
Fitch Ratings Ltd, Moody’s Investors Service Inc and Standard & Poor's
Financial Services LLC to assess the risk of investment default. The lowest
available credit rating will be used to determine credit quality.

Long-term ratings are expressed on a scale from AAA (the highest quality)
through to D (indicating default). Ratings of BBB- and above are described as
investment grade, while ratings of BB+ and below are described as
speculative grade. The Council’s credit rating criteria are set to ensure that it
is unlikely that the Council will hold speculative grade investments, despite the
possibility of repeated downgrades.

Credit ratings are obtained and monitored by the Council’s treasury advisers,
who will notify changes in ratings as they occur. Where an entity has its credit
rating downgraded so that it fails to meet the approved investment criteria
then:
e no new investments will be made,
e any existing investments that can be recalled or sold at no cost will be,
and
o full consideration will be given to the recall or sale of all other existing
investments with the affected counterparty.

Where a credit rating agency announces that a rating is on review for possible
downgrade (also known as “rating watch negative” or “credit watch negative”)
so that it is likely to fall below the above criteria, then no further investments
will be made in that organisation until the outcome of the review is
announced. This policy will not apply to negative outlooks.

The Council's investments are normally senior unsecured liabilities of the
borrower, and the credit rating of the investment is therefore normally identical
to the credit rating of the counterparty. However, where a credit rating agency
awards a different rating to a particular class of investment instruments, the
Council will base its investment decisions on the instrument credit rating
rather than the counterparty credit rating.

Other information on the security of investments

The Council understands that credit ratings are good, but not perfect,
predictors of investment default. Full regard will therefore be given to other
available information on the credit quality of the organisations in which it
invests, including credit default swap prices, financial statements and reports
in the quality financial press. No investments will be made with an
organisation if there are substantive doubts about its credit quality, even
though it may meet the above criteria.

8
Page 170



When deteriorating financial market conditions affect the creditworthiness of
all organisations, as in 2008 and 2011, this is not generally reflected in credit
ratings, but can be seen in other market measures. In these circumstances,
the Council will restrict its investments to those organisations of higher credit
quality and reduce the maximum duration of its investments to maintain the
required level of security. The extent of these restrictions will be in line with
prevailing financial market conditions.

If these restrictions mean that insufficient commercial organisations of “high
credit quality” are available to invest the Council’'s cash balances, then the
surplus will be deposited with the UK Government, via the Debt Management
Office for example, or with other local authorities. This will cause a reduction
in the level of investment income earned, but will protect the principal sum
invested.

Specified investments
The WG Guidance defines specified investments as those:
e denominated in pound sterling,
e due to be repaid within 12 months of arrangement,
¢ not defined as capital expenditure by legislation, and
e invested with one of:
o the UK Government,
o a UKlocal authority, parish council or community council, or
o a body or investment scheme of “high credit quality”.

The Council defines ‘high credit quality’ organisations as those having a credit
rating of A- or higher that are, domiciled in the UK, or a foreign country with a
sovereign rating of AA+ or higher.

Non-Specified Investments

Any investment not meeting the definition of a specified investment is classed
as non-specified. The Council does not intend to make any investments in
foreign currencies. Non- specified investments will therefore be limited to long
term investments, i.e. those that are due to mature 12 months or longer from
the date of arrangement; those that are defined as capital expenditure, such
as money market funds; and investments with bodies and schemes not
meeting the definition on high credit quality. Limits on non-specified
investments are shown in table 5 below.

Table 6: Non-Specified Investment Limits

Cash Limit
Total long-term investments £10m
Total shares in money market funds £30m
Total investments without credit ratings or rated below A- £10m
Total non-specified investments £50m

Approved Instruments
The Authority may lend or invest money using any of the following
instruments:

9
Page 171



 interest-bearing bank accounts,

 fixed term deposits and loans,

» callable deposits and loans where the Authority may demand
repayment at any time (with or without notice),

» callable deposits and loans where the borrower may repay before
maturity

« certificates of deposit,

e bonds, notes, bills, commercial paper and other marketable

instruments, and

shares in money market funds

Investments may be made at either a fixed rate of interest, or at a variable
rate linked to a market interest rate, such as LIBOR, subject to the limits on
interest rate exposures below.

Liquidity management

The Council uses purpose-built cash flow forecasting software to determine
the maximum period for which funds may prudently be committed. The
forecast is compiled on a pessimistic basis, with receipts under-estimated and
payments over-estimated to minimise the risk of the Council being forced to
borrow on unfavourable terms to meet its financial commitments.

Limits on long-term investments are set by reference to the Council’s medium
term financial plan and cash flow forecast.

Planned investment strateqy for 2014/15
The economic climate improved slightly during 2013/14 and several longer
term investments were made.

However, following discussions with the Council’'s treasury management
advisors after their review of building society risk, the focus has turned away
from building societies and returned to placing money “on call” with banks,
depositing with other local authorities and extensive use of Money Market
Funds.

Treasury management staff will continue to seek out investments that meet
the criteria detailed within this strategy whilst having full regard for the
Council’s cash flow requirements, in particular the expectancy to meet single
status and equal pay obligations during the 2014/15 financial year.

The cash flow forecast will be used to divide surplus funds into three
categories:
e Short-term — cash required to meet known cash outflows in the next
month, plus a contingency to cover unexpected cash flows over the
same period.

e Medium-term — cash required to manage the annual seasonal cash
flow cycle, including amounts to cover forecast shortages, planned
uses of reserves, and a longer-term contingency.

10
Page 172



e Long-term — cash not required to meet cash flows, and used primarily
to generate investment income.

Short-term funds are required to meet cash flows occurring in the next month
or so, and the preservation of capital and liquidity is therefore of paramount
importance.  Generating investment returns is of limited concern here,
although it should not be ignored. Instant access money market funds and
bank deposit accounts will be the main methods used to manage short-term
cash. It is estimated that about 35% of surplus monies will be short term for
cash flow purposes, although this may vary depending on changes to the
interest rate yield curve.

Medium-term funds which may be required in the next one to twelve months
will be managed concentrating on security, with less importance attached to
liquidity but a slightly higher emphasis on yield. The majority of investments
in this period will be in the form of fixed term deposits with banks and building
societies. A wide spread of counterparties and maturity dates will be
maintained to maximise the diversification of credit and interest rate risks. Itis
estimated that about 55% of surplus funds will be medium term. However,
again this may vary depending on changes to the interest rate yield curve.

Cash that is not required to meet any liquidity need can be invested for the
longer term with a greater emphasis on achieving returns that will support
spending on local authority services. Security remains important, as any
losses from defaults will impact on the total return, but fluctuations in price
and even occasional losses can be managed over the long term within a
diversified portfolio. Liquidity is of lesser concern, although it should still be
possible to sell investments, with due notice, if large spending commitments
arise unexpectedly. A wider range of instruments, including structured
deposits, certificates of deposit, gilts and corporate bonds will be used to
diversify the portfolio. The Council will consider employing external fund
managers that have the skills and resources to manage the risks inherent in a
portfolio of long-term investments. However, in the current economic and
financial environment it is likely that only a small percentage, about 10% will
be invested longer term, probably over two years in fixed term deposits or
callable deposits.

With short-term interest rates currently much lower than long-term rates, due
consideration will also be given to using surplus funds to make early
repayments of long-term borrowing. In addition to the savings on the interest
rate differential, this strategy will also reduce the Council’s exposure to credit
risk and interest rate risk.

Borrowing Strateqy

The Council currently holds £172.11m of long-term loans, as part of its
strategy for funding previous years’ capital programmes. The balance sheet

11
Page 173



forecast in section 3 shows that the Council does not anticipate undertaking
any long term borrowing during 2014/15.

The Council’'s chief objective when borrowing money is to strike an
appropriately low risk balance between securing low interest costs and
achieving cost certainty over the period for which the funds are required. The
flexibility to renegotiate loans should the Council’s long-term plans change is
a secondary objective.

Given the significant cuts to public expenditure and in particular to local
government funding, the Council’s borrowing strategy continues to address
the key issue of affordability without compromising the longer-term stability of
the debt portfolio. With short-term interest rates currently much lower than
long-term rates, it is likely to be more cost effective in the short-term to either
use internal resources, or to borrow short-term instead.

By doing so, the Council is able to reduce net borrowing costs (despite
forgone investment income) and reduce overall treasury risk. Whilst such a
strategy is most likely to be beneficial over the next 2-3 years as official
interest rates remain low, it is unlikely to be sustained in the medium-term.
The benefits of internal borrowing will be monitored regularly against the
potential for incurring additional costs by deferring borrowing into future years
when long-term borrowing costs are forecast to rise. Arlingclose with assist
the Council with this ‘cost of carry’ and breakeven analysis. Its output may
determine whether the Council borrows additional sums at long-term fixed
rates in 2014/15 with a view to keeping future interest costs low, even if this
causes additional cost in the short term

In addition, the Council may borrow for short periods of time (normally for up
to one month) to cover unexpected cash flow shortages.

Sources of borrowing
The approved sources of long-term and short-term borrowing will be:
e Public Works Loan Board
e Uk local authorities
e any institution approved for investments above
e any other bank or building society approved by the Prudential
Regultaion Authority to operate in the UK
¢ UK public and private sector pension funds (except the Clwyd Pension
Fund)
e capital market bond investors
e special purpose companies created to enable joint local authority bond
issues.

Planned borrowing strategy for 2014/15
The Head of Finance will:

¢ Manage the Council's debt maturity profile, i.e. to leave no one future year

12
Page 174



with a high level of repayments that could cause problems in re-borrowing
with the limits stated in this Strategy Statement. Appendix A analyses the
debt portfolio of the Council, as at 31st December, 2013.

o To effect any borrowing that maybe required in 2014/15 at the cheapest
cost commensurate with future risk based on interest rate forecasts.

e To monitor and review the level of variable interest rate loans in order to
take greater advantage of interest rate movements, within the limits stated
in this Strategy.

e Continue to monitor options for debt-restructuring and debt re-payment.

The Head of Finance will monitor the interest rate market and adopt a
pragmatic approach to any changing circumstances, reporting any decisions
and actions taken under delegated powers to Cabinet via the Audit
Committee.

The Council has previously raised the majority of its long-term borrowing from
the Public Works Loan Board, but it continues to investigate other sources of
finance, such as bond issues and bank loans, that may be available at more
favourable rates.

Loans that present additional risk to the authority, such as lender's option
borrower’s option (LOBO) loans and variable rate loans will be restricted to
the limit on the net exposure to variable interest rates in the treasury
management indicators below.

Policy on Use of Financial Derivatives

In the absence of any legislative power, the Council’s policy is not to enter into
standalone financial derivatives transactions such as swaps, forwards, futures
and options. Derivatives embedded into loans and investments may be used,
and the risks that they present will be managed in line with the overall
treasury risk management strategy.

Treasury Management Indicators

The Council measures and manages its exposures to treasury management
risks using the following indicators. The Council is asked to approve the
following indicators:

13
Page 175



Interest rate exposures

This indicator is set to control the Council’'s exposure to interest rate risk. The
upper limits on fixed and variable rate interest rate exposures, expressed as
an amount of net principal borrowed will be:

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
Upper limit on fixed interest rate exposures £200m £200m £200m
Upper limit on variable interest rate £40m £40m £40m
exposures

Fixed rate investments and borrowings are those where the rate of interest is
fixed for the whole financial year. Instruments that mature during the financial
year are classed as variable rate.

Maturity structure of borrowing
This indicator is set to control the Council’'s exposure to refinancing risk. The
upper and lower limits on the maturity structure of fixed rate borrowing will be:

Lower Upper
Under 12 months 0% 10%
12 months and within 24 months 0% 10%
24 months and within five years 0% 30%
Five years and within 10 years 0% 50%
10 years and above 0% 100%

Time periods start on the first day of each financial year. The maturity date of
borrowing is the earliest date on which the lender can demand repayment.

Principal sums invested for periods longer than 364 days

The purpose of this indicator is to control the Council’'s exposure to the risk of
incurring losses by seeking early repayment of its investments. The limits on
the total principal sum invested to final maturities beyond the period end will
be:

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

Limit on total principal invested beyond year £10m £10m £10m

end

Any long term investments carried forward from previous years will be
included in each years limit.

14
Page 176




Borrowing limits

The Council is being asked to approve these Prudential Indicators as part of
the Capital Programme report. However they are repeated here for
completeness.

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
Operational boundary — borrowing £182.3m | £227.3m | £237.3m
Operational boundary - other long-term | £10.1m £11.1m £12.1m
liabilities £192.4m | £238.4m | £249.4m
Operational boundary — TOTAL
Authorised limit — borrowing £202.3m | £247.3m | £257.3m
Authorised limit — other long-term liabilities £20.1m £21.1m £22.1m
Authorised limit — TOTAL £222.4m | £268.4m | £279.4m
Other Matters

The WG Investment Guidance requires the Council to note the following three
matters each year as part of the investment strategy:

Treasury Management Advisers
The Council’s treasury management adviser, Arlingclose continues to provide
advice and information on the Council’s investment and borrowing activities,
although responsibility for final decision making remains with the Council and
its officers. The services received include:

e advice and guidance on relevant policies, strategies and reports,
advice on investment decisions,
notification of credit ratings and changes,
other information on credit quality,
advice on debt management decisions,
accounting advice,
reports on treasury performance,
forecasts of interest rates, and
training courses.

The quality of this service is controlled by Financial Procedure Rules

Investment training

The needs of the Council’'s treasury management staff for training in
investment management are assessed as part of the staff appraisal process,
and additionally when the responsibilities of individual members of staff
change.

Staff regularly attend training courses, seminars and conferences provided by
Arlingclose and CIPFA. Relevant staff are also encouraged to study
professional qualifications from CIPFA, the Association of Corporate
Treasurers and other appropriate organisations.

15
Page 177




Investment of Money Borrowed in Advance of Need
The Council will not borrow more than or in advance of its needs, purely in
order to profit from the investment of the extra sums borrowed.

The Head of Finance under delegated powers may borrow in advance of need
if it is within forward approved Capital Financing Requirement estimates, and
if there is a clear business case for doing so.

Risks associated with any advance borrowing activity will be subject to
appraisal in advance and subsequent reporting through the mid-year or
annual reporting mechanism. The Council would not look to borrow more
than 12 months in advance of need.

The Council will only invest money borrowed in advance of need for known
debt maturities or to finance the borrowing requirement for the vyear
concerned.

Other Options Considered

The WG Investment Guidance and the CIPFA Code of Practice do not
prescribe any particular treasury management strategy for local authorities to
adopt. The Chief Financial Officer, having consulted the Cabinet Member for
Finance, believes that the above strategy represents an appropriate balance

between risk management and cost effectiveness. Some alternative
strategies, with their financial and risk management implications, are listed
below.

Alternative Impact on income and Impact on risk

expenditure

management

Invest in a narrower range of
counterparties and/or for shorter
periods.

Interest income will be lower

Reduced risk of losses from
credit related defaults

Invest in a wider range of
counterparties and/or for longer
periods.

Interest income will be higher

Increased risk of losses from
credit related defaults

Borrow additional sums at long-
term fixed interest rates

Debt interest costs will rise;
this is unlikely to be offset by
higher investment income

Higher investment balance
leading to a higher impact in
the event of a default;
however long-term interest
costs will be more certain

Borrow short-term or variable
loans instead of long-term fixed
rates

Debt interest costs will
initially be lower

Increases in debt interest
costs will be broadly offset by
rising investment income in
the medium term, but long
term costs will be less certain

Reduce level of borrowing if debt
rescheduling costs weren’t
prohibitive

Saving on debt interest is
likely to exceed lost
investment income

Reduced investment balance
leading to a lower impact in
the event of a default;
however long-term interest
costs will be less certain

16
Page 178




APPENDIX A — DEBT MATURITY PROFILE

Debt Maturity Profile
£m

17
Page 179



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 180



Agenda Item 15

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
DATE: TUESDAY, 18 FEBRUARY 2014
REPORT BY: HEAD OF FINANCE

SUBJECT: COUNCIL TAX SETTING 2014-15

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  For Council to set Council Tax for 2014-15 and agree the statutory
resolutions for the purpose of administering Council Tax and Non-
Domestic Rates.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 Also on this agenda is consideration of the Council Fund Revenue
Budget for 2014-15. The recommendation of the Cabinet is that the
Council Fund Budget Requirement for 2014-15 be set at
£253,718,291 which will result in Council Tax charges as detailed in
this report.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01  The Council Tax resolution includes elements relating to the County
Council, Police & Crime Commissioner — North Wales and all
Town/Community Councils.

3.02 The proposed resolutions as detailed in Appendix A to this report are
split into the following sections :-

Section 1 details the Council Tax Base set for 2014-15, which shows
the number of properties (shown in total and for each specific
Town/Community Council) expressed as Band 'D' equivalents, taking
into account appropriate adjustments for statutory discounts and
exemptions.

Section 2 (a) to 2 (i) details the expenditure and income of Flintshire
County Council and Town/Community Councils. It also sets out details
of the amount of Council Tax to be charged across the various
Valuation Bands in respect of the County Council precept and each
Town/Community Council precept.

Section 3 details the amount of Council Tax to be charged in each
Valuation Band in respect of the Police & Crime Commissioner —
North Wales.

Page 181



4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

Section 4 details the overall amount of Council Tax that taxpayers will
be required to pay from April 2014, subject to entitlements to any
discounts or exemptions. This is made up of three chargeable
precepts, Flintshire County Council, Police & Crime Commissioner —
North Wales, and the Town/Community Councils.

Section 5 re-affirms the Councils policy for 2014-15 not to grant
discounts on second and long term empty properties which are
defined by Regulations under three Prescribed Classes of Dwellings -
Class A dwellings are second home which are unoccupied and
furnished with a restriction on occupancy for a period of at least 28
consecutive days in any 12 month period. Class B dwellings are
second homes which are unoccupied and furnished, with no restriction
on occupancy. Class C dwellings are long empty and unfurnished
dwellings and have been such for a period of over 6 months in most
cases.

Section 6 gives the Section 151 officer the authority to make
payments to the Police and Crime Commissioner — North Wales in
twelve equal payments payable on the 15th day of each month from
April 2013.

Sections 7 & 8 provide authority to specified officers to issue legal
proceedings for non payment of Council Tax and Business Rates and
to appear on behalf of the Council to prosecute in cases of non
payment.

Section 9 provides for the advertisement of the Council Tax for 2014-
15 in the local press, as defined by Regulations.

The result of these resolutions would be that Council Tax is levied
across all areas of the County as set out in Appendix A and further
analysed in Appendix B by amounts and percentage increases.

RECOMMENDATIONS

For Members to agree all resolutions as detailed in Appendix A.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

As set out in the report.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None.

Page 182



8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

12.02

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

None.

APPENDICES

Appendix A to this report details all resolutions necessary to set the
2014-15 Council Tax charges.

Appendix B to this report provides Members with some statistical
information relating the breakdown of Council Tax charges for 2014
15 by Town & Community Council area.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

e Local Government Finance Act 1992

¢ Local Government Act 1972 and 2003

e Council Tax (Prescribed Classes of Dwellings) (Wales)
(Regulations)

Contact Officer: David Barnes, Revenues Manager
Telephone: 01352 703652
Email: david.barnes@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 183



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 184



APPENDIX A

STATUTORY & OTHER NECESSARY COUNCIL TAX
RESOLUTIONS FOR 2014-15

That it be noted that at its meeting on 19" November 2013 the Council calculated
interim amounts, subsequently modified as follows, for the year 2013-14 in
accordance with the regulations made under Section 33(5) of the Local Government
Finance Act 1992.

61,501 being the amount calculated in accordance with Regulation 3 of the Local
Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax Base) Wales Regulations 1995, as its Council
Tax base for the year, broken down into the following Town/Community areas :-

Argoed 2,446.09
Bagillt 1,459.04
Broughton & Bretton 2,370.28
Brynford 470.90
Buckley 6,331.53
Caerwys 614.17
Cilcain 739.74
Connahs Quay 5,991.51
Flint 4,405.17
Gwernaffield 1,020.83
Gwernymynydd 556.13
Halkyn 1,346.09
Hawarden 6,134.53
Higher Kinnerton 801.77
Holywell 3,243.19
Hope 1,829.60
Leeswood 833.43
Llanasa 1,903.38
Llanfynydd 829.32
Mold 4,177.88
Mostyn 706.09
Nannerch 271.03
Nercwys 303.93
Northop 1,518.58
Northop Hall 719.63
Penyffordd 1,728.78
Queensferry 686.73
Saltney 1,779.96
Sealand 1,138.42
Shotton 2,170.34
Trelawnyd & Gwaenysgor 417.28
Treuddyn 731.27
Whitford 1,152.39
Ysceifiog 671.99

61,501.00

TOTAL BAND "D" PROPERTIES

Paf2a@es 185



APPENDIX A

being the amounts calculated in accordance with regulation 6 of the Regulations as the
amounts of its Council Tax base for the year for dwelling in those parts of its area to which
special items relate.

2.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9

(h)

That the following amounts be now calculated by the Council for the year 2014-
15 in accordance with Sections 32 to 36 of the Local Government Finance Act
1992 and Alteration of Requisite Calculations (Wales) Regulations 2013 :-

Aggregate of the amounts which the Council estimates
for the items set out in Section 32 (2) (a)-(d) (including
Community Council precepts totalling £2,386,600).

Aggregate of the amounts which the Council estimates
for items set out in Section 32 (3) (a) and 32 (3 (c).

Amount by which the aggregate at 2(a) above exceeds
the aggregate at 2(b) above calculated in accordance
with Section 32 (4) as the budget requirement for the
year.

Aggregate of the sums which the Council estimates will
be payable for the year into its Council Fund in respect
of redistributed Non-Domestic Rates, Revenue Support
Grant or Additional Grant.

The amount at 2(c) above less the amount at 2(d)
above, all divided by the amount at section 1 above,
calculated in accordance with Section 33 (1) as the
basic amount of Council Tax for the year.

Aggregate amount of all special items referred to in
Section 34 (1).

Amount at 2(e) above less the result given by dividing
the amount at 2(f) above by the amount at section 1
above calculated by the Council, in accordance with
Section 34 (2) of the Act, as the basic amount of
Council Tax for the year for dwellings in those parts of
the area to which no special items relate.

The amounts given by adding to the amount at 2(g)
above the amounts of special items relating to dwellings
in those part of the Council's area mentioned below,
divided in each case by the amount at 1(b) above,
calculated in accordance with Section 34(3) as the
basic amounts of its Council Tax for the year for
dwellings in those parts of the area to which special
items relate.

Page 186

£378,322,368

£122,217,477

£256,104,891

£192,942,209

£1,027.02

£2,386,600

£988.21

£0.00



APPENDIX A

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CHARGES (BAND D) 2014-15

(Including Community/Town Councils)

£
Argoed 1,013.29
Bagillt 1,014.89
Broughton & Bretton 1,029.13
Brynford 1,023.21
Buckley 1,033.45
Caerwys 1,026.78
Cilcain 1,016.46
Connahs Quay 1,036.43
Flint 1,026.57
Gwernaffield 1,003.88
Gwernymynydd 1,013.38
Halkyn 1,018.67
Hawarden 1,024.89
Higher Kinnerton 1,021.89
Holywell 1,034.92
Hope 1,015.54
Leeswood 1,029.01
Llanasa 1,020.26
Llanfynydd 1,021.97
Mold 1,040.04
Mostyn 1,026.31
Nannerch 1,025.21
Nercwys 1,035.92
Northop 1,008.21
Northop Hall 1,018.58
Penyffordd 1,015.98
Queensferry 1,039.18
Saltney 1,031.18
Sealand 1,034.77
Shotton 1,031.99
Trelawnyd & Gwaenysgor 1,020.92
Treuddyn 1,031.97
Whitford 1,025.21
Ysceifiog 1,018.63

The amounts given by multiplying the amounts at 2(h) above by the number which in
the proportion set out in Section 5(1) of the Act is applicable to dwellings listed in a
particular valuation band divided by the number which in that proportion is applicable
to dwellings listed in valuation band D calculated in accordance with Section 36(1) of
the Act as the amounts to be taken into account for the year in respect of categories
of dwellings listed in different valuation bands.

PaRages 187



APPENDIX A

Area VALUATION BANDS
A B c D E F G H 1
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £
Argoed 675.53 | 788.12 | 900.70 | 1,013.29 | 1,238.46 | 1,463.64 | 1,688.82 | 2,026.58 | 2,364.34
Bagillt 676.60 | 789.36 | 902.13 | 1,014.89 | 1,240.42 | 1,465.95 | 1,691.49 | 2,029.78 | 2,368.07
Broughton & Bretton 686.09 | 800.44 | 914.78 | 1,029.13 | 1,257.82 | 1,486.52 | 1,715.22 | 2,058.26 | 2,401.30
Brynford 682.14 | 795.83 | 909.52 | 1,023.21 | 1,250.59 | 1,477.97 | 1,705.35 | 2,046.42 | 2,387.49
Buckley 688.97 | 803.80 | 918.62 | 1,033.45 | 1,263.10 | 1,492.76 | 1,722.42 | 2,066.90 | 2,411.38
Caerwys 684.52 | 798.61 | 912.69 | 1,026.78 | 1,254.95 | 1,483.12 | 1,711.30 | 2,053.56 | 2,395.82
Cilcain 677.64 | 790.58 | 903.52 | 1,016.46 | 1,242.34 | 1,468.22 | 1,694.10 | 2,032.92 | 2,371.74
Connahs Quay 690.96 | 806.11 | 921.27 | 1,036.43 | 1,266.75 | 1,497.06 | 1,727.39 | 2,072.86 | 2,418.33
Flint 684.38 | 798.45 | 912.51 | 1,026.57 | 1,254.69 | 1,482.82 | 1,710.95 | 2,053.14 | 2,395.33
Gwernaffield 669.26 | 780.80 | 892.34 | 1,003.88 | 1,226.96 | 1,450.04 | 1,673.14 | 2,007.76 | 2,342.38
Gwernymynydd 675.59 | 788.19 | 900.78 | 1,013.38 | 1,238.57 | 1,463.77 | 1,688.97 | 2,026.76 | 2,364.55
Halkyn 679.12 | 792.30 | 905.49 | 1,018.67 | 1,245.04 | 1,471.41 | 1,697.79 | 2,037.34 | 2,376.89
Hawarden 683.26 | 797.14 | 911.01 | 1,024.89 | 1,252.64 | 1,480.39 | 1,708.15 | 2,049.78 | 2,391.41
Higher Kinnerton 681.26 | 794.81 | 908.35 | 1,021.89 | 1,248.97 | 1,476.06 | 1,703.15 | 2,043.78 | 2,384.41
Holywell 689.95 | 804.94 | 919.93 | 1,034.92 | 1,264.90 | 1,494.88 | 1,724.87 | 2,069.84 | 2,414.81
Hope 677.03 | 789.87 | 902.70 | 1,015.54 | 1,241.21 | 1,466.89 | 1,692.57 | 2,031.08 | 2,369.59
Leeswood 686.01 | 800.34 | 914.68 | 1,029.01 | 1,257.68 | 1,486.34 | 1,715.02 | 2,058.02 | 2,401.02
Llanasa 680.18 | 793.54 | 906.90 | 1,020.26 | 1,246.98 | 1,473.70 | 1,700.44 | 2,040.52 | 2,380.60
Llanfynydd 681.32 | 794.87 | 908.42 | 1,021.97 | 1,249.07 | 1,476.17 | 1,703.29 | 2,043.94 | 2,384.59
Mold 693.36 | 808.92 | 924.48 | 1,040.04 | 1,271.16 | 1,502.28 | 1,733.40 | 2,080.08 | 2,426.76
Mostyn 684.21 | 798.24 | 912.28 | 1,026.31 | 1,254.38 | 1,482.44 | 1,710.52 | 2,052.62 | 2,394.72
Nannerch 683.48 | 797.39 | 911.30 | 1,025.21 | 1,253.03 | 1,480.85 | 1,708.69 | 2,050.42 | 2,392.15
Nercwys 690.62 | 805.72 | 920.82 | 1,035.92 | 1,266.12 | 1,496.32 | 1,726.54 | 2,071.84 | 2,417.14
Northop 672.14 | 784.17 | 896.19 | 1,008.21 | 1,232.25 | 1,456.30 | 1,680.35 | 2,016.42 | 2,352.49
Northop Hall 679.06 | 792.23 | 905.41 | 1,018.58 | 1,244.93 | 1,471.28 | 1,697.64 | 2,037.16 | 2,376.68
Penyffordd 677.32 | 790.21 | 903.09 | 1,015.98 | 1,241.75 | 1,467.52 | 1,693.30 | 2,031.96 | 2,370.62
Queensferry 692.79 | 808.25 | 923.72 | 1,039.18 | 1,270.11 | 1,501.03 | 1,731.97 | 2,078.36 | 2,424.75
Saltney 687.46 | 802.03 | 916.61 | 1,031.18 | 1,260.33 | 1,489.48 | 1,718.64 | 2,062.36 | 2,406.08
Sealand 689.85 | 804.82 | 919.80 | 1,034.77 | 1,264.72 | 1,494.66 | 1,724.62 | 2,069.54 | 2,414.46
Shotton 688.00 | 802.66 | 917.33 | 1,031.99 | 1,261.32 | 1,490.65 | 1,719.99 | 2,063.98 | 2,407.97
Trelawnyd & Gwaenysgor | 680.62 | 794.05 | 907.49 | 1,020.92 | 1,247.79 | 1,474.66 | 1,701.54 | 2,041.84 | 2,382.14
Treuddyn 687.98 | 802.65 | 917.31 | 1,031.97 | 1,261.29 | 1,490.62 | 1,719.95 | 2,063.94 | 2,407.93
Whitford 683.48 | 797.39 | 911.30 | 1,025.21 | 1,253.03 | 1,480.85 | 1,708.69 | 2,050.42 | 2,392.15
Ysceifiog 679.09 | 792.27 | 905.45 | 1,018.63 | 1,244.99 | 1,471.35 | 1,697.72 | 2,037.26 | 2,376.80
3. That it be noted that for the year 2014-15 the Police and Crime Panel have stated the

following amounts in precepts issued to the Council, in accordance with Section 40 of
the Local Government Finance Act 1992 for each of the categories of dwellings

shown below :-

Valuation Bands

A B (o D E F G H |
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £
Precept | 151.74 | 177.03 | 202.32 | 227.61 | 278.19 | 328.77 | 379.35 | 455.22 | 531.09

Pages 188




APPENDIX A

4. Having calculated the aggregate in each case of the amounts at 2(i) and 3 above, the
Council in accordance with Section 30(2) of the Local Government Finance Act 1992
hereby sets the following amounts as the amounts of Council Tax for the year 2014-
15 for each of the categories of dwellings shown below:

Area VALUATION BANDS
A B (o D E F G H |
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

Argoed 827.27 | 965.15 | 1,103.02 1,240.90 | 1,516.65 | 1,792.41 2,068.17 | 2,481.80 | 2,895.43
Bagillt 828.34 | 966.39 | 1,104.4,5 1,242.50 | 1,518.61 | 1,794.72 2,070.84 | 2,485.00 | 2,899.16
Broughton &

Bretton 837.83 | 97747 | 1,117.10 1,256.74 | 1,536.01 | 1,815.29 2,094.57 | 2,513.48 | 2,932.39
Brynford 833.88 | 972.86 | 1,111.84 1,250.82 | 1,528.78 | 1,806.74 2,084.70 | 2,501.64 | 2,918.58
Buckley 840.71 | 980.83 | 1,120.94 1,261.06 | 1,541.29 | 1,821.53 2,101.77 | 2,522.12 | 2,942.47
Caerwys 836.26 | 975.64 | 1,115.01 1,254.39 | 1,533.14 | 1,811.89 2,090.65 | 2,508.78 | 2,926.91
Cilcain 829.38 | 967.61 | 1,105.84 1,244.07 | 1,520.53 | 1,796.99 2,073.45 | 2,488.14 | 2,902.83
Connahs Quay 842.70 | 983.14 | 1,123.59 1,264.04 | 1,544.94 | 1,825.83 2,106.74 | 2,528.08 | 2,949.42
Flint 836.12 | 97548 | 1,114.83 1,254.18 | 1,532.88 | 1,811.59 2,090.30 | 2,508.36 | 2,926.42
Gwernaffield 821.00 | 957.83 | 1,094.66 1,231.49 | 1,505.15 | 1,778.81 2,052.49 | 2,462.98 | 2,873.47
Gwernymynydd 827.33 | 965.22 | 1,103.10 1,240.99 | 1,516.76 | 1,792.54 2,068.32 | 2,481.98 | 2,895.64
Halkyn 830.86 | 969.33 | 1,107.81 1,246.28 | 1,523.23 | 1,800.18 2,077.14 | 2,492.56 | 2,907.98
Hawarden 835.00 | 974.17 | 1,113.33 1,252.50 | 1,530.83 | 1,809.16 2,087.50 | 2,505.00 | 2,922.50
E;g:ee:ton 833.00 | 971.84 | 1,110.67 1,249.50 | 1,527.16 | 1,804.83 2,082.50 | 2,499.00 | 2,915.50
Holywell 841.69 | 981.97 | 1,122.25 1,262.53 | 1,543.09 | 1,823.65 2,104.22 | 2,525.06 | 2,945.90
Hope 828.77 | 966.90 | 1,105.02 1,243.15 | 1,519.40 | 1,795.66 2,071.92 | 2,486.30 | 2,900.68
Leeswood 837.75 | 977.37 | 1,117.00 1,256.62 | 1,535.87 | 1,815.11 2,094.37 | 2,513.24 | 2,932.11
Llanasa 831.92 | 970.57 | 1,109.22 1,247.87 | 1,525.17 | 1,802.47 2,079.79 | 2,495.74 | 2,911.69
Llanfynydd 833.06 | 971.90 | 1,110.74 1,249.58 | 1,527.26 | 1,804.94 2,082.64 | 2,499.16 | 2,915.68
Mold 845.10 | 985.95 | 1,126.80 1,267.65 | 1,549.35 | 1,831.05 2,112.75 | 2,535.30 | 2,957.85
Mostyn 835.95 | 975.27 | 1,114.60 1,253.92 | 1,532.57 | 1,811.21 2,089.87 | 2,507.84 | 2,925.81
Nannerch 835.22 | 97442 | 1,113.62 1,252.82 | 1,531.22 | 1,809.62 2,088.04 | 2,505.64 | 2,923.24
Nercwys 842.36 | 982.75 | 1,123.14 1,263.53 | 1,544.31 | 1,825.09 2,105.89 | 2,527.06 | 2,948.23
Northop 823.88 | 961.20 | 1,098.51 1,235.82 | 1,51044 | 1,785.07 2,059.70 | 2,471.64 | 2,883.58
Northop Hall 830.80 | 969.26 | 1,107.73 1,246.19 | 1,523.12 | 1,800.05 2,076.99 | 2,492.38 | 2,907.77
Penyffordd 829.06 | 967.24 | 1,105.41 1,243.59 | 1,519.94 | 1,796.29 2,072.65 | 2,487.18 | 2,901.71
Queensferry 844.53 | 985.28 | 1,126.04 1,266.79 | 1,548.30 | 1,829.80 2,111.32 | 2,533.58 | 2,955.84
Saltney 839.20 | 979.06 | 1,118.93 1,258.79 | 1,5638.52 | 1,818.25 2,097.99 | 2,517.58 | 2,937.17
Sealand 841.59 | 981.85 | 1,122.12 1,262.38 | 1,542.91 | 1,823.43 2,103.97 | 2,524.76 | 2,945.55
Shotton 839.74 | 979.69 | 1,119.65 1,259.60 | 1,539.51 | 1,819.42 2,099.34 | 2,519.20 | 2,939.06
Trelawnyd &

Gwaenysgor 832.36 | 971.08 | 1,109.81 1,248.53 | 1,525.98 | 1,803.43 2,080.89 | 2,497.06 | 2,913.23
Treuddyn 839.72 | 979.68 | 1,119.63 1,259.58 | 1,539.48 | 1,819.39 2,099.30 | 2,519.16 | 2,939.02
Whitford 835.22 | 97442 | 1,113.62 1,252.82 | 1,531.22 | 1,809.62 2,088.04 | 2,505.64 | 2,923.24
Ysceifiog 830.83 | 969.30 | 1,107.77 1,246.24 | 1,523.18 | 1,800.12 2,077.07 | 2,492.48 | 2,907.89

PafRa@es 189




APPENDIX A

5. In line with the existing policy of the Council, that for 2014-15, in accordance with

Section 12 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 (as amended by Section 75 of

the Local Government Act 2003 and the Council Tax (Prescribed Classes of

Dwellings) (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2004, no discounts shall be granted to

second homes subject to Council Tax which are unoccupied and furnished, (defined

as Prescribed Classes A and B) and long term empty and unfurnished properties
(defined as Prescribed Class C)

6. That the Council's Chief Financial/Section 151 Officer be authorised to make
payments under section 38(9) Local Government (Wales) Act 1994 and the Local
Authorities (Precepts) (Wales) Regulations 1995 from the Council Fund by equal
instalments on the 15" day of each month from April 2014 (adjusted to the next
working day as necessary) to March 2015 in respect of the precept levied by the
Police and Crime Panel in the sum of £13,998,243

7. Authorisations - Council Tax

a) That the holders of the posts of Chief Financial/Section 151 Officer, Revenues &
Benefits Manager, Revenues Manager, Revenues Team Leaders,
Court/Prosecutions Officer, Revenues Officers within Finance for the time being
be authorised under Section 223 of the Local Government Act 1972 to issue legal
proceedings and to appear on behalf of the County Council at the hearing of any
legal proceedings in the Magistrates Court by way of an application for the issue
of a Liability Order in respect of unpaid Council Taxes and penalties under Part
VI of the Council Tax (Administration and Enforcement) Regulations 1992; by
way of an application for the issue of a warrant of commitment to prison under
Part VI of the Council Tax (Administration and Enforcement) Regulations 1992; to
require financial information to make an Attachment of Earnings Order; to levy
the appropriate amount by taking control of goods and sale of goods; and to
exercise all other enforcement powers of the County Council under the Council
Tax (Administration and Enforcements) Regulations 1992 and any subsequent
amendments of such Regulations.

b) That the Council’s Chief Financial/Section 151 Officer be authorised to engage
the services of enforcement agents for the purpose of taking control of goods,
and where necessary, the sale of goods, in cases where Liability Orders are
awarded, obtaining financial information where necessary and enforcing warrants
of arrest and warrants of commitment in certain cases on behalf of the Courts
and in accordance with the provisions of the Local Government Finance Act 1992
and any Regulations made there under.

8. Authorisations - National Non-Domestic Rates

a) That the holders of the posts of Chief Financial/Section 151 Officer, Revenues &
Benefits Manager, Revenues Manager, Revenues Team Leaders,
Court/Prosecutions Officer, Revenues Officers within Finance for the time being
be authorised under Section 223 of the Local Government Act 1972, to institute
legal proceedings and to appear on behalf of the Council at the hearing of any
legal proceedings in the Magistrates Courts by way of application for the issue of
a liability order in respect of unpaid rates; by way of an application for the issue of
a warrant of commitment; and to exercise all other powers of enforcement of the
County Council under the Non-Domestic (Collection and Enforcement) (Local
Lists) Regulations 1989 and any amendment thereto.

b) That the Council’'s Chief Financial/Section 151 Officer be authorised to engage
the services of enforcement agents for the purposes of taking control of goods,
and where necessary, the sale of goods, in cases where Liability Orders are
awarded, and to enforce warrants of arrest and warrants of commitment on
behalf of the Courts as may be necessary to recover outstanding rates.

9. That notices of the making of the said Council Taxes for 2014-15, signed by the
Council’s Chief Financial/Section 151 Officer, be given by advertisement in the local
press under Section 38(2) of the Local Government Finance Act 1992.

Pages 1420



2014-15 Council Tax Charges

Appendix B

Lowest to Highest Amounts by Town/Community Council

Community Councils

Gwernaffield
Northop
Argoed
Gwernymynydd
Bagillt

Hope
Penyffordd
Cilcain

Northop Hall
Ysceifiog
Halkyn

Llanasa
Trelawnyd & Gwaenysgor
Higher Kinnerton
Llanfynydd
Brynford
Hawarden
Nannerch
Whitford
Mostyn

Flint

Caerwys
Leeswood
Broughton & Bretton
Saltney
Treuddyn
Shotton
Buckley
Sealand
Holywell
Nercwys
Connahs Quay
Queensferry
Mold

BAND D
Community | Flintshire | Police | Total
£ £ £ £
15.67 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,231.49
20.00 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,235.82
25.08 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,240.90
25.17 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,240.99
26.68 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,242.50
27.33 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,243.15
27.77 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,243.59
28.25 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,244.07
30.37 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,246.19
30.42 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,246.24
30.46 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,246.28
32.05 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,247.87
32.71 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,248.53
33.68 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,249.50
33.76 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,249.58
35.00 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,250.82
36.68 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,252.50
37.00 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,252.82
37.00 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,252.82
38.10 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,253.92
38.36 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,254.18
38.57 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,254.39
40.80 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,256.62
40.92 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,256.74
42.97 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,258.79
43.76 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,259.58
43.78 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,259.60
4524 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,261.06
46.56 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,262.38
46.71 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,262.53
47.71 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,263.53
48.22 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,264.04
50.97 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,266.79
51.83 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,267.65

Page 191




2014-15 Council Tax Charges

Appendix B

Amounts in Town / Community Council order

Community Councils

Argoed

Bagillt
Broughton & Bretton
Brynford
Buckley
Caerwys
Cilcain
Connahs Quay
Flint
Gwernaffield
Gwernymynydd
Halkyn
Hawarden
Higher Kinnerton
Holywell

Hope
Leeswood
Llanasa
Llanfynydd
Mold

Mostyn
Nannerch
Nercwys
Northop
Northop Hall
Penyffordd
Queensferry
Saltney
Sealand
Shotton
Trelawnyd & Gwaenysgor
Treuddyn
Whitford
Ysceifiog

BAND D
Community | Flintshire | Police | Total
£ £ £ £
25.08 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,240.90
26.68 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,242.50
40.92 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,256.74
35.00 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,250.82
45.24 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,261.06
38.57 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,254.39
28.25 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,244.07
48.22 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,264.04
38.36 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,254.18
15.67 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,231.49
25.17 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,240.99
30.46 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,246.28
36.68 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,252.50
33.68 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,249.50
46.71 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,262.53
27.33 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,243.15
40.80 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,256.62
32.05 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,247.87
33.76 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,249.58
51.83 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,267.65
38.10 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,253.92
37.00 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,252.82
47.71 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,263.53
20.00 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,235.82
30.37 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,246.19
27.77 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,243.59
50.97 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,266.79
42.97 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,258.79
46.56 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,262.38
43.78 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,259.60
32.71 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,248.53
43.76 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,259.58
37.00 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,252.82
30.42 988.21 | 227.61 | 1,246.24

Page 192




Appendix B

2014-15 Council Tax Charges
Lowest to Highest % amounts by Town / Community Council

BAND D
Community Councils Community | Flintshire Police
% % %

Shotton -6.49 3.00 2.00
Bagillt -4.88 3.00 2.00
Sealand -2.94 3.00 2.00
Higher Kinnerton -2.69 3.00 2.00
Hawarden -2.08 3.00 2.00
Llanfynydd -1.86 3.00 2.00
Gwernaffield -1.82 3.00 2.00
Buckley -1.80 3.00 2.00
Llanasa -1.54 3.00 2.00
Gwernymynydd -1.14 3.00 2.00
Queensferry -0.88 3.00 2.00
Broughton & Bretton -0.32 3.00 2.00
Brynford 0.00 3.00 2.00
Saltney 0.00 3.00 2.00
Treuddyn 0.07 3.00 2.00
Penyffordd 0.29 3.00 2.00
Leeswood 0.54 3.00 2.00
Caerwys 0.84 3.00 2.00
Mold 0.99 3.00 2.00
Connahs Quay 1.01 3.00 2.00
Flint 1.13 3.00 2.00
Argoed 1.58 3.00 2.00
Mostyn 1.82 3.00 2.00
Halkyn 1.94 3.00 2.00
Nannerch 2.78 3.00 2.00
Whitford 2.78 3.00 2.00
Northop Hall 2.98 3.00 2.00
Holywell 3.50 3.00 2.00
Cilcain 3.56 3.00 2.00
Nercwys 3.65 3.00 2.00
Trelawnyd & Gwaenysgor 3.84 3.00 2.00
Ysceifiog 4.97 3.00 2.00
Hope 23.33 3.00 2.00
Northop 42.86 3.00 2.00

Page 193




2014-15 Council Tax Charges

% Amounts in Town / Community Council order

Appendix B

BAND D
Community Councils Community | Flintshire Police
% % %

Argoed 1.58 3.00 2.00
Bagillt -4.88 3.00 2.00
Broughton & Bretton -0.32 3.00 2.00
Brynford 0.00 3.00 2.00
Buckley -1.80 3.00 2.00
Caerwys 0.84 3.00 2.00
Cilcain 3.56 3.00 2.00
Connahs Quay 1.01 3.00 2.00
Flint 1.13 3.00 2.00
Gwernaffield -1.82 3.00 2.00
Gwernymynydd -1.14 3.00 2.00
Halkyn 1.94 3.00 2.00
Hawarden -2.08 3.00 2.00
Higher Kinnerton -2.69 3.00 2.00
Holywell 3.50 3.00 2.00
Hope 23.33 3.00 2.00
Leeswood 0.54 3.00 2.00
Llanasa -1.54 3.00 2.00
Llanfynydd -1.86 3.00 2.00
Mold 0.99 3.00 2.00
Mostyn 1.82 3.00 2.00
Nannerch 2.78 3.00 2.00
Nercwys 3.65 3.00 2.00
Northop 42.86 3.00 2.00
Northop Hall 2.98 3.00 2.00
Penyffordd 0.29 3.00 2.00
Queensferry -0.88 3.00 2.00
Saltney 0.00 3.00 2.00
Sealand -2.94 3.00 2.00
Shotton -6.49 3.00 2.00
Trelawnyd & Gwaenysgor 3.84 3.00 2.00
Treuddyn 0.07 3.00 2.00
Whitford 2.78 3.00 2.00
Ysceifiog 4.97 3.00 2.00

Page 194




	Agenda
	4 Council Minutes
	9 Council Fund Revenue Budget 2014/15
	Enc. 1 for Council Fund Revenue Budget 2014/15

	10 Council Fund Capital Programme 2014/15 and indicative funding to 2017/18
	Enc 1 for Council Fund Capital Programme 2014/15 and Indicative Funding to 2017/18

	11 Housing Revenue Account 2014/15 & Capital Programme 2014/15
	Enc. 1 for Housing Revenue Account 2014/15 & Capital Programme 2014/15

	12 Prudential Indicators 2014/15 - 2016/17
	Enc. 1 for Prudential Indicators 2014/15 - 2016/17

	13 Minimum Revenue Provision 2014/15
	Enc. 1 for Minimum Revenue Provision 2014/15

	14 Treasury Management Strategy 2014/15
	Enc. 1 for Treasury Management Strategy 2014/15
	Enc. 2 for Treasury Management Strategy 2014/15

	15 Council Tax Setting 2014-15
	Enc. 1 for Council Tax Setting 2014-15
	Enc. 2 for Council Tax Setting 2014-15


